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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, a leading jeweller in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011 and has become the world’s
largest pure-play jeweller by market capitalisation. Chow Tai Fook is now

a constituent stock of the Hang Seng China 50 Index and the Hang Seng
Mainland 100 Index. Our core business is manufacturing and selling of mass
luxury and high-end luxury jewellery including gem-set products, gold
products, and platinum/karat gold products. We also distribute watches of
various brands.

The Group’s iconic brand “Chow Tai Fook” and long-standing history

of 85 years of operations represent key competitive advantages of our
business. The Chow Tai Fook brand is recognised for its trustworthiness and
authenticity, and renowned for its product design, quality and value.

The Group has an extensive retail network, with over 2,000 points of sale
in more than 470 cities in Greater China, Singapore and Malaysia. We have
also successfully developed our e-commerce in recent years. The Group’s
vertically integrated business model gives us an effective and tight control
over the entire operation chain from raw material procurement, design,
production, to marketing and sales through our extensive retail network.
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Financial Highlights
B REE

Revenue Profit attributable to Earnings per share
BXEH shareholders of the Company BRER
R BRREGEER

HK$ million B &8 7T HK cent /&1l
$77,4071m e $7272.0mM s HK72.7 cents
BEATT BEATT ‘m (il

6,340.6

72.7

68.5

56,571.1 57,433.9

35,042.5

22,933.6

FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014

PHFEE MBFEE MBREE VBRFEE HBREE MHEE MBRFEE MERFE BBREFE HBREE PHFEE MBFEE MBEE VBRFEE HBREE
For the year ended 31 March
EJE?;SHS}%EHJ:ETE 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$ million BEETL ~ HKS million BEETL ~ HKS million BEETL ~ HKS million BEET ~ HKS million BE/ET
Revenue & 5% 22,9336 35,0425 56,5711 57,4339 77,407.1
Gross profit £ 6,555.0 9,927.6 16,447.9 16,283.1 21,152.3
Operating profit® &2 & 70 2,703.6 4,651.7 8,440.1 7,316.7 9,252.1
Profit for the year FE 7 2,206.8 36725 6,570.9 56784 7,449.2
Prﬁ?tﬁfgﬁﬁf;f’fj;i;;j;’ﬁg;sm 21386 35376 63406 55053 72720
Earnings per share (HK cent) SRRZH (7#(l) 239 395 685 55.1 72.7
Dividend per share (HK cent) %R S (A1)
Interim # H§ n/aTEf n/aT™Ef n/aTEA 6.0 17.0
Final A5 n/aNEm n/aTiEm 100 16.0 19.0
Full year 24 n/aTNEH n/aTER n/a’NEA 220 36.0
Gross profit margin EF|& 28.6% 28.3% 29.1% 28.4% 27.3%
Operating profit margin® A&7 E%&® 11.8% 13.3% 14.9% 12.7% 12.0%
Unrealised hedging (gain)/loss on gold loans
and bullion forward contracts 0.7)% 12% 0.1% (0.3)% 0.4%
EREERESEHANAERY R W) /B
i 27.9% 205% 28.4% 281% 27.7%
S opereing profmarein 1% 145% 14.2% 12.4% 12.4%
Net profit margin F7E% 9.6% 10.5% 11.6% 9.9% 9.6%
Dividend payout ratio JE &% n/a M@ n/aNER 27.4%@ 40.0% 49.5%

@ Earnings before net interest and taxation
O BHATRF

@ Earnings before net interest and taxation, divided by revenue
@ BRATBFRAEER

@ Adjusted gross/operating profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised hedging (gain)/loss on gold loans and bullion forward contracts,
which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying trends of its business

® RBEOENE LR BRI IHRBERMSREELFE MR THESEERSTCEAENORERL (), /BIENVE  ARAHEERSLEEHEEMT
R R R N E X BB

@ Derived from the profit in the second half of FY2012
@ RE 2012 BFE T HFHF]
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For the year ended 31 March

N 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HEIAZALEE
HKS million BEETL — HKS million BEET  HKS million BEETTL  HKS million BEETL — HKS million BE#ET
Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital #8628 2188 %0 53941 56307 91896 76626 94649
Net cash from (used in) operating activities
ISR (5 7)) B 455 1,224.0 (2,612.3) (6,653.7) 10,030.3 (5,419.5)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities
BETBE () BL 5 308.2 (75.9) 477.0 anze) (1,727.3)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities
BAEE () 2 4 95 (716.1) 6,107.3 10,497.0 (10,622.6) 8,220.6
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents & MRS EEMEMN R D) 58 8161 34191 43203 (1704.9) 10738
Pro forma free cash flow Z BERHE 27 596.4 (2,452.1) (6,058.3) 8,150.5 (412.0)
As at 31 March
N3IAE 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HKS millon BZET  HKS milion BEET  HKS milion BEETL  HKS million BEET — HKS million B&ET
Inventories 7 & 9,274.8 17,00.8 29,694.2 27,3148 42,5437
Net debt(cash) &8 (5 &) F5E© 2874.4 7,606.5 48024 (2,494.8) 71145
Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances 2 E#F71T 2,3326 5,761 10,004.8 83305 9,971.9
T RERTER R TR
Bank borrowings $R1TE 160.3 2,881.0 9,000.6 1,000.0 6,299.6
Gold loans E£{EE 21892 39316 5,806.6 48357 10,786.8
Net amounts due to related companies
BB A TR 28575 65550
Current assets TEIEE 15,9616 27,503.2 45,2583 39,777.0 57,554.3
Current liabilities FE & & 8,510.9 17,213.2 14,218.0 8,412.8 22,506.9
Net current assets 84 E 55 7,450.7 10,290.0 31,0403 31364.2 35,047.4
Net assets T8 8,335.4 1,672.9 29,573.0 33,860.7 38,4524
Total assets BEEHE 17,010.3 29,048.7 47,4143 43,2186 61,817.1
Net gearing ratio® 0 ) o v G 0
STAKA B % 34.5% 65.2% 16.2% n/aNER 18.5%
Inventory turnover period (days) 77 [EE X & 194 192 213 253 227

©®  Net cash from (used in) operating activities less capital expenditures and net movements for gold loans
© LEEHHE (FA) RFEREFARILEEEFEE

®  Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net amounts due to related companies, net of pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances

and cash

© RITER  HEEE  ENEBIFZEFRIEE (NBREEMRITER

BHRTFRRRITEBRRE)

@ Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net amounts due to related companies, net of pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances

and cash, divided by total equity

@ RITER  BRfEE

FERTRRR R R FURF R 24858 (RRCIRIRRI T -

®  The Group had a net cash position as at 31 March 2013, and therefore the net gearing ratio is not applicable
® AEER2013F3I[AINEEOFRDNN - FEABBLLELER

BHRTEFRERITERRIRE) R ARG
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Chow Tal Fook
at a Glance
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Chow Tai Fook at a Glance

BABXE—E

Vertically Integrated Business Model FEHESEFER

Our vertically integrated business model is critical to keep us ahead of the BN EEEAEBERE AR AELEE IRt
game in delivering best quality products and services. It is also key to the BEEMMREEEEE  TMERMEBNEBELERE
sustainability of our business. 1B EESE

Below is the graphical summary of the upstream, midstream and TE#EY)KRPIE LT PR TITER -

downstream of our business:

Upstream Midstream Downstream

Lk Gibicd Tk
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Chow Tai Fook at a Glance
BAE—E

The following aims at explaining key terms and concepts that are often used AEEEEAARARFR AP HRARESCERINTE
in our annual and interim reports. AEREA -

Product Categories Z=mmfE Rl

Our products are classified into four categories, namely gem-set jewellery, BPMERSEAE DR AUSEREN =&
gold products, platinum/karat gold products, and watches. AR KEERMERE -

Jewellery 3R E E &

= >

Diamond ring Amethysts earrings Ruby ring

E SR HIR ALER 1S

Gem-set jewellery represents products made with diamonds and gemstones.
Gem-set

Diamond-mounted gem-set jewellery constitutes a major portion of our gem-set
Jewe"ery jewellery products, representing 70%-80% of the sales in the gem-set jewellery

o Aas category. Highlighted by diamonds’ beauty, durability and rarity, people’s love

Iﬂiﬁﬁﬁgﬁfﬁ towards diamond jewellery has stood the test of time.

The remainder of gem-set jewellery mainly includes pearl, ruby, sapphire, jadeite,
and semi-precious stones.

KEZREHSEEEROMNERNER

BABONAREEMERMARERRAHEREE ROLE - HIRE S E #HR5H
BRZ70%E80% - BARKELR - BA P& EXELEKFERHEZLR

HEHBpM®RERREHIRERDN A" EE  FELFEL-

&
87
ok
:-L.-;
Gold bangles Gold pendant
a1 el

Gold is a traditionally precious metal, with its value deeply rooted among Chinese
customers. Jewellery products designed for events and festivals comprise over 90%
of our gold products.

GOId Gold products are sold by weight. The unit selling price of gold products is very
PrOdUCtS transparent,_ as the unit selling price is shown in each of our retail shop and
updated daily.

EETEM

Gold products with substantial amount of art work and delicate designs and licensed
gold products are classified as platinum/karat gold products and are not sold
by weight.

EeRERETE HEABRRAFAENEE - HMNESERTBBNLKEEREN
EERENEAMR GMHEM

EeEMUBEIHE FeEMNBUEEETER SHEEESIILLERAEH
BREE-

BEMEN TERILN  RABOARBENESERBNS K SERBA - BIER
EEHHE -
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Product Categories (continued)

Jewel Iery (Continued) Ekg ﬁﬁfﬁ (#)

Platinum/
Karat Gold
Products

s
KEEEh
Em

Watches &%

Watches

7 £

4 -_t N
- } [ )
a8
7
Karat gold Platinum Platinum ring
necklace pendant HSEH,
K& SR fHE R

This category includes karat gold, platinum and gold products with substantial
amount of art work and delicate designs, and licensed gold products.

Karat gold jewellery refers to jewellery made from gold alloy and at least one other
metal. The most common types of karat gold products are 10K and 18K.

Platinum jewellery is jewellery with above 85% being platinum. Depending on the
portion of platinum, platinum jewellery has three classifications including 990 (99%
platinum), 950 (95% platinum), and 900 (90% platinum).

HHENEREKE  He FEHEENTERMEK  RFBOHNESERNREEES

Em e

KEEHRENESASHKNENH  HP RIS —RB2E - KEEMRT LA
7RTOK 18K ©

ML EHMRENS S EMBSSUMEMi - HEBHERTHLEEN =" B8990
(99%8A%) » 950 (95% $H4) 2 900 (90% $A%) °

This category includes mechanical and battery/quartz powered watches.

We purchase watches from famous watch brands (over 50 brands including Rolex,
Omega, Cartier, etc.) and sell them through our distribution channels.

The watches we sell are mainly mid to high-end luxury brands, targeting the middle-
to-high income group of customers.

VR BB RARE -

MM E L EE RS (BFERolex, Omega, Cartier Ei8iB 50 {E M IE) FREEESE - BLERK
PIE) 7 SHRIEHEATEHE o

BAHENEERIERATRBEERE  BRETPATREAAL -

For more information on our products, please visit us at www.chowtaifook.com
E RS - 58Ewww.chowtaifook.com

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2014
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Chow Tai Fook at a Glance

BKRE—

POS Classification and Revenue Components

The following diagram summarises the relationship between our sales
channels and revenue:

Points of Sale
TER

Self-Operated POS (a)
BEZER

Same Store (c) Other Store (c)
B HitE&

Same Store Sales (c)
BE/EHE

Other Store Sales (c)
HitEHHE

Retail Revenue (a)

TEEXN

(@) Self-operated POS and retail revenue

Self-operated POS are stores operated by us, including wholly-owned
POS and joint-venture POS. We record sales when products are sold
to our retail customers at retail price, and the corresponding revenue

is classified as retail revenue.

(b) Franchised POS and wholesale revenue

Franchised POS, operated by our franchisees, who have local

knowledge and expertise to develop our business, retail our products
only. We record sales when products are delivered to our franchisees

at wholesale price, and the corresponding sales are classified as
wholesale revenue. A small portion of products is consigned to

franchisees, and sales are recorded when products are sold to retail

customers.

(c) Same Store and other store

Same Store for a relevant financial year are those self-operated POS
existing as at the end of that financial year and which have been
operating for at least 24 consecutive months immediately prior to the

end of that financial year.

08

TEMD AN EXBNE
TS B8 R B R 2 B R

Total POS
TERAY

Franchised POS (b)
MEETEE

E-commerce and
others (d)
EFEmBREM

Wholesale
Revenue (b)

HBERE

Total Revenue

Et S

(a) EEZEMNRTELEXE

BRAaATEMN EmRE

BHATELEN -

(b) MBZEXMRAUBERE

MBTEHEHMMBBEENER - BRI
AEL R ABEERABABRRRMANES - I
ETERMNER - EmZILEERN FINA
o RS RLCEAR . ARMNEE
EmELEmE
TEEPR  RMEBHEE

mEmALLEE %%ﬁ o /RS
HEE ERET
BARR -

(c) REREAMER

BRMBEENRIER
E’]E**TE,

—HEEHDEE24M8R -

BEETEMRAMEENER BFE2ETE
EEETEER
B RSB HEEELEAR  AENEEE

L BEERDAGFE
P ZEERREEZMRFER



POS Classification and Revenue Components TER SN EETESIE ()
(Continued)

(c) Same Store and other store (Continued) (c) REREMESH
Taking FY2014 as an example, Same Store refers to those self- L2014 B EF E A - RIEHER2014F3 A
operated POS existing at 31 March 2014 and which have been opened INBEMAEE - WH202F4A1BMFERN
prior to 1 April 2012. HETEDY -
Self-operated POS that do not fulfill the requirement as Same Store REBYRFEETFE LAREERHNELES
explained above are classified as other store in a relevant financial B EAEMIEH  FTEREAFHEEK
year. They consist of mainly the POS opened and closed during the U BFERREEENETEE -

current and preceding financial year.

SSSG is a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular year FEEHENERRBEEFEZREMNHEEHE £
and sales from comparable POS in the previous vear. —FEALTERNEE 2 -

Illustrations on Same Store and other store

[E) Ji Bz Hth S5 &8 69 [ A

®©

I ——————————

FY2012 S| FY2013 = FY2014

201281 R [E 201 3BT ERF[E 201451 BRF [
31 March 201 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2014
201143 A 31H 201243 A31H 201343 A31H 20143 A 318

Bl Operation period of FY2014 Same Store!
20148 BUF E R 2 45 & B

Bl Operation period of FY2014 other store?
201481 B fE E At J5 47 2 45 & HR
Operation period of FY2014 other store?®
201454 BUAF & oA 5 47 2 A8 & R

Note 1: POS opened before 1 April 2012 and remained opened on 31 March 2014 were classified as “FY2014 Same Store”
MizE 1. 201244 A1 BAIFELMR2014F3A31 B INATENTEZFEA [2014HBFERE ]

Note 2: POS opened after 31 March 2012 were classified as “FY2014 other store”

MizE 2: 201293 A31BEMAXMNTERE A [20140 R FE E fth /54 |

Note 3: POS that did not exist on 31 March 2014 were classified as “FY2014 other store”

MizE 3. 201453 A31HEMRAMZERE A [ 20148 BN FE H /54

(d) E-commerce and others (d) EFEHREM
It represents revenue from e-commerce and other direct sales (such W hEFEEREME N (INEETHNER)
as sales from promotional events) which is included in our retail T S ARPNTEL XS -
revenue.

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2014 09
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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBES

“The 2013/2014 financial year (“FY2014™)
was an eventful year with remarkable
results and exciting opportunities.

[2013/2014 A FE ([ 2014 BARLFEE )
AL —F ANEBFEBKRFLE
W B R |
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“As a leading jeweller with strong fundamentals,
visionary business strategy and market-driven approach,
the Group was capable of capturing opportunities

and optimising returns as markets rebounded.”

[ERBEMIRER @ NEBRERENE
@E%@J%E’J ETEIR

N

Wﬂum%ﬁgﬁmMﬁﬁﬁ

RESIEIR T 5 1R B R M S RS IR AE [ R o |

Dear Shareholders,

The 2013/2014 financial year (“FY2014”) was an eventful year with
remarkable results and exciting opportunities. The unprecedented slump in
international gold price as soon as FY2014 commenced fuelled the demand
for gold jewellery and boosted consumer confidence amid gradual recovery
in both the Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau markets. The sales of
non-gold products also benefited and the Group’s retail and wholesale
businesses saw strong growth. As a leading jeweller with strong
fundamentals, visionary business strategy and market-driven approach, the
Group was capable of capturing opportunities and optimising returns as
markets rebounded.

| am pleased to report a total revenue of HK$77,407.1 million for FY2014,
representing a surge of 34.8% year-on-year attributable to improved market
sentiment and consumer confidence as a result of the “gold rush” effect.
Sales were in particular robust in the first half of FY2014. Profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company increased 32.1% to HK$7,272.0 million.
Same Store Sales Growth (“SSSG”) rebounded to 18.6% versus a 3.3%
decrease in the last financial year attributable mainly to a significant increase
in Same Store Sales volume growth.

The product mix which had shifted notably towards gold products in the
first half of FY2014 became normalised in the second half of the year as the
“gold rush” effect diminished and the sales contribution of gem-set jewellery
expanded. During the year under review, mass luxury jewellery segment
continued to be the growth driver and the strong sales of both gold and
gem-set jewellery were driven mainly by volume.

Earnings per share were HK72.7 cents (FY2013: HK55.1 cents). The Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK19.0 cents per share
(FY2013: HK16.0 cents). Combined with the interim dividend of HK17.0 cents
per share, the total annual dividend is HK36.0 cents per share, representing
a dividend payout ratio of 49.5%.

During the year under review, we added a net of 241 POS to our retail
network, including the 2,000th POS opened in January 2014 in Wuhan. The
Group'’s POS totalled 2,077 as at 31 March 2014. In tandem, our e-commerce
flourishes on a fast track in terms of year-on-year sales growth and
expanding our customer base.

BEAIRR

2013/2014 BN EE (204 M EE ) REEZ Y
M—F AEEEBERELE  WHEEERER 2014
HRFEEFE  BESEAMAREGHERK  BEHEH
R R SRS &R SE R  REm %&ﬁfﬁmﬁx&
HWEHEEREL  EECEMNEELETTE
PFAEBMTEMIBEBRDEER - T’E?%‘%if’ﬁﬁ'\]fﬁg
B AEBEREBENER  SEERBAOZEISRIEM
LTS ABEmNEESIT - EMILEMBERMZIKL
MEVSRERR -

RAMRARE - 2014 R F EERSEER 77,4078
BB R #ER348%  SEBENTEZHENIA
B EMHBRANRE  HBERERED - 201458
BFEELFFHELHEARY  AQRREEGENE
HAE72720B88EB T #IN321% - R/EHEHR L@
HRFEIINMABREAEIS6RMIEEEK T2
BRREHEEEKE T -

E20U4MRER L+ F  ERHERBAESERNG
LLEBA - 2048 BFEE THF - [B28 8RR
BOREBREMOLOBMEN  EREELDIE
EEERKY - REBEFEAR  TRKRBEHERIDRE
BIEEND ) B RKERREHOBRDHEE - £
EHHEHERTD -

EESBEEREMN72.78F1 (2013 KEE : 55178
i) - EFEEZRMREKRE tHx19o,%§fm<2o1zﬁ7r
BEE 16.081L) - @RPHREFR17.080
FREEEBER36.0B 0 KRB ERAA495% °

REBEFER BN SERKFE24ETES -

HepaiE2014F1 AERERENE 2,000 R TS, -

HZ2014F43A310  AEBEELF2077AZEH -

ﬁzﬁaﬁ FEBKORLHRERIERE [ iE fE
C BRRTETEA -
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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBES

Strategies

We are one of the very few in the industry that possesses both production
capacity and capability to meet the huge market demand for mass luxury
jewellery products and the strengths in design and craftsmanship to satisfy
the stringent requirements of discerning high-end customers. Our brand
strategy is to build a multi-faceted Chow Tai Fook brand to showcase our
various strengths as our business expands and diversifies.

As we have been widely recognised as the leader with deep market
penetration and leading market share in the mass luxury segment for years,
we also endeavoured to uplift our brand image as world-class high-end
luxury jeweller in order to raise our brand profile, equity and value; and to
become the wedding expert of the jewellery industry to seize the wedding
jewellery market which is the largest single segment that contributes over
one-third to our retail revenue.

In addition, on the recent success in developing our youth line products and
e-commerce, we have also earned a reputation for being innovative and at
the forefront of the ever-changing and fast moving jewellery market.

Our product strategy is market-driven and customer-focused. Thanks to our
well established vertically integrated business model, we are able to respond
quickly to market changes and consumer demands. We continued to
enhance our product offerings through diversification and differentiation.
We have expanded our product portfolio by introducing fashion diamond
jewellery to the Mainland China market and crossover art pieces in
collaboration with artists and designers.

At Chow Tai Fook, our retail network has two fronts, an extensive physical
stores network and the flourishing e-tail platforms. We continued our POS
opening strategy focusing mainly on Tier Il and lower tier cities in Mainland
China leveraging franchisees’ deep local market knowledge and experience,
while capturing opportunities in prime tourist locations in Hong Kong and
Macau, in tandem with our ongoing retail network consolidation, including
relocation of selected POS to prime locations, closing some relatively low
performing POS and expanding the retail area of selected POS, that aims
specifically to improve POS productivity for enhancing SSSG. On the other
hand, we invested resources to accelerate e-commerce growth and deliver
360 degree shopping experience by deploying our e-tail platforms as
powerful channels for digital marketing, online-to-offline (“O20”) interaction
and customer relationship management (“CRM”).

Investment in the future is vital to the continuous growth and sustainable
development of a business. During the year under review, substantial
progresses on our development projects were made. The construction
works of the new Mainland China headquarters in Yantian, Shenzhen was
completed in FY2014, and the Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan,
Hubei aims to commence production in September 2014. For staff
development, we launched the “Wisdom Dynamic Programme” for selected
frontline and back office staff from operational to managerial grades for
all-round training to inspire creative thinking, promote positive spirit and
encourage holistic development so as to enhance individual capacity and
team performance.

R Mg
BPRERNGLOHEREE RANEESL NTEESR
RTMBSHIRKEERNOEAFTR  NREEHHR
SAANTEZENENSHmBETNREER - BEEXBED
EriEsE AR - RPN EZE(EN R BRERER
BE - REAMBZITENENMES

SEFR  RAREXNTIS2EXRREATEINE
MAETSRAEENTRFCERSREZAR  BER
BOTEEARLERERNTR - AR R
R BREREE TARAKREXENBEEREEHE
R MM EEEERRMNTERABB=02—
BRAE - EBRBINEGEKRETS

SN HPVEFRNHAEFEURBERNE TS
MISREMERSBE RBERLENKET ST REA
e ) B EE TS SR SR AT AR

HPMERRBATSERMBART A  BEREN
FHEAEBEN - UM BECMEEEFLIE
MESE - LB BERZ TEMERL - TEEL
B E @ - B e P B T 35 HE R e 4 6 % B
BME MR SENERBIBMEH L M - UEX
HMWERAS -

EARENTEBRAERER  REFREANER
EREARBERNOE FTEFE - RIBERETH
REEHORE - EE)INERY T ISHIRARE
Mgk T2EPAEPERDE =R REOREW
R URIEBESRREARORERS - WRK
BEETEPROES  ERENZEHBERRE
R D AR BENTEHR LR ERNTEHIENT
EHES - st ETEREED - URARE
HEKR - Z—mE BIBRARR FMAELE
EFEERB(CmSHE & LEET (020D EH
MEFHAETENAICRE  EHETABHERERER
360 ZEMRE -

RENRARRBEBBURBEENFSEZRNERZR
- REEFERN HMANEREBNGERER
R R R EE R A ¥ B N AR B A ey iR SR T 72
ER2014 8 B FE A TR - 0 E & BOE T A
ARBURECERE R ER 201459 ARBK
EoEETHREAE  RMEHRAISEBFE] #
RN EHHPIESNEERTREERRESR
B AifiREEEOE - BEREAEEHE R
EBHEEEN RSB ABRSE  NRTHEARIME
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Achievements

The Group’s 2,000th POS, also the first-of-its-kind experiential jewellery
shop in the industry, was officially opened in Wuhan in January 2014.
Located in a new |.T.-focused central business district and a hot spot of
university students in Wuhan, this 2,000th POS is now one of our high sales
stores in Mainland China. It is a triumphant exhibition of our far-sighted
perseverance and determination to meet business goal, as well as our
strengths in optimising our digital competence and capturing market
opportunity.

In February 2014, Chow Tai Fook’s leading role in the industry earned us the
appointment as “Official Global Partner” of the China Pavilion at Expo Milano
2015. Apart from being authorised to design and manufacture exclusive
China Pavilion expo products and limited edition jewellery, the partnership
also provides us with an exceptional opportunity to host a jewellery show at
the China Pavilion to showcase our brand excellence in design and
craftsmanship to the world.

During the year under review, we further strengthened our partnership with
renowned local and international brands. We, as the largest distributor of
licensed Disney products in Greater China, were authorised to open our first
Disney Zone at the iISQUARE POS in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. We also
entered into licensing agreements with new business partners as exclusive
retailer in Greater China, including Canada’s Crossworks Manufacturing Ltd.
for its patented hearts and arrows ideal cut square diamond “Magic Square”
marketed under De Beers Group’s FOREVERMARK brand, and Hong Kong’s
Aaron Shum Jewelry Limited for launching our “Chow Tai Fook 520"
diamond collection using its patented Coronet Solitaire design.

We have also clinched a number of accolades in recognition of our business
strengths and brand value. With a brand value of US$4,544 million and an
“A” grade rating, Chow Tai Fook was named one of the world’s most
valuable brands under the Brand Finance Global 500 in February 2014. In
addition, we were ranked the 44th and the 18th in China’s “500 Most
Valuable Brands” and Hong Kong'’s “Top 100 Most Influential Brands”,
respectively, by World Brand Lab. Chow Tai Fook was the number one
pure-play jeweller in all the above rankings.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBES

Outlook

We are cautiously optimistic about our business outlook for the 2014,/2015
financial year (“FY2015”). When entering FY2015, signs of uncertainty arising
from various unfavourble factors exhibited, such as a slowing economy in
Mainland China, as well as a decrease in inbound Mainland tourist numbers,
more cautious consumer spending and lower purchasing budget. However,
we are quite confident that their negative impacts are just short term
because we also see positive signs on the other hand.

The Mainland Chinese government has set a 7.5% GDP growth target for
2014 which will deliver an enviable growth and the trend of increasing
incomes will continue. Moreover, as the Year of the Horse is an auspicious
year for weddings and births, a growth in this segment is expected to shore
up the demand for jewellery in both the Mainland China and Hong Kong and
Macau markets.

Among the abovementioned unfavourable factors, it was the decrease in
the number of inbound Mainland tourist during the 5.1 golden week for the
first time since 2003 that made Hong Kong worry most. The decrease, in
general, was opined as a result of the negative sentiments and behaviours
against the influx of Mainland tourists. We believe that the Hong Kong
Government will adopt viable measures to ease such undesirable situation
and look for long term solutions to create a win-win environment.

If the decrease in the number of inbound Mainland tourists and their
spending were to continue and would cloud the retail sector in the Hong
Kong and Macau market, Chow Tai Fook would be in a better position than
some local peers to withstand the threats thanks to our strong presence in
Mainland China, our major market that contributes the largest portion to our
revenue.

As for the medium to long run, we maintain a positive view on our prospect
as we believe there exists a huge demand for mass luxury jewellery and
wedding-related jewellery in both the Mainland China and the Hong Kong
and Macau markets, while youth line products and fashion jewellery are
increasingly popular among young customers who represent the largest
and continuously growing customer base of the prosperous e-commerce
business.

The economic growth of Mainland China will continue to outperform many
economies although at a slower, yet still coveted, rate. The jewellery market
is far from saturation as disposable incomes keep rising, middle class
population still increasing and urbanisation continues, especially in Tier Il
and lower tier cities where growth momentum remains strong.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the jewellery market will continue to be well
supported by both local customers and tourists as our competitive prices
under the duty-free policy are still favourable. While some POS in the Hong
Kong and Macau market may be consolidated, we will maintain a flexible
store opening approach to capture good opportunities.

B2

AL 2014/2015 8 B F E (20158 B FE ) %
HATSFEELEAEE - ARE205MBEE - EHf
BTHETAAEZERNTEBELR - BN
KOBRAE - ShBERMREZRE TR BEHEEBRE
EMEEEETRE - A RMAEEENEEY
ZOBEREMHE AAS - FERMBLEIEEMN

BB ATE T 20145 B PV 4 B EH S R AIBA
7.5%  BABRS AEEOEEER - TEAE NS
BB hERAE - 1) FENEEGELENE
F - B ERERENHERSQEDHENIR
BRIIBHHEN B -

FELRAMEZZS - ATE—| 22 EAMmBARE
ABE2003FERTRESEBEE - —RABRA
WEEABRLD - B NRAEE RS EN B E
BREMITRME - RAEE  BEBA KBS RMAT
BRGEBENER LSREREFRITEMELRN
B °

fHEHERMIRERENEEREET R HERT
EMSERTE AREEEZFEENEIGL LA
WRZEE R  ARHEMESEPEABEEERMEE
HRALENTEMISET T RANEBKBLE -

BAGHh REOEBASBFEEGREE - HABED
B A AER TS Y TR IKEEm B HIAE G4
BRGERREXN MESUEERVESHIREEHITA
B IFEETHL  MMEEEINEFHHETS
REANEERE A LEERELEER -

FEAAEEERGEBL RS COBBRER - 18
REEAMNE EERASABHE - BEAERK
AFE LT REAQTEEI - LRI E B RS
ABEE - PRI IRE TISB AP B R E - L E
DR RERBAT - BRENRARY -

EREBLRFIIE  XERRBRBCR - ABF N8
EmMBEREABNRNEERANOBENES - 57
WX EHMNKENS - ROEEET ST ERA
BEEETRA MERERB IS RISELL - U
IR o



We are also able to capture the robust e-commerce with stepped up efforts
in omni-channel retailing to integrate different channels such as mobile,
online, social media platform and physical POS for creating O20 synergy
that both online and offline businesses will benefit.

As we entered 2014, we have a host of new initiatives and celebratory
programmes to mark our 85th anniversary. Abided by the corporate values
of “Sincerity * Eternity” for decades, we have built our success on the trust
and support from our customers and partners. We will continue to uphold
these values to guide us along for greater success in the years to come.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank our fellow members of the Board for
their leadership and contribution; all of our staff for their diligence and
loyalty; our shareholders, customers and business partners for their support
and trust; as well as the communities in which we operate and to which we
gladly give back.

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERETwE DN

Financial Review B %5 Bl
Revenue overview EXREME
Revenue by operation model Revenue by product Revenue by geography
REERABISNERET RERBISNEXR R EE D WE X

&

FY2013 FY2014 FY2013 FY2014 FY2013 FY2014
2013 BEE 2014 EE 2013 HEE 20148 BEFE 2013 EEE 2048 S
| B Retail % | B Gem-set jewellery | B Mainland China FEIAt
[ | B Wholesale #£3 RE R A | B HK, Macau and
| B Gold products B¢ E other Asian markets
| B Platinum/karat gold products B ORFIREMTIMNTIS
AT/KEER
| B Watches $85
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Met - BRI EE R A RN ER
FY2014 was an exceptional year filled with excitement and endeavour to us. 204 BRFERELN—F  BRMAKRETEHS N £
Our revenue reached HK$77,407.1 million (FY2013: HK$57,433.9 million), BLANEHF RPN EEFEED7740718848 T
representing an encouraging increase of 34.8% over the same period last (2013 EE : 57,433.9B&BTT) » REFRHAE
year. The increase was mainly caused by the strong retail sales and steady £348% EIEEE - WEFEHNTERBAEIR
recovery of wholesale business in Mainland China. FER LB IS IEEE o
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Financial Review (continued)

Revenue by geography

The business in Mainland China recorded a revenue of HK$42,148.2 million
(FY2013: HK$30,308.4 million), representing an increase of 39.1%. Such
increase was mainly driven by the increase in sales of gold products and the
improved wholesale as a result of the strong inventory replenishment
demand from franchisees at existing stores and new stores. Mainland China
market continued to represent our major source of revenue, accounting for
54.5% of our revenue.

Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets recorded a revenue of
HK$35,258.9 million (FY2013: HK$27,125.5 million), representing an increase
of 30.0%. Similar to that in Mainland China, the business in the market was
benefited by the increase in sales of gold products.

Revenue by product

Sales of gem-set jewellery and gold products comprised about 21.1%
(FY2013: 22.9%) and 61.2% (FY2013: 57.4%) of revenue respectively. Due to
the gold buying spree triggered by the drop in gold price in the first quarter
of FY2014, the sales contribution of gold products to our revenue increased
when compared to that of the same period last year. Yet our gold products’
contribution to revenue started to normalise as the gold rush effect faded
out gradually during the year. The gold product mix in the second half of
FY2014 decreased to 57.4% when compared with 65.2% in the first half of
FY2014.

Sales of gem-set jewellery increased by 24.1% to HK$16,332.2 million
(FY2013: HK$13,164.8 million), while sales of gold products increased by
43.7% to HK$47,359.6 million (FY2013: HK$32,954.6 million).

Gross profit and unrealised hedging gain or loss

Our gross profit increased by 29.9% from HK$16,283.1 million in FY2013 to
HK$21,152.3 million in FY2014, while the gross profit margin was 27.3%
(FY2013: 28.4%). The effect of unrealised hedging loss on gold loans and
bullion forward contracts was relatively immaterial to the gross profit margin
as at 31 March 2014, If such effect was excluded, the adjusted gross profit
margin for FY2014 would be 27.7% (FY2013: 28.1%).

As the gold product mix normalised, our adjusted gross profit margin in the
second half of FY2014 improved when compared with that in the first half of
FY2014, which was 29.1% and 26.8%, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B RED N

Financial Review (continued)

Selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses

Our selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses increased to
HK$12,207.2 million (FY2013: HK$9,181.0 million), representing an increase of
33.0%.

The table below sets forth the major items in the selling and distribution
costs and administrative expenses, their respective percentages to revenue,

and their changes when compared to the same period last year:

For the year ended 31 March

B 75 (0] B )

HERDHERANURITHEX
AP E R BRAL R ATRATEE2207 28

BAETQOBHMBFE:9180BEETL) BK
33.0% °
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BE3HAINALEFE 2013 2014

HKS$ million % of revenue® HK$ million % of revenue Increase

BEBT (HEEBEALE HEBT GHEEEIAHL b:d

Staff costs® & TR A 3,250.8 5.7% 4,383.5 5.7% 34.8%
Concessionaire fees® BN H? 2109.7 3.7% 2,558.5 3.3% 21.3%
Rental expenses® f&H%® 1,015.2 1.8% 1,543.3 2.0% 52.0%
Advertising and promotion expenses®
BERSERT® 7972 1.4% 1,035.8 1.3% 29.9%
Depreciation® JTE® 474.8 0.8% 608.0 0.8% 28.1%
Others £t 1,533.3 2.7% 2,078.1 2.7% 35.5%
Total 45t 9,181.0 16.0% 12,207.2 15.8% 33.0%
m The increase was mainly due to the rise in wages level in Mainland China, and M BEEFZHAFERMETITE iR - EEHEEES

was generally in line with the increase of revenue. 44.9% of our staff cost was
performance based

) The increase of concessionaire fees was lower than that of the revenue, which
was mainly caused by a higher portion of gold products sales during the year.
Concessionaire fee rates for gold products were generally lower than those of
the other product categories, and generally lower concessionaire fee rates were
applied to the new POS opened in the lower tier cities

3) The increase was mainly due to the openings of new POS in touristic area and
the renewal of rental contracts in Hong Kong and Macau during FY2014

(&) The increase was generally in line with the increase of revenue

5) The increase was mainly due to the openings of new POS

(©) The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

Net profit, profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company, basic earnings per share and dividend

Our profit for the year increased by 31.2%, from HK$5,678.4 million in FY2013
to HK$7,449.2 million in FY2014, with net profit margin decreased from 9.9%
in FY2013 to 9.6% in FY2014.

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$7,272.0
million (FY2013: HK$5,505.3 million), increased by 32.1% over the same
period last year.

For FY2014, basic earnings per share were HK72.7 cents (FY2013: HK55.1
cents). The Board of Directors recommended the payment of the final
dividend of HK19.0 cents per share (FY2013: HK16.0 cents). Combining with
interim dividend of HK17.0 cents per share, the total annual dividend is
HK36.0 cents per share, representing a dividend payout ratio of
approximately 49.5% on a full year basis.
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Financial Review (continued)

Inventories

Our inventories as at 31 March 2014 reached HK$42,543.7 million, increased
by 55.8% when compared with that as at 31 March 2013 (HK$27,314.8
million). We have increased our inventories for gold products and platinum/
karat gold products, for the strategic purpose of increasing product
exposure and widening product offering spectrum in our retail network. The
selectively added inventories were mainly fast-turning products in order to
gauge the demand for mass luxury jewellery. The table below sets forth the
inventory balances by product as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively:

As at 31 March

B 75 (0] B ()
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HMR204FIANEMGFEER 4254375 EH
JL R2013F3A3NA W2731488 8 B T E K
55.8% ° AEBA RN T E MG ILINE DR & iF
AERBEZREEN  BEMESERLRAS K
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Ef WENBEFEERKENT K TREEME
DEIIR 2014 FE K 2013F 3 AN HNIFEEH ¢

K3AB31H 2013 2014
HK$ million HK$ million Increase
BEBT BEAT L IE
Gem-set jewellery FREEHR & 15,668.4 19,057.0 21.6%
Gold products EEE M 6,927.0 15,537.1 124.3%
Platinum/karat gold products #1%& /K& ZE M 22955 4,029.0 75.5%
Watches $#8% 2,399.8 3,859.1 60.8%
Packing materials B2k} 241 61.5 155.2%
Total #5t 27.314.8 42,543.7 55.8%

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions, including cash
flow from operations, bank borrowings and gold loans. Gold loans and
bullion forward contracts are also used to hedge against the financial impact
of the price fluctuations in the Group’s gold inventories.

The Group’s daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash flow,
and relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy inventory financing needs
during peak seasons, working capital for future expansion plans and
unexpected needs. The Group has not experienced any difficulties in
repaying its borrowings.

The Group’s income and expenditure were mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure (Continued)

The table below sets forth the information regarding the bank balances and
cash, and bank deposits, bank borrowings, gold loans, amount due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, working capital, total equity,
net gearing ratio and operating cash flows before movements in working

capital as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively:

As at 31 March

B 75 (0] B )

RBES  HBERREFRE @

TREFNBEBE2014FER2013E3 [ NBBITEHBNL
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EEET  BEER FELRA
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R3A31H 2013 2014 Denominated Interest rate
HK$ million HK$ million  currency® structure® Maturity®
BEET BEERT FHEE®O MEEEO EHA®
Bank balances and cash, and bank deposits® 8,330.5 9,971.9 Hong Kong Variable N/A NEHA®
RITH BRI MBITER? dollar, interest rate
Renminbi, and JZE)F=
United States
dollar
B ARER
E
Total borrowings 6.186.8 17,314.6  N/A TR N/A TEA N/A TEMA
BER
Bank borrowings® 1,000.0 6,299.6 Hong Kong Variable Within 12 months
RITER® dollar, interest rate  12fAAR
Renminbi, and ;¥ &)H|=
United States
dollar
BT ARER
E
Gold loans® 4,835.7 10,786.8 Renminbi and Fixed interest Within 12 months
HEEE® United States  rate REAR
dollar & il
ARERET
Amount due to non-controlling 3511 228.2 Hong Kong Non-interest On demand
shareholders of subsidiaries dollar, bearing EREEER
FEAIPRER 2 RIFEE AR AR R FUIR Renminbi, and %28
United States
dollar
B ARER
E
Working capital® 31,364.2 35,047.4 N/A TEA N/A TEH N/A @A
BEEL
Total equity 33,860.7 38,452.4 N/A TNEHA N/A TiE A N/A TiE A
R AETE
Net gearing ratio® N/A TEAD 18.5% N/A T@EfA N/A TiEA N/A NEfA

FARAMILEO

24



Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March

B 75 (0] B ()
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BE3IAIHLEE 2013 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEER
Operating cash flows before movements 7,662.6 9,464.9
in working capital
LEASEBA I KLERERE
m Information about denominated currency, interest rate structure and maturity M FHEE®  MERERIBEAMRRZERAR2014F3

related to the condition as at 31 March 2014

) Include pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances
and cash. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had HK$ 500.0 million of short-term
bank deposits with original maturity of 12 months, carrying fixed interest rate at
1.5% per annum. The Group will monitor the interest rates for bank deposits
periodically and leverage the opportunity to enjoy a higher interest rate on idle
funds

3 In light of favourable interest rate environment and projected working capital needs,
we have increased bank borrowings to HK$6,299.6 million as at 31 March 2014

(&) The increase in gold loan was mainly due to the increase in gold products
inventories

) Being net current assets

©) Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash, divided by total equity

@) The Group had a net cash position as at 31 March 2013, and therefore net
gearing ratio is not applicable

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure incurred during FY2014 amounted to
HK$1,368.3 million (FY2013: HK$1,173.6 million), and was primarily used for
the expansion of our POS network and improvements at existing POS.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 March 2014, bank deposit amounted to HK$5.3 million (31 March
2013 HK$25.7 million) mainly represent deposits pledged to a bank to
secure the payment of construction in progress.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2013.

Capital commitments
Details of the Group’s capital commitments as at 31 March 2014 and 31
March 2013 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Business Review

Overview

In FY2014, through effective implementation of business strategies to

capture the greatest growth potential under unprecedented market

conditions, we achieved a strong revenue growth of 34.8% over the same

period last year.

For the year ended 31 March

EE)

e

204 BARFE - ERIFAARROTRT » RMEXEE
EBER - MREANEREN  AMRGERYEE
BER BEFRHERI48% -

BE3IANBLEE 2013 2014

Revenue Revenue Increase

HK$ million % of total HK$ million % of total of revenue
=R L0

BEET HEEAESL BEEBT HEEESE e
Mainland China — Jewellery business
B, — TRE ¥ 29,0985 50.7% 40,516.3 52.4% 39.2%
Mainland China — Watch business
PRI — SEERETS 1,209.9 2.1% 1,631.9 2.1% 34.9%
Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets
B ORFIREMEMTS 27,1255 47 2% 35,258.9 45.5% 30.0%
Total 485 57,433.9 100.0% 77,4071 100.0% 34.8%

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

In terms of Retail Sales Value, which measures the sales in self-operated and
franchised POS at prices sold to end customers, we accomplished an
exciting growth of 33.9% over the same period last year. Retail Sales Value,
an important indicator of our overall market share, captures the total sales
of our products in all “Chow Tai Fook” branded POS, regardless of the
operation model of the POS, and therefore enabling a holistic analysis on

our sales performance.

For the year ended 31 March

Ket - BALATEERAMAELER

REZTEE REEEMNBATEHNHEELRE
FTREZPHHERMEZEERIE  HMNER
TAEE BEFRBERIZ9%  (EREMERD
SHEEMERER TEERETRMERNTR
SERATUATEAR] RERRNTERZBHE -
A BB M S E RIBEIT DT -

BEZE3ANHLEE 2013 2014
Retail Retail Increase of
Sales Value Sales Value Retail Sales
HK$ million % of total HK$ million % of total Value
&R ZEE
BEET (hEEAESL BEBT (hEEEsH TEEIEE
Mainland China — Jewellery business
FERA — BREEK 37,969.4 58.2% 50,321.0 57.7% 32.5%
Mainland China — Watch business
PR — EEREK 1,339.4 2.1% 1,864.4 2.1% 39.2%
Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets
B RPIREMEMTIS 25,885.7 39.7% 35,096.2 40.2% 35.6%
Total #5F 65,194.5 100.0% 87,281.6 100.0% 33.9%
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Business Review (continved)

Overview (Continued)

Following the sharp decrease in international gold price from April to June
2013, we responded quickly and effectively to capitalise on the growth
opportunities arising from the favourable market conditions. The remarkable
growth in gold products, coupled with the growth in both gem-set jewellery
and platinum/karat gold products, validated our business strategy to ride on
the robust volume growth of mass luxury jewellery and the gradual
improvement in consumer confidence. Both Same Store Sales and revenue
from new POS recorded healthy growth during the year. Building on our
competitive advantages developed over time, we strived to extend our
leading position in Greater China’s jewellery markets.

Our 85 years long brand heritage and reputation for delivering high quality
and authentic jewellery products are key factors of our continued success
and widespread brand recognition. In the past years, we have gradually built
a sophisticated vertically integrated business model which allows us to have
an effective and tight control over the entire value chain, from raw material
procurement, design, production and marketing to sales through our
extensive retail network. We offer a broad product portfolio, covering mass
luxury jewellery, high-end jewellery and youth line products. The mass luxury
jewellery segment is absolutely core to us and accounts for most of our
Mainland China’s jewellery market, while the high-end luxury jewellery
segment is created specifically for affluent and discerning customers. Our
quality design and craftsmanship strive to cater to Chinese customers’
increasing demand for sophisticated products. In addition, we have also
launched the youth line products for the younger generations to capture
their growing consumption power and demand for jewellery products. The
wide variety of jewellery products provided enables us to reach an extensive
range of customers across different age groups.

SSSG is an important indicator to our sales performance, as SSSG shows the
growth in sales neglecting the effect of the openings and closings of POS.
Therefore SSSG is the base growth of our revenue growth, reflecting the
fundamental business momentum and enable a better analysis and
understanding of the growth drivers of our revenue.

E G

BE @)

BB SER2013F4 A2 6 B&11E - %
OfE - WARESHNNMRAPFIEEKS - BCE
REEBE  BNLREEREHLAS KEER
HEEE  SIBRMFEAUKBHESADER 2P
FEHEBRBEIREBELELHNE - FA - R
EHE RN T EUNEEEHREREEE - KR
EBTFEVYNBRFEY BB EEAPERZKS
TSGR -

HPIRC KIS FHEAME  ARHELGHRES
MIEENEE  RIBERY MEZmERANEZEE
E-REFEN ZMEETEL - EZENEEE
BEBER - WEXEERMYTEEBERERER
REEEE  BEEMERE  REH EERTSE
BENE  BBEANTEMBETHE - HAREH
ZRtEMES  BEIRKEER REREE
i ANFEREER - TRKEERBHEZHI M
B ER - WHETFEAMIKE N SENBARED  Ma
ENRBEREREMAEBERNEL MR - HIMEE
HERFTRIBETE  RNLAEANEBEHKES
fiE M H g DR o esh - FPITRHELEEEE
—ROFSHREER BRI TEHRINEED
MY IRE TR - HPAVBEREEASEOIRE
B WEETRAFRENTIR

FEHERRRRMHEERANERER  REHE
BEELSEZEHAENZETRTIHEEER B
bt REHERRAERERERNERER KRB
EBNERRY N EPHRMBHEXBEEY NE
TEZENDMRTE -

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2014 27
BARIB2014F F 3



Management Discussion and Analysis
ERETwE DN

Business Review (continued) F 5B EE )
Overview (Continued) WE
The overall SSSG was 18.6% in FY2014 (FY2013: decrease of 3.3%), of which 204 BT E - BEREHEIERA18.6% (201381
SSSG in Mainland China was 17.2% (FY2013: decrease of 3.0%) and SSSG in BFEE: TH33%) HbhmERREEHESE R
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan was 20.1% (FY2013: decrease of 3.7%). The B17.2% (013 HRFE : TE3.0%) * MmES ~ B’
table below sets forth the quarterly SSSG for FY2014 and FY2013: REERNREHEEE R A201% 013 KFE : T
BK37%) o TRIZZFEH 2014 8 B FE K 2013 81
BEENRIEHEER
For the year ended 31 March 2013 For the year ended 31 March 2014
BZ201353R3BILFE BZE2014F30831HLEE
First ~ Second Third Fourth First  Second Third Fourth

Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter Full Year ~ Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter Full Year
BEE F-ZE F-ZE ERZE 2F BEZEE H%-ZFE HZZE H£NZFE 2F

SSSG
FEHEER

Mainland China B A 10.1% (2.8)% M.3% (5.0)% (3.0)% 30.5% 11.0% 13.3% 14.1% 17.2%

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

BB BMARAE 1.3)% (10.9)% (5.5)% 3.8% @)% 67.3% 26.3% 6.8% 9.3)% 20.1%
Overall B 4.2% (7.0)% (8.3)% (0.9)% (3.3)% 47.4% 18.1% 10.0% 3.5% 18.6%
Gem-set jewellery KREEfR & 12.9)% TNH% 25% (15.8)% 9.9% 7.4% 3.4% 7.6% 14.0% 8.4%
Gold products E&Em 14.0% (8.8)% M.2)% 7.9% 0.2)% 77.1% 32.2% 14.4% (1.9)% 27.6%
During the year, the sales from new stores in both Mainland China and Hong FA - FEAMARES - BREAREEZHEIHES
Kong, Macau and Taiwan made meaningful contributions to our revenue, as RS EEELIBEENER AT ELEBRIER
evidenced by the difference between the growth in total retail revenue of 335%HAEEHEERIS6% 2 EZ@EAI R —3 - ¥
33.5% and the SSSG of 18.6%. Ramp-up of new stores are in progress and in- JE BT FEE - IR S TER o

line with our expectations.
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Business Review (continved)

Overview (Continued)

The SSSG for gem-set jewellery and gold products, were 8.4 % and 27.6%
respectively. The SSSG was mainly driven by volume, yet the average selling
price decreased when compared to the same period last year. The following

E G

BE @)

HEFREHRESERNRENELES R A8.4%
%27.6%  FEHERRIETHERESS T
EBBEFRYAMN T - FTRBFIA2014 B EKE

table sets forth the relevant average selling price at FY2014 Same Store EWREAEY FHEE
level:
For the year ended 31 March
BE3IANBLEE
2013 2014
HK$ HK$ Decrease
ABIT BT SRR
Average selling price at FY2014 Same Store level
2014 F BN RIEFEIFEE
Mainland China® /Byt @
Gem-set jewellery® ZRETHHR & 7,55 6,743 (5.8)%?
Gold products® E&EMR® 4,195 3,503 (16.5)%>
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan & « BRI & & /&
Gem-set jewellery TRE iz & #f 15,355 14,062 (8.4)%@
Gold products =& E 6,451 5,417 (16.0)%®
[©) Average selling price in Mainland China includes value-added tax (VAT) m B A ) I E B e FR I E R
(2)  As we adjusted our marketing plans and product offerings in response to (2) ®BREMAEEMISESmARTSHERZTENER
market changes, the decreases in the average selling price for gem-set jewellery HE HUHKEEREMNTHEEETH R
were accompanied by the robust growth in sales volume at Same Store level, FIEEEBR R RN204 8 KEFE - FEIAM
which was 12.9% and 20.8% in FY2014 for Mainland China and Hong Kong, URES  BFARESENHEED B RI20% &
Macau and Taiwan, respectively 20.8%
(3)  Average selling price for gold products decreased mainly due to drop in gold 3 EBSERTHEETHRIZHRESER2014HBER

price in FY2014

TR
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Business Review (continued) E G =1E
POS network SEIREK
During FY2014
As at 31 March 38318 2013 20148 R F[E 2014
Total Openings Closings Total
W FIEEE AIEEE st
Mainland China R E R ith 1,731 348 Mm4) 1,965
Jewellery POS hETEE; 1,640 284 (96) 1,828
Tier | cities —#R3 T 227 20 13) 234
Tier Il cities —& 786 122 (D) 847
Tier Il and other cities =4 K E ™ 627 142 (22) 747
Watch POS $EixT &2, 91 64 (18) 137
Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets
B RFAREMEMNTS 105 11 (4) 112
Hong Kong &% 80 9 3 86
Macau &P 15 1 - 16
Other Asian markets EfthZaii 35 10 1 Q) 10
Total #5t 1836 359 (118) 2,077

In FY2014, we achieved our target to expand our retail network in Mainland
China to cover more inland and lower tier cities. As at 31 March 2014, we had
a total of 2,077 POS (31 March 2013: 1,836). Among these, 1,938 were
jewellery POS (31 March 2013: 1,743) and 139 were watch POS (31 March
2013: 93), with a net of 241 new POS opened in FY2014 (FY2013: 209).
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Business Review (continved)

E G

Mainland China — Jewellery business hEAM — REXER

For the year ended 31 March Increase

BE3IANALEE 2013 2014 %217

Revenue (in HK$ million) &% (BE/ET) 29,098.5 40,516.3 39.2%
Retail T 23117.9 30,508.6 32.0%
Wholesale #13 5,980.6 10,007.7 67.3%

Retail Sales Value (in HK$ million) Z&E(G&/%E7T) 37,969.4 50,321.0 32.5%

Sales volume (in unit) 8= (1F) 9,793,000 14,438,000 47.4%

The increase in sales of gold products and the recovery in wholesale
business contributed to the strong sales growth in Mainland China. While
the sales of gold products stayed strong in the first half of FY2014, we saw
gradual improvement in consumer confidence among our retail customers
and franchisees throughout the year, as evidenced by the improving sales of
gem-set jewellery in the second half of the year. The increase was mainly
driven by SSSG, which was primarily driven by the notable volume growth
of mass luxury jewellery.

We expect the proportion of revenue generated from Mainland China to
increase in the long run, attributable to the nationwide continual
urbanisation, the growing affluence of Mainland Chinese people in terms of
increasing disposable income per capita and growing demand for luxury
goods.

EeEMBAEHER ARBBEXBER  HHTER
WIHEIERRY - EEEMN 2014 FHEE L FH
HEMAER THERERRAHNHEE —FIR
T BRFRATERESRNERAEBEOTES K
ZoBETIZRIRRTHERZLEE  THRIEH
BRI -

BEE B RWRLF A - hRIN A A BT R
EF - EMEACEM HREHROFRBELR
- BfRGRETEAMAGEEEAOLLEFR
EFte
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Business Review (continued) 5B )
Mainland China — Jewellery business (Continued) hE R — BREER @)

Retail Sales Value and POS
ZEERTEH

2013 2014
By tier of cities & ™ A& 5l &2
(Total: 1,640 jewellery POS) (Total: 1,828 jewellery POS)
(&% 1,640EHRATEH) (&% 1,828 EHHTER)

For the year As at
ended 31 March 31 March

18.1%
8.9%,38.2% 13.8% 40.9% 12.8%
BZE3AMALFE MIA3MNAB
By By
Retail Sales Value POS
EEE (ETER
Tier | —#% ] ]
Tier Il =% | |
Tier IIl & others =42 2 ] |
47.9% 46.3%,

By geography iZithEE|5

(Total: 1,640 jewellery POS) (Total: 1,828 jewellery POS)
(&5 1 1,640 KRB ZTER) (&5t 1 1,828 EHEZTER)

For the year As at
ended 31 March 31March
HE3ABMBELFE  MIA3MA
By By

Retail Sales Value POS
HEEE HTER

Eastern 5 ] |

Southern & | ] ]

Western g | ] [ |

Northern it | ] |

Central H | |

Northeastern &1t [ ] [ |

By operation model Z&EENES
(Total: 1,640 jewellery POS) (Total: 1,828 jewellery POS)
(B3 1,640EHRETEH) (&% 1,828 EHHTER)

For the year As at

ended 31 March 31March
HESAMBLFE K3A3MA

By By
Retail Sales Value POS
EEEE EEER

Self-operated
(Concessionaire) & % (Hif) n u
Self-operated . .
(Others) B (Hft)
Franchised 708 | | [ ]

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Hist - BoLEstE RSB AER =
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Business Review (continved)

E G

Mainland China — Jewellery business (Continued) FE R — BREBERK )

As at 31 March

MW3A31R 2013 2014

Jewellery POS — net openings AhEZE2E — JF5/EHH 192 188
Proportion (by tier of cities) ¥ BRI DI E DL,
— Tier | cities — 43T 10.4% 3.7%
— Tier |l cities — &R 31.3% 32.4%
— Tier Il and other cities =43 & E b 58.3% 63.8%

Total #5t 100.0% 100.0%

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

In recent years, we have been focusing on POS expansion in Tier lll and
lower tier cities in order to achieve a faster and broader coverage. These
cities which experience higher economic growth are in general more resilient
to global economic fluctuation and have seen rapid expansion in their
jewellery markets. At the same time, we continued to upgrade the
positioning and branding of our POS in Tier | and Il cities to cater for the
sophisticated consumers in these cities. The franchised operation model
enables us to leverage the local knowledge and customer base of our
franchisees, which is crucial to the POS expansion plan in Tier lll and lower
tier cities.

In FY2014, concessionaire stores within department stores or shopping malls
in Mainland China, in which the host received the payments for us and took
a commission of our sales in form of concessionaire fees, remained the vast
majority of our self-operated POS in Mainland China. The remaining self-
operated POS were standalone stores in which we received payments
directly from our customers.

Often occupying prime locations with high pedestrian traffic and having
operating infrastructure in place, department stores and shopping malls are
crucial to the expansion of our retail network. POS openings within
department stores or shopping malls offer us an added advantage to
leverage broader marketing activities in acquiring new customers. As such,
we will continue to partner strategically with leading retail enterprises that
operate department stores while also respond actively to the shopping mall
development trend to cope with the changing consumer preferences in
Mainland China.

Our inventories as at 31 March 2014 reached HK$19,575.3 million, increased
by 86.3% when compared with that as at 31 March 2013 (HK$10,505.1
million). The increase was mainly contributed by rising inventory levels in
gold products and platinum/karat gold products, for the strategic purpose
of increasing product exposure in our extensive retail network, bringing
more contemporary and stunning designs to our customers. The selectively
added inventories were mainly fast-turning products in order to gauge the
demand for mass luxury.

Kret - BALFTEERAMAELER

fF - B EETE=GRRRAEHTHREERH
Wi BHEREREABEEEENE - thERT
FABRRRBEE  —RNEHEREERSNRE
N8E BREMSRRTRR - B HIFESER
TR =R RSB mHTERELLRETLR - A8
BRERTHRMEHEEE - MBEERAFBREM
EAMERHEMNRBARETFER  WE=R
RERBBTMRTEHAR ZAIEEEE

BARBEERARIKBEYHEARENSE  AEAF
HBYESE R B EE - LR P NREE
MEERBEBHR - 2014 TEFE - FHEDERAFIF
BAMBASD cEETER EBRNEETEHR
BIJE - ZEFLEEEAR P UEH S REE

HRAERARLEYESBELEAMBYERE - AR
B - IR EERRE ML HNREMTERER
HEEZ -RNEERAAABYRSRARTEMRTER
BB ERRXEYEHSRRBRANT SRS
AR E P - Bl BAISEEREEREARL
RGO REYESNERBE BT ELEE
TREUESE R NBaPERNMEEEZ LS
BELT °

BMIR2014F 3 ANAMFEZERN9,575.38 8B T
201343 A31 B 810,505 @ B8 LR 86.3% ©
ENEZAAESERMAS KEERTENKE L
Tt UEBR R EF A T & A58 hNE BRI &M
EFETRESHABENZL I ZRBEEN - BINTFE
MEMRCBKE  TTABHEER UWENEFPHE

MIRE AR
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B RED N

Business Review (continued)

Mainland China — Watch business

In FY2014, revenue from our watch business in Mainland China amounted to
HK$1,631.9 million (FY2013: HK$1,209.9 million), representing an increase of
34.9%. The increase was mainly driven by the opening of new POS.

During the year, we had 46 net openings in Mainland China. As at 31 March
2014, our total number of watch POS in Mainland China increased to 137 (31
March 2013: 91). In light of the market dynamics in the watch segment, we
may seek to consolidate our watch POS network to improve operational
efficiency.

Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets

For the year ended 31 March

E G =1E

PER — EERE

R2014HEEE - HPIFPBEARHEGRESEEEL
1,631.9B&EL(2013MBFE : 1,209.98 &)
WR349%  TEZHHENTELSH -

FER - BMERBEAFRRI6ESTED - B 2014
F3A3NH RAETEANMNERTEHEHILE
137 (20133 A 318 : 9Ml) < EREHE D EH T
BERE RS KBEABHRTEUR/E  UKE
BIBWR o

8 B REMENTES

BZ3A3NBLEE Increase
2013 2014 HEIE
Revenue (in HK$ million) &% % (BEBTT) 27,1255 35,258.9 30.0%
Settled through China UnionPay or Renminbi
I R B SR B S A RIS RTAR 53.1% 60.1% 7.0%
Retail Sales Value — Jewellery products (in HK$ million)
TEE -KBER(BEAT) 24,099.2 33,358.5 38.4%
Sales volume (in unit) $#H2 (1) 3,821,000 6,066,000 58.8%

While the sharp decrease in gold price significantly boosted the sales of
gold products in Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets, sales growth
was also achieved across gem-set jewellery and platinum/karat gold
products. While we have seen signs of recovery in consumer sentiment of
both Hong Kong locals and Mainland Chinese visitors, consumers were more
cautious in spending in view of the economic environment. Their purchases
shifted from high-end luxury jewellery pieces to mass luxury jewellery
products with an average selling price from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000. In
FY2014, mass luxury gem-set jewellery and gold products maintained a
sustainable growth in sales, mainly driven by the notable volume growth.

The revenue settlement currencies indicated that Mainland Chinese visitors
continued to be the major source of revenue in Hong Kong and Macau.
According to the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of Hong
Kong and the Macau Statistics and Census Service, in FY2014, the number
of Mainland Chinese visitors to Hong Kong and Macau increased by 16.8%
and 13.5% compared to the same period last year, to 42.7 million and 19.4
million respectively.
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Business Review (Continued)

Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets (Continued)

Nevertheless, recently we see signs of decrease in inbound Mainland tourist
numbers in Hong Kong and Macau and the rise of alternative travel
destinations for Mainland Chinese tourists. To cope with these challenges,
we strive to enhance our customer services and improve our customers’
shopping experience. While we expect that the unique shopping
environment with a Chinese heritage, more diverse product offerings and a
consumer tax-free environment would continue to make Hong Kong and
Macau popular destinations for Mainland Chinese tourists, there are
uncertainties about how the change in inbound tourism from mainlanders
would affect our business. In light of the above, we take a flexible approach
to our POS rollout strategy aiming to enhance store productivity in Hong
Kong and Macau.

E G =18

&8 - BREMENTES @

BEMLL - RPHI R DB R R NN R E
BAETRBS MmEMKERMBAEELEZE - B
ENRELE  RUZHEAZFPRG  HETPH
By BRUEBEEPRELCEY  BYER
BY  EmMBERRAYEYBRHUHEN - RMAH
RS AT B A i E 2 PIRIRE B et - M
B0 9 3 7 5 B 50 R b [ 0 B S AT R B AP RO 2
% REDERAMZH - ER LARE - HAEER
WETEMERRR LRRBEETE - WERAES

Rk o

Retail Sales Value and POS

2013

POS in Hong Kong/Macau
BREETER
(Total: 95 POS)

(&%t 95 EZESR)

For the year As at
ended 31 March
HEIAMHILEE  H3A3MA

By By
Retail Sales Value POS
HEER HEER
Touristic area ##&[& [ | ||
Other area Hfi[& || | ]

Touristic area includes Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui, Mong Kok, Yau Ma Tei,
and Sheung Shui in Hong Kong, and Macau.

In FY2014, we opened 10 POS in Hong Kong and Macau, of which 8 POS
were opened in touristic area. We continued to consolidate our POS
network in Hong Kong, expand the gross floor area of selected POS with
great growth potential, and relocate some POS to areas with higher
customer traffic so as to capture more sales opportunities and enhance POS
performance and efficiency.

Our inventories as at 31 March 2014 reached HK$20,288.4 million, increased
by 30.7% when compared with that as at 31 March 2013 (HK$15,521.3 million).
The increase in inventories was generally in line with the corresponding sales
growth during the year.

2014

POS in Hong Kong/Macau
BREETER
(Total: 102 POS)
(&5 102EZEE)

64.7%

For the year As at

ended 31 March 31March
HEIAMHILEE  H3A3MA

By By
Retail Sales Value POS
EEER HEER
Touristic area #&[& | ] |
Other area Hf[& || | ]

BREBENETREEEEZMEL  KPHE - E
A Shn A 2K - RORPT -

K204 BRFEE - BMOASBRHERZIOMTE2, -
HhgEZTEHRNERRE - RPFIEEZRATENT
EEPE  BEREUETAEREABREINEEEE
B EmE WBHHTERABE ARBENME -
NFREZHERS RIZPATEUNRIBIME -

BRMR204F3ANE M T EEF20,28848 &
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Business Review (continved F 5B EE )

Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets (Continued) B8 - BRMAREMEMNTE @

As at 31 March 2014, we had 2 watch POS (31 March 2013: 2) in Hong Kong MR2014F 3 /31H » RARBRMEEG 2EEZRSE

and Macau. To create a one-stop shopping experience in Hong Kong and F(2013F3A31H : 21f) - BYIA B R E A —uh

Macau, we had 38 POS that retailed both jewellery and watch products as XEW L - R2014F3A31H » HFIAHET 381E

at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: 33). TEZRBTERE S NEEKEM(2013F3 A 31
B 331 ) o

Product offerings EmEE

We offer a wide range of jewellery products, covering mass luxury jewellery RAREZ TG EEMER BRIGHKRE - &

to high-end jewellery and youth line products, to fulfill different market ERENEFSUREESR IR TENTHEEK - &

segments. Our product designs range from classic designs, such as gold PHEREAKRES G HESHEHMIN MEEFHE

dowry for weddings, to contemporary designs, such as jewellery that AR e KEEREAREAZEM -

incorporates diamonds and gemstones in platinum or karat gold setting. HPZTENERERBEDETEALETRKBENS

Such a broad product range fits the needs of our customers at their different T aEER  BEMBELSS EERENRAE

life stages, including birthdays, weddings and anniversaries, etc. In particular, BENLHAKTPERETENMARET S -

event-driven and self-rewarding purchases are the two important drivers of
jewellery retail sales in Greater China.

Diversified product portfolio ZtERES
Event-driven category Self-rewarding category
EERsER BEER

+
g N

%4 2
e ,ﬁzl,? Eaid r
‘?i’»%@ Jik: 4
& o ? f 1]
\ | U =
~ et i
o St
“The Perfect One” Wedding “Charming Gold” Collection “Imperial” Collection "Ombre di Milano” Collection
Collection [EEES] 5 [mperial ] 7] [Ombre di Milano| &7l
[ The Perfect One|
TEEEIEKRT
3 F — ,
-‘._ 'u‘- g dmb '_\&E
(ﬁ e s N
‘ | . L -
=y g} Sl
@~ " - "y
Other Collections “"Bao Bao Family” Collection “Disney Classic” & “Disney
eS| [BEEE] %5 Winnie the Pooh” Collection

AR | %25 %
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Business Review (continved)

Marketing and branding

Our success depends significantly on our strong and multi-faceted brand
perception across all regions, and our ability to adapt to customers’
changing demand for jewellery and consumption habits in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau. In recent years, we continue to see a growing
demand for gem-set jewellery products and in particular, the demand for
more stylish and contemporary designed jewellery pieces with exceptional
craftsmanship is expected to experience further growth. In response to the
gradual change in customer appetite, we have spearheaded the offering of
a broader series of jewellery collections including gem-set jewellery and
platinum/karat gold jewellery products. We also aim at strategically
enhancing our brand awareness in Greater China by introducing one-of-a-
kind high jewellery pieces through jewellery auctions for an exclusive group
of customers to entrench our position as a leading world-class jeweller.

We offer a series of jewellery collections for customers of our three product
segments: mass luxury jewellery, high-end luxury jewellery and youth line
products.

Mass luxury segment

Wedding Collections

We believe that the wedding market is booming. The sales of wedding-
related jewellery, including diamond products, contributed a significant
share to our total sales in FY2014 and we strive to seize this valuable
business opportunity by strengthening our marketing efforts to promote
“The Perfect One” Wedding Collection. This collection was extensively
promoted through a series of advertising channels including print and online
media, TV commercial and outdoor billboard. These promotions were highly
effective and received encouraging customer response.

For instance, we aimed to promote wedding proposal culture across the
nation through a viral marketing campaign during FY2014. Video clips of
marriage proposals by selected customers were uploaded on

Chow Tai Fook’s official channels of its strategic campaign partners,
YouTube and Youku, and attracted over 30 million views.

To provide a one-stop experience to wedding couples, we introduced “The
Perfect One E-stamp programme” under “The Perfect One Wedding
Campaign 2014”. With marriage being a lifelong journey, Chow Tai Fook
offers a wide range of products to cater to different stages of bridal needs,
from engagement ring, which represents a man'’s pledge to his fiancée;
wedding band, which is a testament to a perfect union between lovers; and
traditional gold jewellery, which conveys the blessing of elders. In May 2013,
we launched the Chow Tai Fook Wedding Planning iPhone and Android
applications, providing customers with convenient access to various
wedding information and useful tips for successful wedding planning.

E G

SRR mEEL

BRI BERN SR ZENEERETER - B
B BaTEA BRI R TP HIKE 55T
KEHBEBRENEE - 5 RMEEINELPHUURE
BREMHAFRERRY - FRIRERARRRHE
FIBENKRE BHNFTRLAHHKRIELEN - BLE
BRESHESNE  RMEMGHEHEZTIENIRE
HHARD BERESREN  HE KEEHER -
BATEBAEETFPHENKERELRY  HHE
—E_WMREREEH - A RBEMIEA N K E
BHmIERA > WERERPHESERBEE —HEARE
PR RSEHAL

BAREFPRENKERIN/=H  TRUE £
EURBRFEREER °

ERKREER

ISR A

HFREEGETISED - E5AE B (BEEH)H
HERNHM204BRFENRHEERIEAEEZNL
B mERMEDNRTSHERTEARREEREE
WEBERSHENWEERERNHEE [The Perfect
Onel BXRBEBERY - BFEDRIRAE LEE  ERE
ERPINEERSE  KERE  BEREESR -

flan - F AR 2014 B BUF E R P AR X WIS ES
3 BRAEZEMEREL - HPINEEEDHE
HYouTube R BB Z A AIRE 7588 LHIFERP
FIESRG A B WEIEEIB 3,000 B AREE -

AL [The Perfect One T X115 EE) 2014 ] &
K [TRIBIRETFEIE]  BEMARM BB
o MR RETNONARE  BRAERREZZHES
HARDEEBTRMNEZEE  FIEMBEREELHTE
RER  BERARR-ANEY  MESNSHRERR
LHEITANRE - R2013F5 A - HAHEBEKEE
B EliPhone X Android ERER - LEZXFER
LIEBIFEMA KK EERENERRED -

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2014 37
BARIB2014F F 3



Management Discussion and Analysis

B RED N

Business Review (continued)

Mass luxury segment (Continued)

“Chow Tai Fook 520” Collection

In March 2014, we entered into an exclusive distributorship with Aaron Shum
Jewelry for the Greater China region, whereby we launched the

“Chow Tai Fook 520" Collection in Aaron Shum Jewelry’s innovative
patented Coronet Solitaire design in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan. With its worldwide patented design, each piece of Coronet Solitaire
is made from 7 high calibre diamonds set with no prong holding the centre
diamond, along with precision of cut, symnmetry and polish, which attributes
to the best fit proportion to conceive luminous solitaire diamond effect.

With this unique technique, every product of the “Chow Tai Fook 520"
Collection stands out from any other similar products in the market, and
convey the same sincere message for the special one — “l love you” (the
pronounciation of “520” and "I love you” in Mandarin are similar).

Disney’s Collections

Our product lines include designs based on the long-lasting Disney
characters. In January 2014, we opened our first Disney Zone in our
ISQUARE store in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong, and exhibited a 90-cm tall
gold figurine of Mickey Mouse to celebrate the 90th anniversary of Disney.

During the year, roadshows were held in Mainland China for the “Disney
Princess” Collection. In addition, a signature “Cinderella Glass Slipper”
jewellery set was donated to the "BAZAAR Stars Charity Night 2013” in
Beijing for charity auction and raised RMB1.5 million in October 2013.

Rio Tinto fashion jewellery — “Caprice” and “Blissful” Collections
To explore diamond fashion jewellery market in Mainland China, we worked
closely with our strategic partner Rio Tinto and launched the “Caprice” and
“Blissful” Collections during the year. The “Caprice” Collection, containing an
amazing mechanism to inject different styles into one jewellery piece, is
perfect for all kinds of occasion. The “Caprice” Collection is an affordable
and playful collection for working ladies.

The “Blissful” Collection is characterised by the blue bird that symbolises
happiness. It consists of a variety of 18K yellow and rose gold pendants and
rings with hollowed out design. For every item, the flying blue bird invariably
looks vivacious and is complemented with sparkling natural diamonds,
echoing the feminine beauty and inner strength of modern women.

High-end luxury segment

“Reflections of Siem” High Jewellery 2014 Private Preview

In March 2014, we held the preview of our annual High Jewellery Collection,
“Reflections of Siem”, in Hong Kong, showcasing the stunningly beautiful
jewellery pieces to entranced Chow Tai Fook guests and members. This
year's collection, “Reflections of Siem”, was inspired by the storied and
historical nation of Cambodia, whose natural beauty and culture have
withstood triumphs and tribulations, and the test of time. Featuring twelve
breathtaking sets with inspiring titles from The Chant to The Halcyon, the
sumptuous collection represents the pinnacle of Chow Tai Fook’s creative
vision and expert craftsmanship. Having made its debut in Hong Kong, it is
being showcased in cities around Mainland China. The “Reflections of Siem”
High Jewellery Collection will be placed on auction in October 2014.
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Business Review (continved)

High-end luxury segment (Continued)

Collaboration with Simon Ma — “Nature Chant” Collection

In December 2013, Chow Tai Fook and Mr. Simon Ma, a world-renowned
Chinese designer and artist, held a press conference to celebrate the
unveiling of their collaboration, “Nature Chant « Classic”. Inspired by their
mutual respect for nature, Mr. Simon Ma and Chow Tai Fook created a
collection of truly unique pieces. These works brought to life the concepts
of sincerity and eternity, two elements of beauty that Chow Tai Fook
treasures and values for years. Inspired by the nature and the interpretation
of “Grand Love”, the “Nature Chant « Drops” Collection was also launched in
the same event. These state-of-the-art pieces are exhibited in our Beijing
Qianmen Flagship Store to showcase our artistry in high jewellery pieces.

“Imperial” Collection appreciation events

During the year, “Imperial” Collection appreciation events were held in
Beijing, Qingdao, Shanghai and Guangzhou to explore potential customers
and strengthen relationship with existing high-end customers. Combining
the essence of our designs with superior craftsmanship, the

“Imperial” Collection recreated royal treasures in ancient China to evoke
Chow Tai Fook’s long history. Sophisticated designs inspired by Chinese
imperial legends were showcased in this prestigious collection to promote
and uplift our brand image.

Youth line

“Pleasant Goat and Big Big Wolf” Collection and “Bao Bao Family”
Collection

Aiming to enrich our product offerings in the newborns and teenagers
segments, we joined hands with “Pleasant Goat and Big Big Wolf”, one of
the most popular and recognisable cartoons in Mainland China, to create a
collection for the animated series in December 2013. This collection,
featuring groups of joyful goats and wolves in gold, represent gifts of
blessing and happiness for our young fans.

Making their first ever appearances in theatre, our popular in-house
designed “Bao Bao Family” products were presented in the animated movie
"Pleasant Goat and Big Big Wolf Meet The Pegasus” in January 2014,
extending our warmest Chinese New Year blessings to the audience. In the
upcoming Year of the Goat, the “Pleasant Goat and Big Big Wolf” Collection
is set to shine.

“Hello Kitty” Collection

Ladies of all ages recognise Hello Kitty as a sweet, adorable and enchanting
symbol. To bring this fictional character to life for its most loyal and long-
lasting supporters, we partnered with Hello Kitty and developed a collection
targeting young female customers in Mainland China. With a variety of
products ranging from diamond jewellery to gold and silver ornaments, this
collection is perfect for self-rewarding purpose and gifting occasions.
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Business Review (continued)
Chow Tai Fook Membership Programme

As at 31 March

E G =1E

BXEEE:TE

M3A31H 2013 2014
Mainland China FE it

Number of members €@ 8§ H 1,081,000 1,231,000
% of Diamond, Platinum and Gold members (Note) &4 ~ A& RES€E% (f:7) N/A N 10.5%
% of Basic members (Note) EAREE% (KfzF) N/A i 89.5%
Total #5t+ N/A i A 100.0%
Members’ repeat purchases as a % of Retail Sales Value @ BB EBRTEEZ% 21.9% 23.4%
Number of Fans members (Note) Fans members 88 (ff:) N/A “iE A 2,258,000
Hong Kong and Macau & &b &

Number of members @ BB 98,000 161,000
% of Diamond, Platinum and Gold members #4 - $HE R EEEE% 6.9% 9.9%
% of Pre members & E % 93.1% 90.1%
Total #5t 100.0% 100.0%
Members’ repeat purchases as a % of Retail Sales Value @ 8 BB ETEEL% 15.5% 17.5%

Note: In April 2013, we revamped the membership programme in Mainland China and
upgraded the tier requirements. As a result, comparative figures by members’
tier are unavailable

Through continuous effort to strengthen our membership programme, we
aim to enhance our ability to understand consumers’ spending behaviour
and preferences and gauge market trends. Our membership programme is
crucial in maintaining our Same Store Sales by encouraging repeat
purchases and attracting new customers. The steady repeat purchases ratio
was primarily attributable to our effective strategies and efforts in
interacting with existing members as well as in acquiring new members.

Customers are entitled to join different tiers of the membership programme
upon making qualified spending. Members can enjoy benefits such as cash
coupons and lifestyle events. Members in the highest-tier are invited to
special events such as jewellery auctions and luxurious overseas trips. The
related marketing and public relations campaign placed Chow Tai Fook in a
whole new league within the high-end luxury jewellery market in Mainland
China.

To nourish our younger customers’ loyalty to our brand and to encourage
repeat purchases in a larger population, we introduced a new and separate
tier of “Fans members” in Mainland China in April 2013 when we revamped
the membership programme. With no spending requirement, any potential
customer could become our fans member through our online channels or
our extensive retail network at his/her convenience. Fans members are
encouraged to accumulate their spending for admission to the membership
programme once their spending meets the formal membership
requirements.
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Business Review continued)
E-commerce

For the year ended 31 March

E G

ETEH

BE3IAIBALEE 2013 2014
Annual growth in Retail Sales Value ZEEFZILIR 177.7% 90.7%
Average daily traffic in unique visitor (Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall and JD.com)

THERREE - TEESHE (ARNEAEIERE - RERRR) 81,000 122,000
As at 31 March

MA3A31H 2013 2014
Number of followers (Official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and WeChat accounts)

B AB GRS - BAABIERBIEE FIRP) 748,000 1,448,000

In FY2014, our e-commerce business maintained its strong momentum
generated from past years. Chow Tai Fook was continuously ranked the
“Best Selling Jewellery Brand” on Tmall and was constantly ranked among
the top five in the Baidu search rankings for luxury products. Chow Tai Fook
was also ranked first in digital competence in Mainland China among local
and international watches and jewellery brands, according to L2’s Digital IQ
Index.

Over the past years, we have given a lot of weight to e-commerce, and will
continue to unleash its power to make it more than just a transactional
platform. We will deploy e-commmerce and mobile adoption as powerful
tools to extract online-to-offline (“O20”) synergy that would serve as a
marketing, branding and customer relationship management channel to our
customers, especially the younger generations. For instance, starting from
September 2013, our members in Mainland China can bundle their accounts
to WeChat to access their account information, receive promotional details
and purchase Chow Tai Fook products online via WeChat. Riding on this
new feature, we strategically target to direct members to visit our eShop
through a multitude of benefits and incentives, when they purchase in our
physical stores.

We would leverage O20 with a view to achieving a win-win business
between physical stores and online platforms. One successful story was the
upsurge in the “Beads of Elements” Collection. With five gold charms
representing the Sun, the Moon, the Star, the Fog and the Thunder, this
collection symbolises different wishes that bring fortune, wealth,
advancement, wisdom, and vigorousness. Early this year, there were
widespread discussions on WeChat and Sina Weibo about this collection.
The tremendous attention on social media translated into long queues
outside some of our stores in Mainland China, and the stocks in store ran out
within hours. Making use of our pre-ordering services via WeChat and our
Tmall platform, we responded quickly and managed to meet customers’
needs through our online channels.
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Business Review (continued)

E-commerce (Continued)

Another O20 application was the opening of our 2,000th POS in Wuhan in
January 2014. This POS was our first ever experiential store to be equipped
with interactive technologies, including virtual receptionists and showcases,
a big touch screen allowing customers to select products, making purchase
and payment online through QR codes and smartphones, and a storefront
display to interact with pedestrians. As the leading jeweller with strong
digital competence, we are capable of leveraging O20 synergy to offer
exciting and innovative shopping experience to our customers.

Procurement and diamond cutting & polishing

For the year ended 31 March
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BZ3A3HLLEE 2013 2014
Diamond cut and polished (in carat) #& A 08| %47 (A FHst) 189,000 198,000
As at 31 March

MW3A318 2013 2014
Number of employees in diamond cutting and polishing sites

EAYIE AT EE 8 E B A 2,000 2,200

As at 31 March 2014, we had four diamond cutting and polishing sites. Two
of such sites are located in South Africa, one of such is located in Shunde,
Mainland China, and the fourth one was opened in Botswana during the
year. We take a flexible approach in procuring diamonds, with reference to
local market conditions.

Our well-established relationships with De Beers, Rio Tinto and ALROSA
ensure a supply of quality products, and allow us to make selection ahead of
other peers from the available stock from a number of suppliers.

During the year, we entered into a long-term exclusive supply and licensing
agreement with Crossworks, a diamond supplier, for its patented hearts and
arrows ideal cut square diamond. The “Magic Square” Collection was
launched in November 2013 to introduce the premium hearts and arrows
ideal square cut diamond to Greater China market.
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Business Review (Continued)

R&D and production

E G

MEREE
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Business Review (continued)
R&D and production (Continued)

As at 31 March

E G =1E

MBEREEE)

M3A31H 2013 2014
Number of R&D team members W EBKK EEE 340 670
Number of employees in jewellery production sites SRE A EHMESH A 4,600 5,600

Our diverse product offerings are conceived by our strong R&D Department,

comprising jewellery designers and goldsmiths who work closely with our
production management and sales management departments to ensure

that the product design direction is well aligned with market needs. As part

of this strategic initiative, we expanded and restructured the R&D
Department during the year, aiming to bring in more diverse talent and
innovative thinking to the team.

Our production site in Hong Kong mainly produces gem-set jewellery
products, while our site in Shenzhen mainly produces gem-set jewellery
products, our site in Shunde mainly produces gem-set jewellery, gold and
platinum/karat gold products, and our site in Wuhan first produces gold
products.

In FY2014, the decrease of the proportion of overall in-house production
was mainly due to the upsurge in sales of gold products, which were
primarily produced by outsourced producers. We keep a well-balanced
portfolio of in-house and outsourced production. Since gem-set products
require a higher level of skills and techniques, they are primarily produced
by our in-house craft masters.

To ensure that our jewellery products, either produced in or outside our
production sites, meet all quality testing requirements, we implement strict
quality controls, with testings undertaken in our precious metal testing
laboratory in Shenzhen.
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Business Review (continved)
Human resources management

As at 31 March

E G

ADERER

M3A31H8 2013 2014
Number of employees (excluding staff of franchisees) EE&E (FEIEMBEFHE L) 31,700 36,100
By function: #ZBigE 5 ¢
Sales (at POS) $H&E (RTEE) 20,800 23,100
R&D and Production #13$ &4 & 5,000 6,200
Procurement and Diamond Cutting & Polishing £ [ A 1) 2 K 47 = 2,000 2,400
Management, General and Administration & « —#& M 1T 3,900 4,400

Human resources are our greatest assets and we regard the personal
development and well-being of our employees as highly important. During
the year, we launched a new electronic human resources system to improve
our resources data analysis and manpower planning. We are committed to
enhancing employee development and motivating our employees with clear
career paths and opportunities for advancement.

For instance, senior executives are sponsored to study EMBA programmes
in prestigious educational institutes; management personnel are invited to
attend seminars to polish their management skills and emotional quotient;
sales staff are required to attend training programmes on customer service
and product knowledge; technicians and craftsmen are provided with
ongoing technical training to ensure excellence in product quality; and
selected fresh graduates are trained and nurtured in the dedicated
Management Trainee programme.

During the year, we developed the “Wisdom Dynamic Programme” for
selected frontline and back office staff members from operational to
managerial grades. This initiative aimed to enhance participants’
communication and thinking skills through all-round training, with the aid of
neuro-linguistic programming coaching. To encourage and promote lifelong
learning among its employees, we also participated in the Qualifications
Framework in Hong Kong, which is a seven-level hierarchy of qualifications
covering academic, vocational and continuing education sectors.

In FY2014, we offered about 3,000 staff training courses and the aggregate
training hours attended during the year exceeded 1,000,000 hours. As at 31
March 2014, we had nine specialised jewellery training centres across
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Business Review (continued)

Development projects

To meet the needs of the changing and growing jewellery retail market and
to support our future business growth, we have embarked on the
development of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan, Hubei, a new
Mainland China headquarters in Yantian, Shenzhen and a South China
automated distribution centre in Shunde.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park

The Jewellery Park, situated in China’s transportation hub of Wuhan, Hubei,
is set to become our largest integrated production and logistics centre in
the future. Development of gross floor area of approximately 436,000
square metres on a land parcel of approximately 221,000 square metres
have already started. Upon completion, it will serve as a multi-functional,
integrated platform combining jewellery production, logistics and
distribution, sales exhibition and tourism, training, e-commerce and jewellery
business support.

Investments in the Jewellery Park for which specific plans have been made
amount to approximately HK$2.6 billion, for which HK$130.2 million have
been spent up to FY2014. Construction of the Jewellery Park commenced in
October 2013 and will be partially completed in August 2014. Jewellery
production is expected to commence in September 2014 and we target the
Jewellery Park to reach an annual production capacity of one million
jewellery pieces by the end of FY2015.
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Investment classification (with specific plans)

EEABREZRESR

ﬂ 15.8%

I Furniture, fixtures and equipment i - #E R E#E

Il Land and buildings i fEF

Il Plant and machinery & motor vehicles /5 « #8327 8

The Jewellery Park will further leverage our strategic strengths in vertical
integration and enhance the capacity and efficiency of our supply chain and,
thereby forging a solid foundation for sustainable business growth and
development in the long term.
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Business Review (continved)

Development projects (Continued)

New Mainland China headquarters

Construction of the new Mainland China headquarters in Shenzhen, China
was completed during FY2014, upon which operations have commenced
progressively. Remaining internal fitting works are expected to be
completed in FY2015.

South China automated distribution centre

The South China automated distribution centre in Shunde, China will
manage all our products manufactured in South China region on a
consolidated basis, and some of our distribution processes will be
automated, to further enhance our capacity and efficiency. The South China
automated distribution centre is scheduled to complete systems installation
in FY2015, upon which test runs of the Centre would commence.
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Prospects and Strategies
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Prospects

Going forward, the Group is optimistic about its prospect as well as the
outlook of the markets in which we operate in the medium to long run. We
have every confidence in the economic development of Mainland China,
being one of the world’s strongest economies and the second largest luxury
market; and we are positive about Hong Kong for having the fundamentals
and strengths to remain a vibrant global business platform and a favourite
tourist and shopping destination.

As the market leader, we also build our confidence on the solid foundations
and strong financials that we have long established, as well as the core
competence and competitive strengths that we have held on to for years.
The Group is not only able to capture opportunities and optimise returns
during good times but also capable of meeting challenges and weathering
adversities in the face of market volatility and economic headwinds.

We believe, in the medium to long run, the demand for traditional jewellery,
both gold and gem-set alike, for special occasions and festive celebrations
will stay strong and the popularity of fashion jewellery will increase among
young and online customers who have rapidly emerged as a new
consumption power. This holds true for both the Mainland China and Hong
Kong and Macau markets.

Irrespective of a slowdown in the Mainland China economy in recent years,
the country still remains a top performer beating many developed
economies around the world. Over the last decade, jewellery consumption
growth nearly doubled the GDP growth; and according to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the retail sales from gold, silver and jewellery
sector in 2013 posted a 25.8% year-on-year growth. Based on these official
statistics, jewellery demand in Mainland China has been on a rise
continuously and steadily for years. We believe this upward trend will
continue and we are also confident that our business will continue to benefit
from the colossal market potential in Mainland China, especially in the
lower-tier inland cities where economic growth and resilience to macro-
economic changes are both strong.

Hong Kong will continue to benefit from being a sophisticated jewellery hub
not only in Asia, but also in the world as it is highly acclaimed for
sophisticated jewellery design and craftsmanship at competitive prices
under the duty-free policy. The jewellery market will continue to be
supported by local consumers underpinned by the favourable job prospects
and income conditions, and inbound tourists who will continue to appreciate
Hong Kong as their destination, given that measures will be introduced to
improve the existing infrastructures and increase tourist facilities.
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Strategies

As our business expands and diversifies rapidly amid a market landscape
that is faster changing than ever before with growing complexities and
intensified competitions, we adopt a holistic approach to implementing our
brand, product and network expansion strategies in tandem with enhancing
customer shopping experience and CRM. Effective implementation of all
these strategies and initiatives to strengthen existing businesses and capture
new opportunities would enhance SSSG, expand customer base and
increase market share and total revenue.

Retail Network Expansion and Consolidation

Nowadays, jewellery retailing is no longer confined to physical stores. In
addition to our 2,000-strong POS network spanning more than 470 cities,
we also boast a strong and fast growing presence on various e-tail platforms
such as Tmall and JD.com in addition to our Chow Tai Fook eShop.

We will continue to open a net of 200 jewellery POS each year mainly in Tier
[l and lower tier cities in Mainland China leveraging franchisees’ deep local
knowledge and experience to expand customer base and drive business
growth. With a flexible approach for Hong Kong and Macau, we are open to
good opportunities that are available at prime shopping locations. On the
other hand, our continual consolidation endeavours in relocating some POS
to high traffic locations, closing underperformed POS and enlarging the
retail area of selected POS will enable us to raise POS productivity and SSSG
while expanding the retail network to grow market share and total retail
revenue in both markets.

Our 2,000th POS opened in Wuhan in January 2014 has soon become a
high sales POS in Mainland China. It is the first jewellery store that introduces
an interactive experiential shopping model to the industry. Its resounding
success underpins our confidence in replicating this model in other Mainland
China cities as opportunities arise.

Online shopping continues to grow aggressively particularly in Mainland
China. In order to tap the colossal market potential, we will step up our
resources and efforts to grow our e-tail platforms that serve not only their
primary transactional function but also the increasingly important marketing
role in generating O20 synergy mutually beneficial to both online and offline
sales.
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Uplift of Branding and Product Portfolio
Enhancement

While we continue to maintain our leadership position in the mass luxury
segment, we have successfully developed different brand images
capitalising on our successes in high-end jewellery, wedding collections and
e-commerce. This brand strategy allows us to profile our various distinctive
strengths under one umbrella — the uplifted Chow Tai Fook brand that is
multi-talented and multi-faceted.

We are proud to introduce our auction collection every year to showcase
the exquisitely designed and crafted jewellery set with highly valuable
gemstones by Chow Tai Fook, and establish our image as world-class
jeweller raising our brand profile, equity and value. In March 2014, we
unveiled the fourth annual high jewellery collection “Reflections of Siem”
inspired by the storied and historical nation of Cambodia to prestigious VIP
guests and Chow Tai Fook members at an exclusive preview party. The
collection’s 12 breath-taking jewellery sets will be placed on auction in
October 2014.

Our initiative of promoting wedding jewellery in recent years is another big
success, including the flagship wedding collection “The Perfect One” as well
as other wedding-related jewellery. The new image as the wedding expert
of the jewellery industry is proved effective in growing our revenue derived
from this largest single market segment. In e-commerce, our resounding
success and tremendous efforts that focus mainly on youth line products
have quickly earned us a reputation for digital competence and e-marketing.

We implement our market-driven product strategy through product
diversification and differentiation. We continue to diversify our products to
offer more choices with a wider price range to cover customers of different
age groups and varied pocket sizes. In particular, we have increased our
fashion jewellery and youth line products in response to the growing
demand from young customers who purchase jewellery not so much for
special occasions but as fashion accessory for daily wear. The "Caprice” and
“Blissful” Collections in collaboration with Rio Tinto are two successful
attempts to introduce fashion diamond jewellery to the Mainland China
market, while our own “Charming Gold” Collection is also very well received
by our customers.

In product differentiation, we continue to collaborate with renowned
international brands such as FOREVERMARK, Rio Tinto, Disney, Sanrio,
Swarovski, etc. to offer more licensed and patented products that are
unigue and exclusive, as well as to crossover with artists and designers to
create one-of-a-kind art pieces on the one hand and to explore innovative
product ideas with market potential on the other.

As we enhance our product portfolio and increase our product offerings,
more products are displayed in the POS to provide customers with more
selections enabling them to enjoy the convenience and pleasure of one-stop
shopping.
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E-Commerce and O20 Integration

For e-commerce development, we continue to grow our e-tail platforms
and to differentiate them from physical POS. To appeal to young online
shoppers, products on offer are mainly youth line products at affordable
prices while some are exclusive online items. Various online games,
e-promotions and exclusive offers are made available from time to time to
attract online shoppers for boosting sales and growing customer base.

The importance of our e-tail platforms is apparently a lot more than just
being our transactional channels. They are also powerful vehicles for
e-marketing, O20 interaction and CRM leveraging our digital competence
and optimising the use of social media platforms such as WeChat, Weibo,
YouTube, Youku and Facebook, etc. to promote products and services, and
raise brand awareness.

We have a growing e-marketing team with staff members working in
different regional offices. This enables us to communicate closely and
interact timely with the locals crucial to engaging, retaining and growing
online customers, fans and followers.

To enhance customer experience and satisfaction, we have introduced the
360 degree shopping experience embracing O20 interaction, interactive
shopping environment at POS level, exclusive jewellery events and CRM. As
customers are becoming more sophisticated and increasingly look for
unigue and privileged service and experience, we will continuously organise
exclusive jewellery events, such as high-end jewellery private previews,
auction dinners and a multitude of exclusive activities for Chow Tai Fook
members.
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Investment in the Future

We recognise the importance of investment in the future which is crucial to
facilitating business growth and sustainable development. We are
committed to investing in infrastructure and staff development for
enhancing efficiency, productivity and overall performance.

Our new Mainland China headqguarters in Yantian, Shenzhen which will
become operational in FY2015 will further enhance our administrative and
operational functions to cope with our expansion in the Mainland China
market. The construction of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan, Hubei
on a land parcel of 221,000 square metres already secured will be partially
completed in August 2014 and it is targeted that production will begin by
phases in September 2014. The Jewellery Park, which will comprise six
functions, namely jewellery production, logistics and distribution, sales
exhibition and tourism, training, e-commerce and jewellery business support
upon completion, is our long term investment to further strengthen our
vertically integrated business model and support our sustainable
development for decades.

With the aid of the new electronic human resources system, we have
enhanced our human resources data analysis and manpower planning. We
are also committed to injecting resources to enhance employee
development with tailored training programmes to equip staff members
with advanced job knowledge, practical techniques and soft skills, and to
enhance senior executives’ management and leadership skills.

To cope with the Group’s continuous development and to meet the
subsequent needs for more operational space, we will seek good
opportunities to acquire commercial premises, such as production sites,
offices and shops that are currently leased by the Group. Such act would
not only save us some rental expenses, but also benefit us more in our
future expansion with effective and long-term planning.
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Major Events and Awards
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Major Events & &5 &)
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Chow Tai Fook and Crossworks Entered into Long-term
Supply and Licensing Agreement

Chow Tai Fook entered into a long-term supply and licensing agreement
with Crossworks Manufacturing Ltd. in August 2013. Under the agreement,
Crossworks’ patented hearts and arrows ideal cut square diamond “Magic
Square” Collection is exclusively sold through Chow Tai Fook's POS in
Greater China and marketed under the De Beers Group’s FOREVERMARK
brand.

Crossworks is a member of the HRA Group of Companies which is a De
Beers Global Sightholder and a Rio Tinto Select Diamantaire and an
Authorised Partner of its Argyle Pink Diamonds.
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Wi o IRIBEWE - A AEIE Crossworks RIEEH AR ERTEREBREE/\
DN\EHIEITEF A [Magic Square /\ « 35 | %51 - I LA De Beers&£H
27 FOREVERMARK [ HRZE & o

Crossworks AZHRA Group of Companies B 8  MHRA Group s& De Beers
K2R E R K Rio Tinto MFEFHEE AR EHE Argyle Pink Diamonds 3R
AIAERH -

Opening of Flagship Store in Mong Kok, Hong Kong

In September 2013, Chow Tai Fook held an opening ceremony for the
flagship store in Mong Kok, Hong Kong. Originally opened in 1986, this
flagship store is the largest single-floor POS in Hong Kong after it was
enlarged to the existing scale with a retail area of 6,200 square feet.
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Chow Tai Fook Opened First In-store Disney Jewellery
Zone

In January 2014, Chow Tai Fook opened the first Disney Jewellery Zone
on the upper floor of our ISQUARE POS in Tsim Sha Tsui where
customers are greeted by Mickey and Minnie, two meticulously-made
statues in their colourful classic outfits, while another 90 cm tall Mickey
statue made with 280 taels of 24K gold is exhibited on the lower floor to
attract both eyeballs and footfalls. A wide selection of Disney licensed
products such as Disney Classic Collection, “Disney Princess” Collection
and Winnie the Pooh Collection are available at the Disney Jewellery
Zone.
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Appointed Official Global Partner of China Pavilion at

i R 2 ey kB Expo Milano 2015

2015 fﬁ%‘;’cﬂ *Etﬁi@ % Chow Tai Fook, recognised as “China’s leading jeweller”, was appointed

. by invitation in February 2014 as the “Official Global Partner” of the China
I:P @ @ :'?:.112 i:Eé {"E “{ {:L Pavilion at Expo Milano 2015. Besides being authorised to design and
produce exclusive expo products for the China Pavilion and limited
edition jewellery, we also have an exceptional opportunity to exhibit the
brand’s excellence in jewellery design and craftsmanship by staging a
jewellery thematic show at the China Pavilion.
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Acquired Exclusive Distributorship of Patented Coronet
Solitaire Design in Greater China

Chow Tai Fook entered into an exclusive distributorship agreement with
Aaron Shum Jewelry for the Greater China region in March 2014 whereby
Chow Tai Fook is authorised to launch a new diamond collection

“Chow Tai Fook 520" adopting Aaron Shum Jewelry’s patented Coronet
Solitaire design.
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“Reflections of Siem” High Jewellery 2014 Collection
Private Preview

The first preview of Chow Tai Fook’s fourth annual high jewellery
collection "Reflections of Siem” was held in Hong Kong in March 2014.
The new auction collection, featuring 12 breathtaking high jewellery sets
with fine gemstones, was inspired by the rich historical and cultural
treasures of Cambodia and created with exquisite craftsmanship and
best-in-class techniques. Approximately 300 prestigious guests attended
the debut preview, followed by more previews in Shanghai, Wuhan,
Beijing, Chengdu, Guangzhou, Dalian, and Singapore before the October
annual auction dinner.
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Opening of Chow Tai Fook’s 2,000th POS

The Group’s 2,000th POS was officially opened in Guanggu,
Wuhan in January 2014, It is also the first interactive
experiential store in the industry that demonstrates our digital
competence with skillful application of smart technologies in
physical store to elevate customer’s shopping experience.
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Construction Works of New Mainland China Headquarters

Completed

The construction works of the Group’s new Mainland China headquarters
located in Shenzhen was completed in the fourth quarter of FY2014. The

new administrative and operational hub, with a total gross floor area of
58,744 square metres, is equipped with enhanced facilities and new
technologies for raising efficiency and productivity.
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Named the “Retailer of the Year” at JNA Awards 2013
Chow Tai Fook was named the “Retailer of the Year” at the second
edition of the JNA Awards in September 2013, in recognition of

Chow Tai Fook’s leading position in the jewellery retail sector over the
years.
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Ranked No. 1 on Jewellery Brands of Hong Kong’s 100
Most Influential Brands for 10 Consecutive Years

Chow Tai Fook was ranked 18th on the “Hong Kong’s 100 Most Influential
Brands” in December 2013 by World Brand Lab, up from the 20th place
in 2012. We were also the number one jewellery retailer for 10 consecutive
years.

Founded and chaired by Robert A.Mundell, professor of Columbia
University and Nobel Laureate in Economics, World Brand Lab is one of
the world’s top three brand valuers.
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4 |A|r’i Best Company for Leadership — Luxury Sector, Asia
warnes

In February 2014, Chow Tai Fook clinched the award “Best Company for
Leadership — Luxury Sector, Asia” by IAIR, a research institute and a
}lAl global publishing house headquartered in Milan, two years in a row.
WAarmgs Based on more than 50,000 online questionnaires collected from IAIR’s
readers, the Group was awarded by the judging panel in recognition of
our distinguished performance in the industry.

Best Company for Leadership — Luxury Sector, Asia
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Chow Tai Fook Made Debut on Brand Finance Global 500 B KB EE &% Brand Finance Global 500

With an estimated brand value of US$4,544 million and an “A” grade rating, BABN 20144 2 ALABrand Finance fhat#45.44
Chow Tai Fook was named one of the world’s most valuable brand in Brand BETREEMBERKRIA] F5T4#E A Brand Finance
Finance Global 500 in February 2014 by Brand Finance, a world leading Global 500 2Bk & EEEmMME 25 - Brand Finance
brand valuation consultancy headqguartered in London. We are the number BEHRRBE - BEIREELERETEZARA - K

one pure-play jeweller in the list.
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Ranked 44th on the China Top 500 Most Valuable

In June 2013, Chow Tai Fook was ranked the 44th on the list of “China
Top 500 Most Valuable Brands” for a brand value of approximately
US$5.3 billion, up from the 46th in 2012, by World Brand Lab.

Chow Tai Fook is the only jewellery brand in the top 100 list for 10
consecutive years.
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Ranked 17th on “Top 50 Most Sought-after Luxury Brands

in China”

Chow Tai Fook was ranked 17th on the “The World Luxury Index China 2013:

Top 50 Most Sought-after Luxury Brands in China”, published by Digital

Luxury Group in June 2013. The ranking was based on the number of search
frequency at Baidu and Google. Chow Tai Fook, the only Chinese jewellery

brand on the list, came top in the jewellery segment outperforming
international jewellery brands.
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Gemstone Testing Centre in Shenzhen Accredited

In June 2013, the Group’s Gemstone Testing Centre in Shenzhen was
accredited for CNAS-CLO1 by China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), which is
equivalent to ISO/IEC 17025:2005 certification, for meeting international
standards in testing, calibration and management of the centre.
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Three Accolades Clinched for Quality Tourism Service

Chow Tai Fook clinched three awards from Quality Tourism Services
Association in October 2013, including the Silver Award of 2013
“Outstanding QTS Merchant Award”, the Bronze Award of “Outstanding
QTS Merchants Service Staff Award”, as well as the 10-year QTS
Merchant Recognition (Jewellery and Watch Category) as

Chow Tai Fook was accredited under the QTS Scheme for 10 years in a
row.

SR EEIRERS = BHRE

BRI 2013 F10 A KB EERERY R % ZIAKE - 82013 #
HEBRMP, R REEKEH [RHEEHFPE IR #HE  URK
BRAXREEIOFEBERERGABRAN T FERELAHPEIMN] -

60




Product and Design Awards £ i &%= 8818
Hong Kong &%

Four honours Garnered in HKTDC’s Jewellery Design
Competition

Three jewellery designers from the Research and Development Department
claimed four awards in the Open Category of “The 15th Hong Kong Jewellery
Design Competition”, organised by Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
including the “Craftsmanship and Technology Award”, “The Merit Award”
and two “Best of Show Awards” in February 2014.
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Winning 8 Awards in Chuk Kam Jewellery Design
Competition

In March 2014, eight designers from the Research and Development
Department clinched eight awards in the Open Category of Chuk Kam
Jewellery Design Competition 2014 organised by the Hong Kong
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Associations. The Group boasts a strong team of
professionals that excel in design creativity and craftsmanship.
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The Group Named Disney’s Best Licensee (China Fashion)

Chow Tai Fook was acknowledged the “Best Licensee (China Fashion) 2013” in October 2013 by
Disney Consumer Products (Asia Pacific) Division under The Walt Disney Company (Asia Pacific)
Limited. This is the fourth award that we received since 2011. The accolade was a recognition of
our superior product designs and outstanding performance.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

TELEEE

Inheriting the corporate core values of “Sincerity * Eternity” over the years,
We, Chow Tai Fook, not only uphold legal compliance in our business
operations and commit ourselves to observing and supporting the “best
practice principles”, but also join hands with industry peers to enhance the
industry’s best practices, as well as fulfill our social responsibility as a good
corporate citizen by participating in social services and charitable activities
to contribute to the sustainable development, community welfare and
environmental protection of the society with our best effort.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Committee thereunder form the
central governing body in the corporate structure of the Group. They are
responsible for formulating and supervising the Group’s business
development direction and policies, as well as the corporate governance
code and practices to achieve sustainable development. The Group’s policy
and measures are effectively implemented through the Group Executive
Office which coordinates and facilitates the various regional offices and
departments in their daily operations.

Business Practices

With a strong emphasis on business ethics, the Group has built a sound
reputation for the integrity of its business operations for years. The Group
also requires all businesses from upstream to mid- and downstream in the
structure of its vertically integrated business model, including both
subsidiaries and business partners, large and small, to strictly observe the
operational guidelines for legal compliance.

In upstream sourcing, the Group has persistently adhered to the code of
practice for procurement and supported compliance with responsible
business practices in all segments of the diamond and gold jewellery supply
chain. We conduct stringent inspection on the sources of polished diamonds
procured to ensure that they are produced from rough diamonds meeting
the criteria of the Kimberley Process Certification Scheme, meaning that
they are not “conflict diamonds.” Our professional business practice is well
recognised in the industry. The Group’s subsidiaries CTF Diamond Trading
Company Limited and Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and Diamond Company
Limited (“Yushunfu”) have been admitted as members of the Responsible
Jewellery Council (“RJC”), an international not-for-profit organisation, since
2010, in recognition of their compliance with the RJC code of practice for
business ethics, human rights, social responsibilities and environmental
protection, and the membership was renewed in April 2013 following a
vetting process. Zlotowski's Diamond Cutting Works (Proprietary) Ltd. and
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited, two other subsidiaries, have
been global sightholders of De Beers since 1973 and 1993, respectively,
representing their strict compliance with De Beers’ best practice principles
which covers business, social and environmental responsibilities, as well as
mining standards. Moreover, we have also established longstanding
partnerships with international brands known for their concern in corporate
social responsibility, such as Disney, FOREVERMARK and Rio Tinto.
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Business Practices (continued)

Performance in corporate social responsibility is one of our criteria for
selecting suppliers. We examine the legal compliance of suppliers’
operations on a regular basis to ascertain that raw materials supplied by
them are not involved in illegal or inhuman transactions in order to drive
suppliers to fulfill their social responsibilities. In a recent suppliers’
conference, the Group’s management has invited the attending suppliers to
make a pledge to perform their social responsibility, uphold business ethics
and implement green procurement.

With an aim to implement more effective internal examination and make
improvement to the Group’s operations, a Risk Management Committee
comprising senior executives of the Group was formed in 2012 to develop
and maintain a sound and practical risk management mechanism to control
the Group’s strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks to ensure
effective implementation of internal control and ongoing improvements in
operating measures on the one hand, and full compliance with all related
laws and regulations throughout the Group’s entire operation on the other.

Moreover, we vigorously support industry associations in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and take part in their activities. Through close
communication, exchange and sharing, we acquire updates on government
regulations and laws governing our operations, as well as the latest industry
developments, so as to ensure compliance with the latest regulations or
take responsive measures accordingly.

In Hong Kong, we have joined the following industry associations: Hong
Kong Jewellers’” and Goldsmiths’ Association, The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, HKTDC
Watches & Clocks Advisory Committee, HKTDC Jewellery Advisory
Committee, Hong Kong & Kowloon Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’
Association Ltd, Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, The Chinese Gold and
Silver Exchange Society, The Federation of Hong Kong Watch Trades and
Industries Ltd., Jewellery — Industry Training Advisory Committee for
Qualifications Framework, Hong Kong Retail Management Association,
Hong Kong Management Association, Quality Tourism Services Association,
GS1 Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and Hong Kong
Surface Finishing Society.

In Mainland China, we are members of Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of
China, Yantian District General Chamber of Commmerce, Guangdong Gold
and Silver Jewellery Association, Shenzhen Gold & Jewelry Association,
Guangdong Golden Jewellry and Jade Industry Association, All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce and Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

We also accept third-party inspection organised by industry associations of
which we are a member. Hong Kong Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association
and The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association conduct random inspection on our pure gold and
jadeite products on a regular basis. We will be awarded the “Quality Gold
Mark” and “Natural Fei Cui Mark” only if we have passed the inspection. The
Hong Kong Customs and Excise Department also conducts regular random
inspections to check whether the pure gold products made and sold by us
comply with the Trade Description Ordinance in terms of fineness.
Meanwhile, gemologists commissioned by the Hong Kong Tourism Board
carry out random inspection of our gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery
products at our POS to ensure that the quality of these products meets the
required standards.
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Business Practices (continued)

Moreover, we also actively participate in forums and seminars organised by
government authorities and industry associations in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, so that through learning and sharing the Group can update,
review and enhance our policies and raise our alertness for improvements,
so as to facilitate our development and protect customers’ interests. Forums
and seminars we have participated in include a seminar on intellectual
property trade held in Hong Kong, a seminar for the jewellery industry on
trade descriptions in the supply of diamonds and gems hosted by the Trade
Controls Branch, Customs and Excise Department of Hong Kong, the
“Seminar on Latest Development in Standard Testing Method and
Certification of Fei Cui” jointly organised by the Hong Kong Council for
Testing and Certification, the Gemmological Association of Hong Kong and
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a seminar on local and cross-
border anti-corruption management held by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption ("ICAC”), and meetings on minimum wages held by the
Tripartite Committee for Retail Industries (formed by representatives of
commercial chambers, labour unions and the government) and the
Minimum Wage Commission. In Mainland China, we have participated in the
Jewellery Standardization Conference, meeting of the Beijing Jewellery
Industry Standardization Committee and the Annual Conference on
Simulated Jewellery.

The Group has always been committed to supporting business ethics,
exhibited by our stringent compliance with laws and regulations governing
the industry in relation to fair play in business, trade description, anti-
corruption and protection of intellectual rights, which have all been
incorporated into our code of practice for business operations, and closely
monitored on their implementation. With regard to anti-corruption, we have
formulated clear procedures for procurement and tenders to prevent
corruption, while participating in anti-corruption seminars organised by the
ICAC to strengthen staff awareness of the importance of business integrity
and anti-corruption. In connection with the protection of intellectual
properties, we respect original product designs and strictly prohibit our staff
and suppliers from copying and infringement.

Customer Service

We spare no effort in the protection of customers’ interests. Back in 1956,
we first introduced the “999.9” designation for gold jewellery in Hong Kong
and Macau to provide assurance to customers for the fineness of the gold
products they purchased. Since then, the standard has been widely adopted
in the industry, and in 1984 by the Hong Kong Government as the official
standard for gold jewellery fineness of Hong Kong. The gold products that
we sell in Mainland China are also manufactured in strict accordance with
the requirements set out in Section 4.1 under Chapter Four of National
Standards GB11887, and thus both fineness and content are in compliance
with national regulations.

Moreover, our jewellery products come with international standard
certification that provides further assurance for customers’ interests. Most
diamonds of 0.30 carat or above sold in Hong Kong are accompanied by
raw diamond certificates issued by independent professional institutions,
such as the world-renowned GIA (Gemological Institute of America) and
HRD (HRD Antwerp Institute of Gemology). In Mainland China, diamonds of
0.10 carat or above are also sold with a certificate issued by the PRC
National Gemstone Testing Centre.
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Customer Service continued)

Our own “Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre” was awarded the status of
an accredited jadeite jade testing laboratory in 2012 under The Hong Kong
Laboratory Accreditation Scheme (HOKLAS) of the Hong Kong
Government. All jadeite products sold by us have been tested at

“Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre” while some of them are awarded
HOKLAS certificates.

In strict accordance with regulations relating to trade description, all product
information is clearly and accurately stated on our sales receipts as well as
verbally explained to customers by professionally trained sales staff. We also
provide customers with product information and maintenance tips through
our company website and marketing collaterals that they may want to
obtain before and after their purchases.

To ensure the service standards of our sales staff, our Brand Management
Division arranges monthly mystery shoppers inspection on an in-house basis
or in collaboration with industry associations (such as Hong Kong Retail
Management Association) or commercial entities (such as shopping malls)
as a means to review the standard of our sales service. Customers can also
make enquiries and give feedback via various channels such as customer
hotline, email, mobile phone or online platforms. The enquiries or feedback
received are handled by our Customer Service Department, who will
immediately report to the management for follow-up actions in case of
major incidents or emergencies.

In connection with customer privacy, we have put in place a stringent
mechanism to protect customer’s personal data to avoid information
leakage. We will seek written approvals from customers when we want to
disseminate any information to them in order to protect their privacy and
interest.

During the 2014 financial year, we participated for the first time in the
“Consumer Caring Scheme” organised by GS1 Hong Kong. We have
obtained satisfactory results from a survey on customer satisfaction and
passed the assessments under various judging criteria including caring for
consumers and employees, fulfilling promises, product quality and safety,
and service quality. We were the only jewellery retailer to be awarded the
title of "Consumer Caring Company”. The Group also garnered various
accolades under the jewellery and watch category awarded by Quality
Tourism Services Association, such as the “Outstanding QTS Merchant Silver
Award” and an "Outstanding QTS Merchant Service Staff Bronze Award”.
The Group also received the special “10-year QTS Merchant Recognition”
awarded by the organiser this year during the prize presentation ceremony.
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Staff Benefits

The Group sees employees as our most important assets. Our human
resources management is based on the “people-oriented” principle, taking
staff interests into full account when formulating our staff policy. We abide
by labour laws of the regions where we operate, and we provide
comprehensive salary package and staff welfare for our employees. The
remuneration packages are reviewed on a regular basis, while staff with
outstanding performance may receive discretionary rewards. We are also
concerned with the occupational health and safety of our staff,
endeavouring to provide and maintain a safe and healthy work environment.
Videos promoting occupational health and safety are played and fire drills
are held to help employees avoid and reduce the occurrence of work injuries
or occupation-related diseases.

Moreover, we are very concerned about the personal and family needs of
our staff. Under the “Employee Assistance Programme” introduced in our
Mainland China office in 2008, national-level registered psychologists from
professional counseling institutions are engaged to provide professional
psychological guidance and consultation services, helping employees to
manage pressure and alleviate emotional stress and providing guidance for
addressing problems relating to relationships, families and children’s growth.

We place a strong emphasis on the holistic development and personal
growth of our employees and actively foster a culture of life-long learning.
We organise staff training of various types, aiming to facilitate self-
enhancement with improved competence and professional development
for the benefit of their personal as well as career growth. During FY2014, the
Group recorded over 1,000,000 training hours in total. Training courses
provided by the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China included:

* Human Resources Department’s Training Section coordinated and
organised trainings relating to the Group’s business development and
job skills of our employees, such as courses on product knowledge,
jewellery testing and sales and management skills.

* Advanced courses on industry knowledge conducted by professional
instructors and jewellery training courses held in association with our
business partners, such as FOREVERMARK and Rio Tinto, to enhance
employee’s expertise, skills and performance.

e Subsidies for senior management in Hong Kong and Mainland China to
take EMBA courses.

» Tailored training courses for middle and senior management to enhance
their management skills.
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TELEEE

Staff Benefits (continuea)

Training in Hong Kong:

*  The Group’s management trainee programme was introduced since
2005 to incubate management personnel for the Group. Some of them
are now members of our core management team.

* Assistance to staff in applying for recognition of qualifications by
Quialifications Framework.

*  The “Wisdom Dynamic Programme” was launched in association with
professional training centres, under which 60 frontline and managerial
grade employees were selected to learn NLP and management skills,
aiming at inspiring and practicing creative thinking, as well as enhancing
work and management performance.

* A mentorship programme was launched in Hong Kong and Macau,
under which veterans serve as mentors to help new sales staff to acquire
knowledge about our branding, marketing, products and operations.
Rewards and promotion opportunities are provided to encourage and
recognise close communication and exchange between mentors and
students, so as to enhance staff training for the benefit of the Company,
the mentors and the students.

Training in Mainland China:

e The Chow Tai Fook Academy provided training to middle management
to become professionals in the jewellery industry, covering aspects such
as production, sales, procurement and management.

*  The management trainee programme introduced in 2005 has produced
graduates from 7 intakes since then.

* Theinstructor programme implemented since 2012, under which veteran
personnel are assigned as instructors to coach new employees in job
skills, work flow and company regulations, so that they can quickly
familiarise themselves with the environment and their duties during the
probation period and be accustomed to the Chow Tai Fook culture.

In terms of staff communication, we have several internal publications, such
as “Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Corporate News”, “SUNNY Express”,

“Chow Tai Fook Family”, etc. to convey management messages and
company news to all staff members as a means to enhance communication.

We hold a Spring Festival Dinner every year, in addition to other cultural,
recreational and social activities to foster interaction among staff of different
departments and enhance employee morale and team spirit. In Hong Kong,
our Human Resource Department has formed a “SUNNY Spot” to organise
a diverse range of recreational activities and interest classes for staff in Hong
Kong and Macau, such as soccer and basketball tournaments, singing
contests, and art and craft workshops. In Mainland China, the Cultural
Activity Section under the Executive Office organises reading groups, movie
shows, mini-concerts, photography classes, cycling, as well as soccer,
basketball and badminton leagues.
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Environmental Protection

Chow Tai Fook places a strong emphasis on environmental protection and
respective policies have been introduced to assess if there is any impact on
the environment in the course of our business operation and to adopt
measures to minimise the damages that may be caused.

We are especially concerned with the environmental impact of our
production processes. Our production base in Lunjiao, Shunde, is the first
factory in the Pearl River Delta Region to participate in the “Cleaner
Production Partnership Programme” jointly launched in 2008 by Hong
Kong’s Environmental Protection Department and the Economic and
Information Commission of Guangdong Province. The programme aims at
saving energy and reducing sewage discharge and gas emission through
clean production. Environmental projects that we have implemented are as
follows:

* Reusing of packaging materials has been implemented since 2006 to
reduce consumption.

* Recycling of gypsum effluent at our factories has been implemented
since 2009, a total of 1,610 tonnes of gypsum effluent recycled in 2014.

* T5 fluorescent tubes have been used and air-conditioning temperature
guidelines introduced since 2009 to reduce electricity consumption.

¢ The steam dewaxing process for recycling resin wax has been
introduced since July 2009. 3.9 tonnes of wax was recycled in FY 2014,
representing an increase of approximately 1% over previous year.

* A solar-energy lighting system with power storage function has been
installed at the exit of the underground car-park in the factory area since
201 for automatic lighting in night-time to reduce electricity
consumption for energy saving purposes.

* Adoption of high-frequency gold melting technology since May 2011 to
replace the traditional gold-torch melting method. The emission of
volatile organic compounds was substantially reduced by 82.3% since
then and the air quality of the production area has been improved. It has
also earned us an appreciation certificate under the “Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme” in FY 2013.

*  Three restrictors have been installed at the blower of the neutraliser and
water pump to reduce electricity consumption since late 2011, with plans
to carry out similar installations throughout the factory complex starting
in FY 2015.

* A high-efficiency furnace has been introduced in the casting process
since June 2012 to enlarge the heated area of the moulds, resulting in
significant improvements in terms of efficiency and lead-time
consumption. The new equipment can also effectively control the loss of
thermal energy, resulting in lower indoor temperature for a more
comfortable work environment and less electricity consumption for
air-conditioning which contributes to power consumption savings of
approximately 24,000 kWh each year.

During FY 2014, the Group has further set a higher standard in
environmental protection for the new financial year, with plans to implement
the 1ISO 26000:2010 corporate social responsibility standards at our
factories.
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Environmental Protection (continued)

The Group’s offices have long since adopted plans for the recycling of used
paper, ink cartridges and plastic wares. Reports and reviews are conducted
monthly, while staff are encouraged to send documents in electronic
formats. During the financial year under review, we started to issue
electronic payroll advices to reduce printing and paper consumption. We
have also started to use LED or compact fluorescent bulbs at our POS in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. LED or compact fluorescent bulbs have
been installed in most POS in Hong Kong to reduce electricity consumption
and conserve power resources.

Environmental-friendly facilities and measures will feature dominantly at The
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park currently under construction. These include
green procurement, installation of energy-saving facilities, machinery and
systems as well as green zoning to help facilitate an eco-friendly office
environment and outdoor space. Environmental protection designs adopted
by the Jewellery Park include the following:

*  Sewage processing system: professional consultancy and technology
engineering companies have been engaged to design and install a
sewage processing system, whereby industrial effluent with low
pollution levels is recycled for use in the production lines, while industrial
effluent with high pollution levels is subject to special processing prior to
discharge in order to reduce pollution of the environment, in accordance
with Class lll Standards under the “Discharge Standard of Pollutants for
Municipal Waste Water Treatment Plant” and “Emission Standard of
Pollutants for Electroplating”.

«  (Gas emission processing system: professional consultancy and
technology engineering companies have been engaged to design and
install a gas emission processing system, whereby gas emissions
generated from the production processes are subject to special
processing prior to discharge in order to reduce air pollution, in
accordance with the “Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants”
and “Emission Standard of Pollutants for Electroplating”.

*  Solar-powered lighting system: use of solar energy or LED bulbs for
street lights, wall lights, landscape lights and lawn lights at major
passages to reduce electricity consumption.

«  Solar-powered water supply system: installation of solar-power heat
water supply system to reduce electricity consumption.

* Landscaping: greens zones are massively covered in bush vegetation,
representing a green ratio of approximately 18%.

e LOW-E (low radioactive emission) glass: installation of LOW-E glass
pane with insulation and temperature-control features to reduce the use
of air-conditioners.

* Recycling of water condensation from air-conditioners: recycled water

condensation from air-conditioners is used for heat dissipation for
furnace, landscaping, and parking space cleaning, etc after processing.
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Giving Back to the Society

In line with its longstanding tradition of community care and giving back to
the society, Chow Tai Fook provides employment opportunities to the
communities where it operates by hiring local people. We uphold the belief
of “From the Society, for the society” and encourage active employee
participation in volunteer work and social service, and render our full support
for charitable activities. We have been named a “Caring Company” by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Services for 5 years in a row since 2008. In
January 2014, we also received the “Corporate Citizenship Logo
(Enterprise)” awarded by the Hong Kong Productivity Council. During FY
2014, our corporate volunteer team members in Mainland China and Hong
Kong together participated in volunteer services for 2,106 times, spending
an aggregate of 8,254 man-hours.

To further promote volunteer services in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
the Group formed a steering committee for driving corporate volunteer
teams in May 2013. Co-chaired by two Executive Directors of the Group, the
steering committee leads staff members from different departments to plan
and coordinate charitable activities and social services in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Under the active drive and leadership of the steering
committee, the respective “Chow Tai Fook CARES” corporate volunteer
teams with better organisation and a stronger representation were officially
established in September 2013 in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, Chairman of the Group, attended the inauguration and
officiated at the pledge ceremony with the senior management in
November, showing the Group’s support and approval for this initiative. As
at 31 March 2014, there were 2,070 volunteers among our staff in Mainland
China and Hong Kong.

During FY2014, the volunteer teams organised or co-organised a multitude
of volunteer services in Mainland China and Hong Kong, including:

In Hong Kong:

*  Youth Outreach Flag Day.

e A guided heritage tour of Central and Sheung Wan by the Society for
Community Organisation: 20 children from low-income families
participated in this outdoor activity.

* Visits to senior citizens in To Kwa Wan district, organised by HK.S.KH
Lok Man Alice Kwok Integrated Service Centre: some 20 corporate
volunteer team members joined the visits to bring love and care to the
elderly.

*  Visits to the underprivileged in celebration of Mid-Autumn Festival
organised by Lok Sin Tong: visits to impoverished senior citizens and
low-income families in Sham Shui Po district.

e “Barrier-free Magic Fun”; visit to a foster home for the mentally-impaired,
playing games and staging a magic show for the lodgers.
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TEMHEET

Giving Back to the Society (continved) O B4 & ()

In Mainland China: HE A

e Creative fabric patchwork sessions for kids during summer organised by o FYITFHBRARTEIRED O [BHEREIEHHM]
Shenzhen New Modern Social Work Service Center. JEE) BB NNRRBRENFET -

+  Fun sports gala for children and parents organised by Shenzhen New o FITFHBEALTHL [REEEHET | A/ BR
Modern Social Work Service Center. MRERITESHE -

»  Visit to an elderly home Yee Hong Heights of the Hong Kong Jockey . EEEFeRIEECHEER [ FFEME] BT
Club Shenzhen Society for Rehabilitation during Chinese New Year. SHEAPT ©

Furthermore, we also actively participated the community and volunteer LESN - AT F RN FEIR 2R B T B IEB TS N AR

services organised by major non-governmental organisations (NGOs) and SRR TR

charitable organisations during the year.

Event & Details 3

Oxfam Rice Event Fundraising for Oxfam China Development Fund to AEmehERREEASER  EhhF
(May 2013) help poor villagers in remote mountain areas in China. ARERILENEESE AL -
LREETE «  Staff members and their friends and relatives - ZRBIMPRSHEEBEKREE &
(201355 A7) helped raise over HK$16,000 from charity rice sale. BEFEEL168T -

¢ The Group won the Top Fundraiser (Corporate
Sponsor) Award.

- KERSSEFR(EPERB)TE o

Bazaar Charity Night 2013 Support for the Bazaar Charity Night 2013

(October 2013) ¢ The Group sponsored the charity auction for 10
203ESHEERER years in a row.

(2013410 A) «  Donated a diamond-studded crystal shoe set of the

“"Chow Tai Fook Disney Princess Collection,” raising
RMBI1.5 million for the event as the highest bid
jewellery of the auction.

*  The fund raised was donated to the Bazaar
Charitable Foundation for poverty relief work in
China carried out by China Siyuan Foundation for
Poverty Alleviation, as well as to the “Operation
Shelter Building” launched jointly with China
Foundation for Poverty Alleviation.

SHEETHEAERIAE D
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@ °
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MNHKEBERERER  ARTEEAR
HIS08 T -

s ERBKPERRIBKEASS
BIRBEEES  ARPEER
TREEESSETH [ BIRKE]
HE AREABEKEESEAE
m[EETE] -

Wu Zhi Xing 2013 Participation in the fundraising walkathon to support its
(November 2013) bridge building programmes in remote areas in

#E|F172013 Mainland China for Hong Kong students aged above 18.
(2013F 1 A) «  More than HK$110,000 was raised by 159 corporate

volunteer team members, colleagues, and their
friends and relatives.
«  The Group was the 2nd top fundraising corporation.

DB \FITRESTEN  IFELS

ERB I8N ENBERRE AN FR

i@ EIBIE B o

c 1S9RDBEET  RAERBERNES
EEBBNETT -

o

- EERENRBRSEFEE_A

UNICEF China projects The Group participated in the “China Children’s Week 2HE[FRRTER —NERR2SEEE
(Throughout 2013) — “Little Artists Big Dream Drawing Competition 2014”, L& 2014 - [FBHEFS ] - HES
[BEBERERES T “a filming trip to Qinghai”, and production of a REFEHREMPHERNZEEZIE
AR N TR B fundraising TV programme and other projects for SRS

(2013F24F) aiding impoverished children in Mainland China.

UNICEF Charity Run 2013 Participation in a 3-km charity run to support UNICEF's ZEMAEREESEMN=—ABEENR
(November 2013) AIDS prevention and treatment works in developing BE  IHEREFERETEZFER
HABRRERSEAZH 2013 countries. B RSB AE ©

(2013511 A) +  Approximately HK$46,000 was raised by about 60 + #E0ELEAABELET ETRE

Chow Tai Fook volunteers, colleagues and their
friends and relatives.

RNafEEaEE468T -

“Bless Hong Kong” Campaign 152 Chow Tai Fook volunteers spent a total of 760

— February for the Elderly hours to knit 500 pieces of scarves and hats as gifts for
(December 2013 to February 2014)  the elderly and disabled.

HRESE — — A wEA

(2013512 HZ 201452 )
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Giving Back to the Society (continued) EIf: a4y

Event SE&) Details =35

Bless Hong Kong territory-wide  Sponsorship of advertising spaces on 200 buses to B 200WMELEEMVE - B [EREE
bus ad campaign promote campaign messages and spread loving care Bl ESNERNNEEEEES
(February 2014) and positive energy across Hong Kong, Kowloon and NERFFR  BBATRBIZERIEES -
HEEL - 2EBLEEEY the New Territories.

(2014F1&E7 A)

Po Leung Kuk Charity Walk 2014 Participation in fundraising to support Po Leung Kuk's  BRERER @ IHEHH 2R -
(March 2014) social services.

2014 FREBESEHT « Over HK$65,000 was raised by 220 colleagues and » 220&E T R#MKBMEEH1T -
(20143 H) their friends and relatives taking part in the walk, HEBREY658TT  FEZERH
who also won the gold award for top fundraising -
teams.
Hike for Hospice 2014 Fundraising for Hospice to support its services ARERSERIHERS
(March 2014) «  Over HK$45,000 was raised by 47 colleagues c A7NZEFTHEINESELKES
EESEINET taking part in the walk. 4587 -
(201453 A)
“The China Dream ¢ The Green Support for greening activities in Shenzhen: SEFRYIAR L EE) -
Shenzhen” «  The Group donated 85 tree seedlings. - H£EIBESSIREE -
(March 2014) «  Approximately 180 volunteers from Shenzhenand  « #1806 F Y R & & B & T E
PRI « RYIAR Hong Kong joined the planting activity at Shenzhen RO AESEEREBARLIRE -
(201443 1) Central Park.
Apart from our participation in social services and volunteer works, the 2 EE TR - FREE N ERE B BENIEK
Group also sponsored or made donations to NGOs and charitable HEREEBEN ARES EHNIAER  HMM
organisations in support of their services to the needy enthusiastically %ﬁi?tﬁ%%/\i%ﬁﬁ% ' ﬁ%%%@jﬁ%ﬁ@@ .
during the year. The beneficiaries included Oxfam, Youth Outreach, Wu Zhi 1% 5 f@{ﬁfg B MAEREESE-
Qiao (Bridge to China) Charitable Foundation, UNICEF China projects, RREBMEEGS -

Po Leung Kuk and Hospice.
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Our Corporate Governance Framework
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Independence Board
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Communication with Shareholders
HERREE

Annual General Meeting
BRRAFAE

Shareholders’ Rights
BRRFEF

Investor Relations 3 Audit Committee
REERFR BEREEE

f ion f * Review on Financial, Tax and
It e ORI Reporting Related Matters

S BHET S RBEARNED

Review on Internal Control System
ﬁF ﬁ‘t#‘nf 75
AP mITT L

Board Governance Framework

ESSERER

Nomination Committee
. Iy

Board of Directors ! REZRS

EE2 «  Nomination, Appointment and
« Strategic Planning Re-election of/DirerctorS
E4- L E BE5REH L&
Corporate Governance Board Diversity
DEEBE EFgZt
Directors’ Independence
Attendance at Annual General Meeting and ESEVH
Board Meetings
BRRBFASREETSSENEEHETE Remuneration Committee
FHEES
Direc_tor_s’ Inductioq and * The Group’s Remuneration Policy
Contlnu‘mg Professional Development v S B
ESABMSRERRR Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
EZREAEEEH

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements
ESRMBEHRRAARENERT

Securities Transactions of Directors and Employees
ESREEBETESFRS

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

BRERBRMGAREENEFRATHERER

Corporate Culture
EXE

Business Practices
EWRT

Internal Control and Audit

AR ST 2

Risk Management
EREE

Whistleblowing Policy
BHBER
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Corporate Governance Practices

For the year ended 31 March 2014, we have complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. This report describes the Group’s
corporate governance practices and explains the applications of the
principles of the CG Code. The Board will review and improve the corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure that the Group is under
the leadership of an effective Board to optimise return for our shareholders.

We focus our efforts towards three levels, namely our shareholders, our
Board and our organisation as a whole. We will discuss each of the
following principles in the sections below.

TEERTEMR
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Transparency and Clarity of Disclosure FHRRE MM ER

Enhancing transparency has been the core value driven by our Board since BERMA-E——FRBRLETE EFEFEUARAH
our listing on the Stock Exchange in 2011. We believe that high transparency BAHEHEEAZOEE - RPBESEHE AS|IER
is a key for attaining good corporate governance. This equips ourselves to PERRFCEEANEE  HLARMAUSEHEDS
stand up to scrutiny and the changing regulatory environment. During the RN EEIREMITERE - RAFEERN - B
year, our established practices of fair disclosure have contributed to the NEWEZBEE A& AR AR EE B 5 &
Company’s smooth transition into the more stringent statutory regime of EEPIR2013F 5 BERBEENZEE 2 EHENLTE
disclosure of inside information put in place by the SFO in 2013. Our el o B ENT -

initiatives are highlighted below.

We initiated the releasing of key operational data quarterly via formal announcements Refer to our company
published on the Stock Exchange website and our company website. We set standardised website
template to disclose the key information that our management concerns and share with
shareholders in a timely manner.

BB BRI R A R AR BRI ERX RSN - EEEMEE EZLLEHIR - RAFIE E2HARFEE
ZERN  UERBREEERITNEZEENIERERR S =

We have maintained our organisation simple such that shareholders can easily understand
our business model, company structure, key performance indicators and
accounting measurements.

B BB AAMIRE - RECRER ZEBRMANEBRN - ARRE  T2XRBREERSFFESK -

Refer to Management
Discussion and Analysis
on pages 20 to 47

B0 [ BREREST]

F20F 478

This year, we also have started a revamp programme for our company website, Refer to our company

for example, an “Investor FAQ” was created for investors’ ease of reference. website
AF - BMEFRRTARMENENE - (igR [REEFRMEE] AL EREERE - BL2HEARRRE
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EEERRE

Board Governance and Independence EEeTA BN

The Board’s role is to provide leadership of the Company and direction for SEEACAEENR  WIEAB L AREEAS
the management as an independent decision-making body. Our Board is BEIV A EEeAEENRREEaE LY
collectively responsible and accountable to our shareholders for the Group's RREE - BfEE SEMNBIEAEEEEN
performance. We believe that high independence is crucial for the Board to EE Al EBENGEEREN RS ER « ER—
work effectively to create value and protect the interests of our shareholders FHAXRGEEZYRENLTTAT  EFSeH AT
as a whole. As a listed company with the presence of a major shareholder, AEBRELREFR #RHBRAREEHSAZES
the Board has endeavour to set out appropriate policies and processes to e -

avoid conflict of interests or perception of the same.

Refer to Board of
Directors below

F2HTX [EEE]

Roles of the Board Chairman and Managing Director are clearly defined and held by
different persons.

BREATEFSIENEFREENAGT M TNRALEE-

Refer to Board of
Directors below

F2HTX [ESEE]

The Board has reserved powers to make decisions on significant matters.

EZERERNAEESHFELRE -

Executive Directors have clearly defined roles and responsibilities. Refer to Profile of
Directors and
Senior Management
on page 104

BERAEHTEENABREE - F2HEERER
EIEABMN] F1048
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Corporate Culture and Management

We believe that our commitment to ethical practices and critical oversight
on our organisational processes and structures have contributed to a strong
control environment. It enables our organisation to preserve its integrity and
be resilient to internal and external pressures. We consider “ethics” and
“science” are the two pillars in preserving integrity and disciplining behaviour
throughout the organisation.

“Sincerity*Eternity”

With our 85 years of heritage, “SincerityEternity” has been our core values
and our brand is recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity. Early in
the last century, we initiated launching standard specification of gold
jewellery fineness and implemented a “—HA1{&” (Fixed Price) Policy which
promoted price transparency and fair dealing with our customers.
Nowadays, various best practices have been well embedded in our
management system and operations. Adhering to the ethical and law-
abiding spirit in our business practices, we have been accredited by our
customers, business partners and other stakeholders. Our management has
demonstrated the visible model to lead our sustainable growth by “doing
the right thing”.

More discussions on our corporate culture, fair business practices, mutual
trusting relationships with our stakeholders are shown in the Corporate
Social Responsibility on pages 63 to 73.

Systematic management

Systematic management infrastructure and scientific analysis have been the
key to the internal controls on our business activities and governance in our
organisational behaviour supporting a sustainable growth in the scale of
operations.

Detailed discussions on the Internal Control System and Risk Management
are shown on pages 98 to 101. Demonstration of our management by
performance indicators are shown in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 20 to 47.

TEXERERE

HHEE - BPBHEBRERER T REREEAERE
FRABAGERENEEIRE - ILBBBAARE
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Board Governance Framework
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises a total of 15 Directors, with eight executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and five independent non-executive
Directors.

The roles of our Chairman and Managing Director are clearly defined and
there is an effective segregation of duties between the Board and the
management. Our Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and
all important issues are discussed in a timely manner. Our Managing
Director, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, takes the lead in managing the Group’s
operations and business development. Each executive Director has his own
role and function to oversee the Group’s operations including procurement,
production, marketing, business and finance. Our Chairman and Managing
Director do not have any financial, business, family or other material
relationships with each other. The profile of each of the Directors is set out
on pages 104 to 109.

To ensure the operational efficiency of the Group, the Board delegates an
Executive Committee, comprising all eight executive Directors, to oversee
the day-to-day management and operation in accordance with its terms of
reference as approved by the Board. Decisions made by the Executive
Committee are reported back to the Board while matters beyond its
delegated authority are reserved to the Board for its decision.

In the Board meetings which are held during the year, the Managing Director
took the lead to make reports to the Board on various aspects, including
business performance and prospects, financial performance, risk
management and corporate governance. The Company also provides
monthly updates to all Directors on the Group’s performance and position
to enable the Directors to make balanced assessment and informed
decisions for the benefit of the Group.

All of our independent non-executive Directors had full attendance and
active discussions in our Board meetings during the year. They served a
significant role in the Board to bring independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group. Besides,
their rich knowledge in public companies’ corporate governance practices,
they have contributed much to the Company in formulating formal
processes and framework to attain higher corporate governance standards.
As members of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, they have also undertaken detailed governance
work under their respective terms of reference. Details can be referred to
the respective sections below.

In every case of reviewing and approving the Group’s connected
transactions or matters that might have potential conflict of interests, our
independent non-executive Directors took the lead to review the details.
Furthermore, as a norm in our Board, all Directors who belong to the major
shareholder’s family have abstained from voting in all Board resolutions
relating to the approval of the Group’s connected transactions even though
the transactions are in the ordinary and usual course of business and on
normal commercial terms.

=
EEQRAAMSRESAN  Eh8ER/RITES
2ERIFATEERSBRBIUIFATES -

TEMESHLENACEBWAT YRR E
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board activities in FY2014

Four Board meetings were held during the year. The agenda mainly focused
on strategic planning and corporate governance matters of the Group.

EE22w

ESE204MBEENTH

AEERN BEEGRTOREGH  #EEBawmAS
B R AE AR B MEEE R ETS o

Strategic planning REERE
- received regular updates for business performance of the Group and s ENARAKSEEBRREAMERERINEBER
the market environment H)5E B 25

* discussed development and sales strategies, such as new production
facilities, e-commerce business, franchising policy, retail network
expansion, streamlining of operational structure etc.

o AR ER B GHE R - BMTEAE R
FRBER MERERK TERRAE -
EREBEIEE

I &

e authorised the Group’s annual budget

- BERARENFENRESE

* reviewed the Company’s dividend policy

« BERARANKREEE

Corporate governance

e received reports from the Audit Committee on the continuous
monitoring of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems

- RRERZEEFBAEREASERRBREERA

EREIE RV IR E

* approved the Group’s financial statements, annual and interim reports

« BURAKRESBEHRR FRETHHRS

¢ authorised material banking facilities and capital expenditure

- BEREARTRHEBRREREARRX

* reviewed the quality and timeliness of the Group’s disclosure of
information, including announcements, circulars and annual/interim
reports

- BRAEEEERE(BEAS BRMEF
B/ RS NEE  ARES R

» discussed policies to promote corporate social responsibility (CSR),
including charitable foundation, CSR reporting

.

HREBELELEEENECR - BREASEES
EEMEEIRE

* reviewed and approved connected transactions

- EHtEERS

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of four independent non-executive
Directors. Current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Kwong Che-
Keung, Gordon, Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond. It is currently chaired by Mr. Kwong Che- Keung,

Gordon, an independent non-executive Director.

Activities of the Audit Committee in FY2014

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. At the invitation
of the Audit Committee, meetings were also attended by members of the
management (including the Managing Director, Finance Director and the
Risk Management Committee).
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Audit Committee continved)

Activities of the Audit Committee in FY2014 (Continued)

B

REES2040BEENTE®)

Review on Financial, Tax and Reporting Related Matters

FHME BERBEHEBEEE

reviewed the Group’s financial
statements and disclosures in the

discussed with external auditors
on the audit plan including the
audit of key accounts, materiality interim and annual reports and
level and the application of new or recommended the Board for
revised accounting standards
HONERZHE R REZETE - B
FERAEZ  FIUFAEEMN
FRTSERT & =T 2RI A

approval
Fon P ERE R E RS E A R
BRERRRE  BRE=SQHE

During the year, the Audit Committee, assisted by external auditor, reviewed
a detailed study on the Group’s accounting policy for hedging of gold
inventory through the use of gold loans and bullion forward contracts. It
agreed with the management that until a better option is available for the
Group to effectively enhance the clarity of financial statements presentation,
the Group would maintain its current practice to provide additional non-
IFRS analysis of the Group’s gross profit margin and operating profit margin
with explicit reconciliation of adjustment on unrealised hedging gain or loss
on gold loans and bullion forward contracts (refer to Financial Highlights on
page 2 for details). This practice has so far proved to be useful and
transparent to our investors and financial information readers.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s proposed
reorganisation scheme for streamlining the Group’s operations of its supply,
production and distribution chain. They agreed that the streamlining in
structure would be beneficial to the Group’s operational, financial and tax
efficiency.

held private meeting sessions with
external auditors without
management’s presence
ESNIRAZ SRR TR 5 B IR fE

HREH &

reviewed the Group’s continuing
connected transactions

EBRAGENEMRER S

REERN  BERZESINERBENHYH TER —H
ERAEEHRINAESRELESEMENETE
SHEEHTNETBRNFANR - BERZEERAE
ERERER  RREASERIGRINARMEHEKE
SIEMWIERE 4 TE 2 B - AEBEHERFRETA
R SR B E R I 48 2 R R AR RSN SR B R B 7S
WEEINDH - PRI REFHBERERNELEER
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Mo REENPBEEREESR B TR -
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Audit Committee continued)

Activities of the Audit Committee in FY2014 (Continued)

Review on Internal Control System

BRI RS

reviewed reports on internal discussed with the
control system and internal
audit of the Group

FEi A AR BN ERE RGN

AR E R R E

management and the internal
auditors on the overall risk
assessment, internal control
system, audit plan and audit
findings
EETRE Rk N ER R BAN A TR R B
[E BT~ AIEBEEFERAT - AR
RNEPE X AETEI B AR

The Audit Committee has reviewed and were satisfied with the effectiveness
of our internal control system. The assessment is based on

e regular reports by the internal audit team, including the findings and
control risk assessment

* regular reports by the management of continuous enhancement and
monitoring of the Group’s internal controls, and implementing of
recommendations from the internal audits

» certification of controls effectiveness by the management, covering
financial, operational and compliance controls, with the adoption of
self-assessment approach

e observation from external auditors that they had not identified any
material control weakness during the annual external audit

» direct reports of the Company’s whistleblowing mechanism that no
fraud of material impact was reported

* top management’s active involvement in creating a control environment
with high integrity

The Audit Committee supported the Company’s plan to strengthen
compliance controls over the supply chain and the roll-out of a new
programme for POS internal audit which ensured the monitoring functions
would be in place to catch up with the Group’s continuous expansion in its
operations. Furthermore, they emphasised the importance of completing
self-assessment confirmations from department heads and the review of the
Group’s internal control manual which should back up a fair annual review of
the Group’s internal control system.
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reported to the Board of the
effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system
MEFZERAEEANIELR
FEIK

received reports of the Group'’s
whistleblowing system
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Audit Committee (Continued) %4{2%3 E

Activities of the Audit Committee in FY2014 (Continued) EREEE 2040 BEENITE)

Engagement of External Auditors

ZREZBET

assessed independence of external auditors reviewed auditor's engagement terms, agreed the auditor's remuneration

and recommended their re-appointment scope of work and responsibilities B Gl

A EINEIZ SN BL M - B E LR - LIFHERERE
During FY2014, the total fee paid/payable in relation to audit related REFER 2014 B F E st BB IRS D et
services of the Group amounting to HK$9.8 million, of which a sum of EREEAISEERT HP DN TEMNTERH
HK$5.9 million was paid/payable to our principal auditor, Deloitte Touche BiiEg) . BEMR A CETENTT59B&E T 82N AIR
Tohmatsu, and the remaining was mainly paid/payable to other auditors AN B R A B A mIR M S AR BT EA T
performing audit work for the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China VEB N e B A e - LR ERGEENEE -
which were subject to local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid AERAFEtMmITRAEBBEATNMESEMT

to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its affiliated firms for services rendered is
listed as follows:

Types of services FY2013 FY2014

it 203BFE 2014 BEE

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Statutory audit JETEEZ 4100 4,320

Other audit related services HhE%E BE AR 15 1510 1,590

Non-audit services (Note) FEBZIRTS (M17E) 1,052 923

6,662 6,833

Note: Non-audit services comprise primarily tax advisory services provided to the Hiat - FEBRRETEAEAANEBIRHFEED RS -
Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently consists of four independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Current members of the
Nomination Committee are Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, Mr. Cheng Ming-
Fun, Paul, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent. It is currently chaired by Dr.
Fung Kwok-King, Victor, an independent non-executive Director.

Activities of the Nomination Committee in FY2014

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and formulate the diversity
policy of the Board .

Nomination, appointment and re-election of Directors

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) have formal letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
respective date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles. At the Company’s annual general meeting
held in September 2013, a new Director appointed subsequent to 2012's
annual general meeting stood for re-election in accordance with the Articles
and another five Directors, being at least one-third of the Directors for the
time being retired from office by rotation. All of them were re-elected by
shareholders to continue their offices as Director. The Nomination
Committee has reviewed the Directors’ rotation plan to ensure that every
Director will retire by rotation at least once every three years at an annual
general meeting.

Board diversity

As facilitated by the amendments in the Listing Rules, the Company set its
formal policy on Board diversity in 2013. The Company recognises the
importance of having a broad complement of skills, experience and
knowledge on the Board to bring along comprehensive considerations in
forming Board decisions.

Our Nomination Committee has reviewed the current composition of Board
members and appreciates that the broad spectrum of background of the
independent non-executive Directors adds great value on the diversified
perspectives in the Board. They come from diverse business and
professional backgrounds. Their experiences range from general
management to professional practices, from China business to global
enterprises, from private investments to companies listed worldwide. All of
them have proven experiences in forming corporate strategies, risk
management and corporate governance. While the executive Directors
possess management experience and professional knowledge of various
aspects, the diverse composition of the Board enables us to connect with a
wide range of stakeholders including our customers, suppliers, business
partners, investors and colleagues.
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Nomination Committee continued)

Board diversity (Continued)

As a whole, our Directors are of different age groups, length of services in
the Group and educational background (see Profile of Directors and Senior
Management section on pages 104 to 109 for details). The diverse
qualifications, experiences and cognitive approaches on the Board offer a
wider range of perspectives and innovation to corporate issues. The
Nomination Committee considers the current composition and structure of
the Board as appropriate. When considering new appointments in future,
while the Board will take into account the advantages of gender diversity,
the Company’s policy remains that selection should be made on merits in
the context of the mix of talents, skills and experiences which the Board as a
whole requires to be effective.

Directors’ independence

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and at least one of them serving on the
Audit Committee has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise in accordance with
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. Current members of
the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, Dr. Fung
Kwok-King, Victor, Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent. It is currently chaired by Mr. Or Ching-
Fai, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director.

Activities of the remuneration committee in FY2014

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year.

» discussed and authorised the Company to incorporate medium to
long-term incentives for the management’s remuneration package to
align with corporate goals to be achieved in a longer term

* reviewed and approved the Group’s proposals for general salary
adjustments with reference to the market conditions and the Group’s
overall performance

* determined, with delegated responsibility, and reviewed the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management

* made recommendations to the Board about the remuneration of non-
executive Directors
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Remuneration Committee ccontinued)

The Group’s remuneration policy

Our remuneration policy recognises the importance of attracting and
retaining talents as well as performance measurement and accountability. It
has been set to support our Group’s business strategy and reinforce its
performance driven culture. In general, the packages include a mix of basic
salary, pension and discretionary bonus. Various sales incentive programmes
are also designed for frontline colleagues. We have implemented formal
appraisal system with interactive communication for all employees. The
remuneration policy is transparent in the sense of defined measurement of
performance targets and linkage with rewards. In addition to the Group’s
business performance and individual performance, we also consider a
number of factors, such as general economic conditions, living standard in
various cities, package paid by comparable companies and job
responsibilities. Coupled with a structured remuneration policy, we have
made efforts to enhance our employees’ job satisfaction and sense of
belonging (see details in Corporate Social Responsibility on pages 67 to 68).

Remuneration of directors and senior management

The remuneration of executive Directors and senior management comprises
basic salary, pension and discretionary bonus. The discretionary bonus is
incentive-based with a significant portion linking to the overall performance
and profitability of the Group. To better align their rewards with the interests
of our shareholders, a smaller portion of the discretionary bonus is also
related to the share price of the Company. There was about 51%-56% bonus
element in their remuneration package which linked our Group’s
performance to enhance the accountability of our Directors and senior
management. The remuneration of each of the Directors is detailed in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements on page 172). The Remuneration
Committee was of the view that the remuneration of our Directors and
senior management were fair and competitive in relation to the Group’s
strategy and performance and the existing market conditions.

90

REZE2w

REEH M EE

HPF MR EE WS AT B LR FFTZRE
MER  BEREBBRENIHAEENEBRE - 2E
BMRARIIE - —RKFH - FTHEEEATE R
RE RBBIEA - 1IN RPIBAIRE TR ZH
B EREETE - RMEEREXNTIERGE &2
BREZYEHEE HMANFHBERERERS
BRIER R REHBRIO A AENEEER - R T A%
EmEBRRLENABRRIN  HFLEEEZH
HA A= B ELFEARN - AR R 4 E K
¥ RELROHHMKFEEEUBRES - RaHEED
AR E BN R - FAPIBCH PR IN5R 8 T ey TERK BLREAN
BERR(FEE2HEELEET] HEF67268
B)o

ESNREREEETMH

WITESELSREREHFHEBEELNT S  ERER
BBTEAL - MIBTEALREZEIEE - EhAsBiy ALk
B BRI R AN S o T AE MY SRR EAR
REBROFEE R 2 B/ WEIBEAL IR
RRABBMDERER - PINFM P 5% =
56% RIEAL - BAKFKRBHE  ANBREERER
ERENHEAEN - FHESESHFHNFS  F2HE
MERERBRE]IMER - FHEEERA - &
RAEBHRBEANKRE  ARBAHR  EERER
ERENHHEAFMAFRS N -



Attendance at Annual General Meeting and Board
Meetings

BRBFAEGNEEGTANGHE
i RC Bk

Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend for FY2014

2014 BBFEHE/SERHEGRRY

Annual

General Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee

BRRBEAE Exge; ERZES FHzES REZES

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRGEL /1 4/4 - 2/2 2/2
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HRELE /1 4/4 - 2/2 2/2
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian ENEMI 1N 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy griEks 0o/ 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong [ ug=Fte 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PREEAE LA I 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton EDRER A N 4/4 - - -
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Fsak et N1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ENRIZ /1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HERLLE /1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BeAgl L 11 4/4 3/3 - 2/2
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BB T I 4/4 - 2/2 2/2
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BEREE 1/ 4/4 3/3 2/2 -
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey WSt 17l 4/4 3/3 - 2/2
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond V= St /1 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

We will arrange orientation for new Board member joining the Company to
meet with other Board members and to have an overview of the Board
proceedings and culture. We will provide a package of orientation materials
containing information on the operation and business, corporate governance
policies, statutory duties and responsibilities of directors. In order for our
independent non-executive Directors to understand the management,
operation and control systems within the Group, we arrange visits to our
management centres and production sites to enable them to interact with
the management on any recommendation for improvement.

The Company Secretary updates the Directors on the latest developments
and changes of the Listing Rules and the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements in the discharge of their duties. In addition to updates
introduced through internal meetings and presentation materials , we also
apply an electronic training platform to provide an alternative for all
Directors’ continuing professional development in an easily accessible way.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development (continued)
Directors also attended seminars or workshops relevant to their profession

and duties as directors. Their training records during the year are
summarised as follows:

EEABABEEEER®

BRERNEHFAGERERNEERBIFARN
EERTEY - EERNFANEIIRSEBZNT

Training on regulatory development,
directors’ profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FRAGIRE EEEXEIRBR

H b AHBA = E A I
Structured Unstructured
s JEMHEB
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry ERAIE v
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERESE v/
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian EPREMI S & v
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BB E v/ 4
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong FRit &S v/
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PRIgE A SE A v v
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERRER ST v/ 4
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FERE v v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRI A v
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat mEBLE v/
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul ERRF I ST v/
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor B E v v
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon AR v/ v/
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NEE e 4
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond (BN e v/

Company Secretary

Our Company Secretary is Mr. Cheng Ping Hei, Hamilton. He is also an
executive Director and is employed on a full-time basis. During the year, he
had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our Company Secretary coordinates the
supply of information to the Directors. During the year, meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers were provided at least 3 days before the date
of the Board or committee meetings. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board. Appropriate accounting policies have also
been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company and the Group regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company
and the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 125
to 126 of this annual report.

Securities Transactions of Directors and
Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the "Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during FY2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines as required under the
CG Code in respect of the dealings in the securities of the Company by
specified employees (“Relevant Employees”) who are likely to come across
inside information because of their duties. Having made specific enquiry of
all Relevant Employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards as set out in the relevant written guidelines during
Fy2014.

As and when appropriate, the Company will send formal notifications to the
Directors and Relevant Employees reminding them of the “black-out period”
as specified in the Model Code during which they are not allowed to deal in
the securities of the Company.

Moreover, all employees are bound by corporate policies of the Company to
refrain from dealing in the Company’s securities if they are in possession of
any inside information of the Group.

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With the enactment of Part XIVA of the SFO in 2013, the duty of a listed
issuer to disclose inside Information now becomes a statutory duty. Both
the listed issuer and its officers are responsible for the compliance of this
statutory duty. To comply with this statutory duty, our Group has a system
in place to promptly identify and escalate inside information to the Board
for appropriate action.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information ccontinuea)

Established reporting and escalation system

We require all the operating units to fill in monthly questionnaires supplying
data and information relating to the business and corporate developments
and events which are possibly the subject of disclosure under Chapters 13,
14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the SFO. A list of subject
matters and thresholds which are required to be reported internally has
been maintained while the list of connected persons for internal reference is
reviewed regularly. We have also set out a reminder in the questionnaires
for the pre-approval requirements for transactions over a specified threshold
amount and stressing the importance of immediate disclosure of inside
information to the Company Secretary when such information is identified
or suspected between any reporting periods. The questionnaires are
reviewed and the Company Secretary will assess and if necessary escalate
to the Board so that the Board is kept abreast of all information relating to
the current performance of the Group allowing it to make informed
judgment or assessments as to whether any significant changes has
occurred in the operation and course of business of the Group.

Diligent board monitoring

Our operating units prepared regular reports and our management attend
monthly meetings to evaluate the business performance and financial
position of our Group. Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.2, the Group also
provides all directors (including independent non-executive directors) with
monthly management accounts of the Group for them to assess whether
any critical changes has occurred in the financial performance and prospects
of the business of the Group which constitutes inside information and
requires prompt disclosure by the Group.

Continuous market observation

Corporate teams of the Group are responsible for gauging and monitoring
the fluctuation in share prices of the Group on the Stock Exchange and
screening media speculation, market rumours and analysts’ reports. This
exercise serves a few purposes, including (a) to understand the investors’
expectation and the market’s sensitivity to provide background information
for the Directors to assess whether a significant discrepancy exists between
the expectation of the market and the Group’s circumstances and the
likelihood of such information on the Group’s circumstances will lead to
material share price movement when it is made public; (b) to monitor
whether confidentiality of the Group’s inside information (that relies on a
Safe Harbour provision to withhold disclosure subject to the preservation of
confidentiality) has been leaked and therefore prompt disclosure is
immediately required and (c) to assess whether the Group should clarify
media news or market rumours in view of its possible influence in misleading
the market activities.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information ccontinuea)

Formalised communication channel

The Group has spokesmen policy which allows only designated and trained
personnel from investor relations team to hold meetings or briefings or
interviews with the media, analysts and investors. They are required to keep
attendance notes and records for future reference purpose. Besides, media
interviews and media enquires should all be directed to our corporate affairs
team. No unauthorised persons should disclose any information of the
Group to outsiders. Requests from external parties in the ordinary course of
business of the Group for financial information or operating data shall be
approved by our finance department in order to avoid any party sourcing
material information related to the Group through informal channels. So far
as inside information is concerned, we will only stick to the formal
dissemination channel via the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange for equal, timely and effective access by the public.

Established disclosure policy

We adopted our own Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information in 2013
which has been circulated it to all departments in order to raise awareness
of the compliance requirements and responsibilities. Reminders are issued
to remind them of the Group’s controls and procedures related to disclosure
of information whenever appropriate. Furthermore, Directors have attended
seminars and trainings to familiarise themselves with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules and the SFO generally so as to enable
them to discharge their duties in an efficient and responsible manner.

Communication with Shareholders

Our shareholders’ communication policy is to promote effective
communication with our shareholders and other stakeholders and to
encourage them to engage actively with us. To ensure fair and equal access
to material information, we make use of various channels including results
announcements and presentations, annual and interim reports, press
releases and company website. Our company website contains corporate
information, latest publications as well as the recent developments of the
Group, enabling our shareholders to have timely access to the information
of the Group. We also publish regular announcements of key operational
updates to enhance shareholders’ understanding of the Group’s business
trends and its strategies in a timely manner.

Annual General Meeting

In September 2013, our Chairman, Managing Director, chairmen of board
committees (or respective designated member) and external auditors
attended the annual general meeting. The annual general meeting is a
platform for face-to-face communication with our shareholders. Our
Directors were available to answer questions on the performance of the
Group raised by the shareholders. Shareholders who are unable to attend
the meeting are encouraged to vote in advance by proxy sent with the
notice of meeting.

All resolutions proposed were approved by our shareholders with votes
ranging from 98.1% to 100.0%, including the amendments to the Articles in
order to bring the Articles in line with the revised requirements of the Listing
Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2012 and on 1 April 2012,
respectively. Details of the changes have been set out in the circular 27 June
2013. The amended Articles is available on HKExnews website and our
company website.
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Shareholders’ Rights

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and are able to
exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by
the Articles and are also encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings or appoint proxies to attend and vote. Shareholder(s)
holding not less than 10% of the Company’s paid-up capital may request the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and put forward
proposals. The objectives of the meeting must be stated in the related
requisition signed and deposited with our Company Secretary at the
Company’s headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as director in a
general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must be stated in a
nomination notice signed and deposited together with a notice of
willingness signed by the candidate to our Company Secretary at the
Company’s headquarters or at the Registration Office (Tricor Investor
Services Ltd., Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong) of the Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board could email their enquiries to ir@chowtaifook.com.

Investor Relations

We are committed to promoting open and constructive conservations with
our shareholders, the analysts, media and potential investors. Our investor
relations team which comprises the executive Directors and senior
management, hosts active dialogue with institutional shareholders and the
public through investor conferences, non-deal roadshows, investor
meetings, annual general meeting as well as media interviews and press
releases. In FY2014, we attended over 530 one-on-one and group meetings.
We also participated in 12 investor conferences and 17 non-deal roadshows
covering Amsterdam, Beijing, Boston, Frankfurt, Hong Kong, London, New
York, Paris, Singapore, Stockholm, Taipei and Tokyo. Further, we maintain
regular dialogue with a large number of analysts from research institutions,
of which 27 of them publish reports of the Company regularly.
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Investor Relations ccontinued)

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2014 are set out

"EEB R

BN 2014 BT BFEE 20

THRBEEZEETNE

below:
FY2014 Event Location
204 TR E 55 1ty 26
April 2013 J.P. Morgan Greater China London Forum 2014 London
2013F 4 A FERRBIEEERE e
Daiwa Consumer and Gaming Forum 2013 Hong Kong
AMBHIREESE BB
June 2013 Standard Chartered Earth’s Resources Forum 2013 Hong Kong
201346 A BIRAERNE BB
September 2013 Barclays Asia Consumer & Gaming Conference 2013 Hong Kong
201349 A ErRFEKREEHNTE BB
CLSA 20th Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
BRREEMIE BB
October 2013 HSBC 3rd Annual China Consumption Conference Hong Kong
20134F10 A ESRITREEMNE BB
Jefferies 3rd Annual Asia Corporate Access Summit Hong Kong
Jefferies B EM & BB
December 2013 UBS Global Emerging Markets One-on-One Conference New York
2013412 8 IniRIEEEHE i)
Ji Asia "The Pan-Asia Demand Paradigm” 2013 Conference Hong Kong
Ji Asia iR EE TS B
January 2014 Deutsche Bank 12th Annual dbAccess China Conference Beijing
2014514 EELSBTREEMNE bR
March 2014 Daiwa Investment Conference Tokyo 2014 Tokyo
20144 3 A ANBHREEHNES R
Credit Suisse 17th Annual Asian Investment Conference Hong Kong
InfsiREEHE B

We hold press and analysts conferences at least twice a year following the
release of interim and full year results announcements at which the
executive Directors and senior management of the Group are available

to answer questions regarding the performance of the Group. The
presentations and the webcasts for these conferences are available on our
company website. The company website contains an investor relations

section to reach out to the investment community and public with the latest

information on the Company.

We also promote proactive communication through the Company’s email
alerts and direct contact with our investor relations team via email at
ir@chowtaifook.com.
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Internal Control and Audit

The Board’s oversight on internal control system

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness annually. In the year under review, the Board has
reviewed, through the Audit Committee, the Group’s internal control system
and is not aware of any significant issues that would have an adverse impact
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system. The
review is based on the internal control model set down by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) which
covers the areas of control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and monitoring within the Group. These
procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
errors or losses or fraud.

Internal control system

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are applied in every segment
of our vertically integrated business model. In addition, we compiled a
Group Internal Control Manual setting out procedures for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The use of management information system and technology has been
highly supportive in building our centralised monitoring systems to place
tight control over the business activities in view of our organisation size and
geographical horizon. It allows close tracking of various inputs and outputs
of our business such as raw materials, human resources, our products and
customer relationship. It also traps audit trails in the authorisation system.
User permissions and responsibility of authorisation are clearly defined and
adequate records can be maintained in the system.

Reports and variance analysis of each segment in the upstream, midstream
and downstream, such as the performance of each POS and each product
category are easily accessible. The transparent information flow alerts us
promptly for deviations. Benchmarking with historical database and
comparables also act as a detection device for unusualness.

During the year, in order to reinforce our internal control system, we have
conducted special review on certain processes, such as inventory controls
of our e-commerce business, supply chain of diamond and internal pricing
policies on gold products. We have also designed a new programme of POS
audit to strengthen the monitoring of controls in our POS. Audit checks at
POS will be increased and computer programme will be upgraded to aid in
tracking audit trails and conducting analysis. This new programme is ready
to roll out in the forthcoming financial year.
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Internal Control and Audit (continuea)

Internal audit function

Our internal audit team co-operated with PricewaterhouseCoopers to
review our major operational, financial, compliance and risk management
controls on a continual basis. The internal audit works are scheduled in a
three-year audit plan, which is reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.
The audit plan is designed based on risk assessment. It aims at covering
each significant business unit involved in the Group’s day-to-day
management within a reasonable period.

During the year under review, the internal audit team has completed review
in the Group’s financial controls, procurement and production management,
IT system controls etc. They prepared reports and communicated their
findings and recommmendations to the responsible business units and
circulated to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team held three
meetings to discuss with the Audit Committee and the executive Directors
on the highlights of their findings. The management is responsible for taking
appropriate actions to rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the
audit reports and the Risk Management Committee follows up with the
business units for the implementation progress of those internal control
recommendations so that the issues raised by the internal audit team are
properly resolved within a reasonable period subject to the priority of risks.
During FY2014, the audit team did not raise any significant issues on the
Group’s internal control system.

Risk Management

Risk governance framework

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s risk profile with the
appropriate risk appetite and formulating the Group’s risk management
strategies. It set up the Risk Management Committee in 2012, comprising
the Managing Director and other four executive Directors, and senior
executives of the Group as part of its commitment to establishing and
maintaining a robust and practical risk management framework in order to
provide reasonable assurance for the achievement of the Group’s strategic
directives. The Enterprise Risk Management Policy Manual laid down the
rules for the determination of risk management strategy, designed the
platform for continuous risk management process, and developed an
enterprise-wide risk management structure from accountability at business
unit level to leadership role at Board level.
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ERERRE

Risk Management (continued)

Risk infrastructure and oversight

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for (i) building up and
leading the enterprise risk management processes, (ii) assessing and
prioritising key risks and (iii) assigning risk ownership and overseeing the
progress of works of risk owners. The Risk Management Committee held
regular meetings during FY2014 and prepared half-yearly reports to the
Audit Committee. It aims at ensuring that effective internal controls and
continuous improvement measures are in place to mitigate risks of strategic
or external environment, financial, operational and compliance nature with
respect to the conduct of the Group’s business.

Risk management process

The Group identifies and assesses risks both at the Group level and the
business unit level. The Risk Management Committee monitors and updates
the Group’s risk profile and exposure and reviews the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system in mitigating risks.

In this year, the Risk Management Committee drove the first annual cycle of
risk management. The cycle started with departments’ risk registers, which
were compiled by key business and corporate units requiring managers and
department heads to identify key risks within their area of accountability,
form the objective and assess the risk level. This exercise raised the
departments’ awareness to the potential risks and impact in their existing
operation and identified areas requiring further attention and work done in
order to mitigate those risks. At the end of the year, they evaluated on the
progress and re-assessed the risks level.
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Risk Management (continued)

Risk management process (Continued)

The Risk Management Committee analysed and complied the Group’s Risk
Register. Management of human resources, supply chain, reputation and
policy and procedures were prioritised as the Group’s major risks in a
meeting attended by our senior executives to evaluate the Group’s risk
profile. The assessment was raised to the Board to facilitate proper
strategies and allocate resources for managing the major risks. At the same
time, the Risk Management Committee assigned risk owners to roll out
action plans and strengthen the control procedures to mitigate the major
risks identified. At each year end, the Risk Management Committee made a
report to the Audit Committee on the monitoring of the Group’s risks.

Whistleblowing Policy

During the year, we have increased promoting the whistleblowing policy
which is open for all staff members to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in any matters related to the Group and laid down the
protocols in its handling processes.

The aim of establishing the whistleblowing policy is to detect and rectify
control weakness at the earliest stage. More importantly, the policy
reinforces our determination in preserving an integrity culture in all levels of
our organisation.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEASRENT

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry# (Chairman) NC.RC  Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
BRAEE L (EFE) NEEE B RS 7 i R BB R

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) N“R®  QOverall management of the Group

HAELE (EFHEE) REENEEER

Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian* Branding and marketing activities and e-commerce operations

B ERI S mEERERTISHERSARE FREHEE

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy* Procurement of diamonds and gemstones and production management
BB L R  BRAFEBUREEER

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Mainland China and overseas operations

FRitE 2 S R B A AN 2 RS

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert Diamond procurement and operations of Diamond Department
BRIEEAE S B BATERES

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton Financial management and company secretarial functions

B IRER SE A WIS E IR R A R ME B

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Hong Kong and Macau operations

REREAE PR R 2 SE T

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson# Bank and landlord relationship management

BRI S A RITREFTBERER

Mr. Koo Tong-Fat Procurement of raw materials — coloured stones, jadeite and pearls
hEEEL BEME(BEEER FRRDK)HE

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul acNe  Independent non-executive Directors serve a significant role in
BEBAFISE A the Board to bring independent judgment on the performance,

development and risk management of the Group. As chairmen or

%rl}]r;@ginok-ng, victor o members of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
I BURE Remuneration Committee, they also undertake detailed
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon NSHIRE governance work under their respective terms of reference
EEREAE BUFRNTESNESTAEEEERE  RAEEORE  BRKEAR
e L iR, ey o ERRTEIERC FABKEZAR  REZEURAMERUOTES
R4S 5 A KB HEMBEESANBEETREENERLE
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond IRES A, NE
BB &
NC = Nomination Committee member
REEBEKE
RC = Remuneration Committee member
FMEZEEKE
AC = Audit Committee member
EZLZEGKE
* Committee Chairman
LZEGERE

£

Four Directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other Directors are not related to each
other.

WEEEREARRTERRBEENTHRKE - BREZIN MERMEEZMIMAEE -



Chairman and Executive Director

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBS

Aged 67, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an
executive Director in July 201 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is
responsible for the strategic direction and overall performance of the Group.
He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Dr. Cheng is also
chairman and an executive director of New World Development Company
Limited, chairman and managing director of New World China Land Limited,
chairman and an executive director of NWS Holdings Limited and
International Entertainment Corporation, chairman and a non-executive
director of New World Department Store China Limited and Newton
Resources Ltd, a non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited and SJM Holdings Limited (appointed on 31 May 2013), and an
independent non-executive director of HKR International Limited and Hang
Seng Bank Limited (appointed on 26 May 2014), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. In addition, Dr. Cheng is also a director of several
substantial shareholders of the Company, including Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I) Limited,

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its
subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is chairman of the
Advisory Council for The Better Hong Kong Foundation, chairman of the
Advisory Panel of the Asian Management Institute, Richard Ivey School of
Business at The University of Western Ontario and a Standing Committee
Member of the Twelfth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Dr. Cheng is the eldest son of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, the father of Mr.
Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a cousin
of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a
nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 58, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing Director in
July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. Mr. Wong has diverse experience in both
operations and management. He was responsible for developing the
Group’s market in Mainland China and in 2008 he was promoted to
managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Watches and Clocks Advisory Committee,
assistant chairman and social director of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths” Association Ltd., chairman of the supervising committee of the
Hong Kong & Kowloon Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd,
vice chairman of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China,
vice-chairman of the Yantian District General Chamber of Commerce and a
member of the Yantian District Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.
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EERSREEASRENT

Executive Directors ccontinued)

Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

Aged 34, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the banding and marketing
activities, customer relationship management and e-commerce operations
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at UBS AG from
September 2003 to April 2006. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group, a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company,

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is an executive director and joint general
manager of New World Development Company Limited, an executive
director of New World China Land Limited, New World Department Store
China Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, and a non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited and Modern Media
Holdings Limited (appointed on 1 April 2013), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong . Mr. Cheng is also chairman of New World Group
Charity Foundation Limited, vice-chairman of the All-China Youth
Federation, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, vice-chairman of the Youth
Federation of State-owned Enterprises, chairman of the China Young
Leaders Foundation, and honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation and
Fundraising Committee, Wu Zhi Qiao (Bridge to China) Charitable
Foundation. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University. Mr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a
son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy,
a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy
and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 36, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for procurement of diamonds and
gemstones as well as production management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu Ming Investment Management Limited from
1999 to 2000 as a corporate finance executive. Mr. Cheng is an executive
director of New World Development Company Limited and a non-executive
director of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited (became listed
in Hong Kong on 27 September 2013), both of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group and a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
The University of Western Ontario. Mr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr.
Cheng Yu-Tung, a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-
Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng
Chi-Kong, Adrian and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Aged 51, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive Director in
July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group’s Mainland China and
overseas operations. Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 33
years. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan is a
non-executive director of Giordano International Limited, which is a listed
public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Jewellery Advisory Committee, an
administrative director of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of
China, an executive vice-chairman of the Guangdong Gold and Silver
Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a council member of the Shenzhen Gold
Jewellery Association, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery
and Jade Industry’s Association and a director of the Gemmological
Institute, China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Aged 63, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for diamond procurement and
operations of the Group’s Diamond Department. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business from Western Illinois University. Mr. Chan is a Graduate Gemologist
of the Gemological Institute of America, a Fellow of The Gemmological
Association of Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the Gemological
Institute of America, Alumni Association.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 39, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of
the Group and is responsible for the Group’s financial management and
company secretarial functions. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 49, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Suen is a general manager who is responsible for the Group’s
Hong Kong and Macau operations. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 55, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group’s bank and
landlord relationship management. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group and a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Cheng
is currently an executive director of International Entertainment Corporation,
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is vice-president
of The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society. Mr. Cheng holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of Hawaii,
Honolulu. Mr. Cheng is a nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a cousin of Dr.
Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, an uncle of Mr.
Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a nephew of
Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

Aged 63, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. He is responsible for the procurement of raw materials
— coloured stones, jadeite and pearls of the Group. Mr. Koo has been in the
jewellery industry for 38 years. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Koo holds a continuing education certificate in operations
management from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Productivity Council and is also a full member of The Hong Kong
Management Association. Mr. Koo is accounting director of the Hong Kong
Jewellers & Goldsmiths Association.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP

Aged 77, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Lake Forest College (lllinois, United States) and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Wharton Graduate School of Business at
The University of Pennsylvania. He is deputy chairman and an independent
non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, a listed public company in
Hong Kong; and an independent non-executive director of Global Logistic
Properties Limited (a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange)
and Pacific Alliance China Land Limited (a company listed on the AIM Board
of the London Stock Exchange). In addition, he is chairman of China High
Growth Group. He was an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Limited and Pou Sheng International (Holdings) Limited,
which are both listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was also an
independent non-executive chairman of Vietnam Infrastructure Limited,
which is listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange, until his
resignation in April 2014. He was a former member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council as well as the former chairman of Inchcape Pacific
Limited, N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, The Link Management
Limited and the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Fung holds
Bachelor’'s and Master’s Degrees in Electrical Engineering from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a Doctorate in Business
Economics from Harvard University. He is group chairman of the Fung
Group (formerly known as Li & Fung Group), a Hong Kong based
multinational which comprises major subsidiaries in trading, logistics,
distribution and retailing. They include publicly-listed Li & Fung Limited,
Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Trinity Limited. He is also honorary
chairman of Li & Fung Limited. In addition, Dr. Fung is an independent
non-executive director of Koc Holding A.S. (a company listed on the Istanbul
Stock Exchange), and China Petrochemical Corporation (PRC). He was an
independent non-executive director of Baosteel Group Corporation (PRC)
from October 2005 to January 2013, and BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (Hong Kong) from June 2002 to 11 June 2014. Dr. Fung is founding
chairman of the Fung Global Institute, an independent non- profit think-tank
based in Hong Kong. He completed his term as honorary chairman of the
International Chamber of Commerce ('ICC’) at the end of June 2013, but
continues to chair the World Trade Agenda Initiative of ICC’'s G20 Advisory
Group. In public service, Dr. Fung is a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and a vice-chairman of China Centre for
International Economic Exchanges. He is also a member of the Economic
Development Commission of the Hong Kong Government. Dr. Fung was
chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (1991-2000), the
Hong Kong representative on the APEC Business Advisory Council (1996-
2003), chairman of the Hong Kong Airport Authority (1999-2008), chairman
of the Council of The University of Hong Kong (2001-2009), chairman of the
Hong Kong-Japan Business Cooperation Committee (2004-2010), chairman
of the Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council (2004-February 2013) and
a member of the Commission on Strategic Development of the Hong Kong
Government (2005-June 2012), chairman of ICC (2008-2010) and a
member of WTO Panel on Defining the Future of Trade (2012-April 2013).
The Government of Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2003 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to
the community in Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors continued)

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwong is an
independent supervisor of the supervisory committee of Beijing Capital
International Airport Company Limited, an independent non-executive
director of Agile Property Holdings Limited, China COSCO Holdings
Company Limited, China Power International Development Limited, CITIC
Telecom International Holdings Limited, Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, and OP Financial Investments
Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Quam Limited until his retirement
in September 2012 and an independent non-executive director of China
Chengtong Development Group Limited until his resignation on 1 November
2013. Mr. Kwong was a Partner of Price Waterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an
independent member of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
from 1992 to 1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the
Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive
director of C C Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group
Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited and Shougang
Concord Technology Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Limited until his resignation on
10 May 2014. Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds a number of other
public and community service positions including being a non-official
member of the Executive Council and a member of the Legislative Council
in Hong Kong, the chairman of the Assessment Committee of Mega Events
Fund, a member of the board of Airport Authority Hong Kong, a member of
the board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority, a council
member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a general committee
member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a member of
Independent Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee and a
member of the Fight Crime Committee.

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Or is also chairman, chief executive officer and an executive
director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, vice-chairman and an
independent non-executive director of G-Resources Group Limited,
chairman and an independent non-executive director of Esprit Holdings
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited and Television Broadcasts Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Or was a former
vice-chairman of Hang Seng Bank Limited until his retirement in May 2009.
Mr. Or was deputy chairman of the Council of City University of Hong Kong
until 31 December 2013.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEASRENT

Honorary Chairman

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, GBM

Aged 88, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as Company’s Honorary
Chairman and a non-executive Director in July 2011. He retired from the
position of non-executive Director in December 2012 and retained the title
of Honorary Chairman. Dr. Cheng is a director of several substantial
shareholders of the Company, including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, the grandfather of Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr.
Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and the elder brother of Mr. Cheng Yu Wai.

Honorary Advisers to the Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Pak-Tao

Aged 83, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
research and development. Mr. Ho is also a director of a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its
subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Wong Kwok-Ting

Aged 83, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
procurement. Mr. Wong is also a director of a substantial shareholder

of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 82, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a substantial shareholder

of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is the younger brother of
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng
Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a granduncle of Mr.
Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 63, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser
to the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its
subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a nephew of
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a younger cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, an
elder cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and a nephew of Mr. Cheng
Yu-Wai.
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Senior Management

Dr. Tan Guet-Lan, Lauren

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2011, is General Counsel of the Group. She is
responsible for overseeing the Legal Department of the Group. Dr. Tanis a
lawyer with over 20 years of international legal experience in regional and
global roles in Asia, North America and Europe providing legal advice and
support to multinational and start-up companies at both operational and
management level.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 42, joined the Group as director of the Branding Department in 2010.
Mr. Chan is responsible for the branding and marketing activities of the
Group. Mr. Chan has over 19 years of experience in luxury branding and
marketing.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong

Aged 43, joined the Group in 1993, is senior manager of the Management
Information System Department. Mr. Tsang is responsible for the information
system of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 21 years of experience in information
technology.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 53, joined the Group in 1986, is senior manager of the Diamond
Department. Mr. Wong is responsible for the operation of the Diamond
Department and diamond manufacturing management of the Group. Mr.
Wong has over 27 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

Aged 42, joined the Group in 1994, is senior manager in the Procurement
(Gemstones) Department. Mr. Cheng is responsible for managing and
purchasing gemstones such as jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the
Group. Mr. Cheng has over 19 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

Aged 51, joined as head of Production Management Centre of the Group in
2011. Mr. Tam is responsible for the Group’s production management. He has
over 21 years of experience in jewellery manufacturing and 7 years of
experience in gold inventory management.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 40, joined the Group in 1999, is the general manager responsible for
managing the Mainland China Management Centre. Mr. Liu has over 12 years
of experience in retail and administrative management.
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Directors’ Report

EEEH/E

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2014.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group'’s core business
is manufacturing and selling of mass luxury and high-end luxury jewellery
including gem-set products, gold products and platinum/karat gold
products; and distributing watches of various brands. The activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for FY2014 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 127.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK19.0
cents per share (FY2013: HK16.0 cents per share), amounting to
approximately HK$1,900.0 million (FY2013: HK$1,600.0 million). Such
payment of dividends will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 20 August 2014 and are payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Thursday, 28 August 2014. Together with the interim dividend of HK17.0
cents per share paid in January 2014, the total distribution of dividend by
the Company for FY2014 will be HK36.0 cents per share (FY2013: HK22.0
cents).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group is set out
on page 204.

Share Capital

Details of the Company'’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no movement in the share capital
during the year.

Reserves

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 130. Distributable reserves of the
Company at 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately HK$5,535.2 million
(31 March 2013: HK$7,134.6 million).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman Islands.

n4

B S RAIRE AR 7 2014 S E AR AEE
BB AP BBER -

FEER

RARB—REEERAR - REBNZLER SR
%&ﬁﬁilmbfﬁ%&%ﬁﬂk% BIEKREERER
EeEMBANS KeER TREZERERE-
T EWBRRIREBERS NGRS P IEIRKRMTE 36

ESEV &

AEER 2014 RFENEERIINE 127 ENEE
BREEME2EKRERA

SESEZRNFRIOBIMQQOZHBFE : Hi%
16.078 1) & H£#91,900.0 B & HE T (2013 K F [Z -
1,600.0 B BB L) ARBK S - RIS EAFR
REARAER2014F8 20 (2H =) 8172k
JERRRBEF RS it - WERN2014F8A28H (2
HAPO) & R AR BT AR A B R A 2 B BRIk
ZERE - #ERD R 201451 AR EREF
B17.084l - AR RQ TR 2014 B [ Fr 90 R IR B 48 58
AEIR36.081L (2013 ERE : 22.078(0) °

E NI E S
FRME - BERREHEHEIINGA BB RRN
5116 0

MM E

AEENFREAREENAGBREHIINFE 204 7 -

N
AR FBAREIR GRS
BARE -

BRI 29 - F AR

R
FARBOEHHINBEB0ENGEEREEHE -
M2014F3A3NE - AR A A #H o k& E RO
55352B BB (2013F3A31H 713468 &%
TT) °

BrtEEE

ERMAKFAEREAFBETANBENELEEEN
1632 o



Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

In accordance with Article 84, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Chi-
Kong, Adrian, Mr. Koo Tong-Fat, Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor and Mr. Kwong
Che-Keung, Gordon will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company
and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
financial year or at any time during the reporting year.
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Directors’ Report
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AEEFEFBATETETRS  BHRFERSE
BB REIHRAKFT - BARRBRE R RIE %
SR04 FEANN IR LFEMER S - ZER
SETERAMEREANHEERBEER - ARHRE
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with connected
persons with expected annual transaction amounts exceeding the “de
minimis” exemption threshold and therefore the Company reports these
non-exempt continuing connected transactions during FY2014 under the
Listing Rules. These transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and

sale and purchase of goods. Information about the connected persons is
shown on page 118. Details of these transactions are set out in the tables

below.

Lease of premises

Name of
counterparties

RAHHER

CTFE
ARBELE

NwWD
it RBR

YI=BEE

NWDS
FttREE

Lifestyle International
FIEEIRR

Main purposes of

Standalone retail

Offices and standalone

Concessionaire

Concessionaire

the leases shops, industrial and retail shops in counters operated in counters operated in
office uses in Hong Kong department stores in department stores in
Hong Kong Mainland China both Hong Kong and
Mainland China
HEFERS REBNBILTEE REBRPFNE R RPEAREERA] REB R A
ITERBAERR BT EE FRENE BEARIRRZERE
Master/framework 28 November 2011* 28 November 2011/ 22 March 2012** 29 November 2011*

agreement date

AR A RAEZR ek B 4B

201N A28H*

1 April 2014

20NENE288,
20144 ANH

20123 22 H

201N H298 *

Next renewal date

TREZEBH

31 March 2017
20173 A 31H

30 June 2017
2017 6 A30H

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

31 March 2017
2017 3 A 31H

Annual cap 97.0 136.0 370.0 17.0
FELR
Amount incurred 84.7 91.6 124.6 412

ERELSH

FY2015 106.0 141.0 263.0 57.0
2015 B F E
FYy2016 108.0 178.0 348.0 74.0
2016 I F &
FY2017 108.0 199.0 455.0 97.0
2017 B E
Notes: BisE
* These agreements were renewed on 1 April 2014. : ZEHHENR2014F4 AIHEE
- This agreement will be renewed on 1July 2014, o EZinEiE R 20147 A1REE -



Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) BHERMERZ S

Sale and purchase of goods HHERBEER
Name of counterparties NWDS NWCL
RBHEFER HitRBE it R B E
Major types of sale and purchase Use of shopping vouchers, prepaid Use of gift vouchers to purchase goods
of goods shopping cards, joint name vouchers in our Group’s POS and settlement of
etc. to purchase goods at NWDS respective voucher value and rebates;
stores, and settlement of respective sale of gold products

purchase value, commissions and
rebates, where appropriate

HEREEERNEERE FRHEES BENEBRREZEESRS FREFRASEETSEURESR
Rt REEEANBEEER - WEH WHEMAAEESFEERE : HEESEMR
HEREEEE B L2 (Em)

Master/framework agreement date 22 March 2012/11 April 2014 19 March 2013

fRE SER B H 20129 3 A22H 20144 ANA 201343 A19H

Next renewal date 30 June 2017 30 June 2015

TR #EZ B 2017% 6 A30H 201546 A30H

Annual cap 85.0 196.0

FE LR

Amount incurred 21.2 829

FY2015 49.0 267.4

2015 FAFE

FY2016 64.0 N/A iEF

2016 IR FE

FY2017 96.0 N/A &

2017 A BUF fE
The Company has entered into master agreements or framework RATIBEI R E B SER B E IR E Lilds
agreements to set out the guiding principles governing the above BEREXHNBERA - AEBRAEEARERER
continuing connected transactions. The Group has formal quotations and P B4 1 3% B HE B E (B BUR AR R (B 51 32 5 &K
price comparison mechanism or approved pricing policies to ensure the BIEREERNR - BIR A TREREE -

terms on individual transactions are on normal commercial terms and on
arm’s length basis.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

Relationships between counterparties

The abovementioned counterparties are connected persons of the
Company mainly due to direct or indirect shareholding held by the
Company’s substantial shareholder, CTF Holding. Shareholding relationships
among the Company, CTFE, NWD, NWDS, NWCL and Lifestyle International
are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

Notes:
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CTF Holding®

BHEEER S

HERXSHT 2BHE

LR SHATHARRARNEEAL  ETEHAERA
RIEERECTF Holding Bz s MEFEME - AR
Al BAABOE FHALRE  FHAFE - #iF
o B s FE B A BB A IS AR B R R B &SI T

89.3%

The Company

ESN

100.0%

43.0% 100.0%

NWD®
HFHRBR

Go Create
Limited

72.3%

NWDS®

FHERRE

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

BREEEBRRAF

New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)
Mttt RERBR AR (RHRKE :17)

New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)
Tttt A A EPBEERAR (RHNRE : 825)

New World China Land Limited (stock code: 917)
it AR B EAR AR (RHONRSR - 917)

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212)
FMraEBIRR R E AR A T (RHR5R - 1212)

The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to
illustrate the relationships between the connected parties. The information is
sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange
website as at the date of annual report, which however may not be updated or
correct.
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70.3%

Real Reward
Limited

NWCL®

Lifestyle
International®




Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
Company'’s auditor to perform certain review procedures in order to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported the
review procedures to the Board and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions for FY2014 (i) have received approval of the Board;
(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable; (iii) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the
respective cap amounts for FY2014. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Group’s continuing
connected transactions and the report of the auditor and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions are (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to (or from)
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group’s continuing
connected transactions. The Directors confirm that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in so far as they are applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions that did
not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules made during
the year were disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group’s revenue were attributed by
the Group’s five largest customers and 61.6% of the Group’s total purchases
were attributed by the Group’s five largest suppliers and 38.0% of the
Group’s total purchases were attributed by the Group’s largest supplier. To
the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any shareholders
who owned 5.0% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2014 or any of their respective associates held any interest in any
of the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and =R = 1THA B RARQ A 34
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares BtAE 2y~ B MEREZE
and Debentures of the Company or Associated RER MR

Corporation

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and R2014F3A310 - ARAEFERESTHRAE KE
the chief executives of the Company and their associates in the shares, E7HEARAAR REEBEE(ERERESF LS
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated BEPIE XV E) skt - BB REEES %A
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been BEBARIMEEMEXVBETREIND D MG
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 NE NPT 2 MR R IR E S R B IR
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required FEI2EME - M BRETHFENELMAZERZ K
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to KA SURIEE SR £ AR AUMT 810 /IR ARl - A
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out HMEARN R LI P 2 Em ORBEFIT

in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares

RBRBz2HE
Number of shares
RAEE
Approximate
Personal Spouse Corporate % of
interests interests interests Total  shareholding
BARER (TR 5 FEER &3t =R
The Company (ordinary shares AT (BERER
of HK$1.00 each) EE1.00%ET)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAE LT 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.0%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRELE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEMEE 20,0007 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong [ERid=F 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BREBEA 4 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRIRER A4 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEaasE 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HERLA 12,000 12,000 0.0%
International Entertainment BIPRIRE R D T
Corporation (ordinary shares (BEBRER
of HK$1.00 each) EE1.0087T)
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter b S bt 4,000 4,000 8,000 0.0%
Note: HaE -
m These shares are beneficially-owned by a company which is wholly-owned by ©) ZEROEBERTELERBEN RO ERHES -

Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares

TERRNEFED

REE RS G0 E 33615 BF BN B LM
TERF(EER LMHRADR204F3AINEBRHE
RNATRMG RBERDOESSARTT ¢

RBRB 2R
Number of shares
:8viE  E
Beneficial Corporate Approximate %
Name interests interests Total of shareholding
=18 BaEs EEER aF ERENEHAH
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited @ 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.2%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited @ 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.2%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited @ 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited @ 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.2%
Note: Iy

©) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings
1) Limited each holds approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited, which in turn holds an approximately 78.6% interest in
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited and
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited is respectively deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the Company. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited holds the shares of
the Company directly.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed on 17 November
2011. No options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Scheme since its adoption up to the date of this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnels,
to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive
for the future development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board
may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries and
employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants or
advisers) whom the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

[©) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited &
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1) Limited & &
M Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited® B ¥ & #
49.0% N 46.7% % % * M Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited 8] % Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited ¥
B #786% % = It Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited * Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 1) Limited &% Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited E BB AR ARRRMDPHEEER - M
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited B|E##H A AR
AR

R T

RE20NFENA7HARGEN—HRESEARZ 2
AR T —TEBE AR RT & ([T 8] )) - BT EIER
EAFHEAH - AFBERD - 1TESHEBIRE -

Zat Bl e ERBRAERAR R REN R E RS AR
BEMERIAR - BEREREAEE  SEHAAR
SEAKERMERNE 7 - EFGABHIBREX
AERERBERAEASEFERRBELERMNES
(BEATES  FATEERBUIERTES) K
AEMEARNES AEENEEURERNEMA
T (BFEBAARER) X HEARE -
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the Company’s
listing date 15 December 2011, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme
Mandate Limit”), which represented 10% of the shares as at the date of this
annual report. The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with
shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may not exceed

10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’

approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options which
have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out
in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the
shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee (the
“Option Period”) shall be the period to be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of making an offer, which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the offer date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an option may
be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time during the
Option Period in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and the terms
on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an
option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any event shall
not be less than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; or (¢) the nominal
value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date of
conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Associated Corporation” and “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company, any
subsidiary or its holding company or any fellow subsidiary, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$38.0 million (FY2013: HK$1.2 million).

Remuneration Policy and Pension Scheme

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making reference
to legal framework, market conditions and performance of the Group and
individual staff (including the Directors). The remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and member of the senior
management of the Group are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee.

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2014, the market capitalisation of the listed shares of the
Company was approximately HK$122.2 billion based on the total number of
10,000,000,000 issued shares of the Company and the closing price of
HK$12.22 per share.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the Directors
confirm that the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of
10.7%, which is a lower prescribed percentage of public float requirement
accepted at the discretion of the Stock Exchange.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB E

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 127 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor's Responsibility (continuec)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmRkHMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & Z 201493 A31HILFE

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ million HK$ million
Bz HEBT BEBT
Revenue St 7 77,407.1 57,433.9
Cost of goods sold SHERAR (56,254.8) (41150.8)
Gross profit EF 21,152.3 16,283.1
Other income HAA 8 351.7 296.2
Other gains and losses H Al s & g8 9 130.2 27.4
Selling and distribution costs HHE R HAR (10,035.6) (7,444.8)
Administrative expenses THAX (2,171.6) (1,736.2)
Other expenses HibFx (38.0) a.2)
Finance costs AR A 10 (222.8) (329.5)
Share of results of a joint venture DME—REEDEZFEE 18 3.2 -
Profit before taxation BRE AEF 17 9,163.0 7,095.0
Taxation THIE 13 (1,713.8) (1,416.6)
Profit for the year FERF 7,449.2 5,678.4
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2w -
Item that will not be reclassified BEET BN 7EE
subsequently to profit or loss: EBmAEL -
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme — EFtE R EEMNE S 28.3 .
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to & AIGE @ EF AR 187517
profit or loss: IEH :
— exchange differences arising on —BREEENERERE
translation 262.3 591
— share of translation reserve of —DME—REEREZ
ajoint venture BERE 0.1 -
262.4 591
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEMEAEKEE 290.7 59.1
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHWSEEH 7,739.9 57375
Profit for the year attributable to: AT FEEFERT
Shareholders of the Company VNG5S 7,272.0 5,505.3
Non-controlling interests TR 177.2 1731
7,449.2 56784
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT &FEEEZEKEELEE !
Shareholders of the Company /NG5S 7,547.8 5,561.9
Non-controlling interests IS 192.1 175.6
7,739.9 5,737.5
Earnings per share — Basic BEREA — EX 14 HK72.7 cents #fli HK55.1 cents 71l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2014 2014463 A31H

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ million HK$ million
Mzt BEBT BEAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B KRR 6 3,054.1 2,551
Prepaid lease payments TEREERIE 7 174.6 1721
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, I REYIZE ~ B RS
plant and equipment BffEE 283.6 464.0
Interest in a joint venture R—REELEZ#R 18 10.9 14.0
Loan receivables FEWE R 19 36.5 23.0
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 20 703.1 613.4
4,262.8 34416
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 42,543.7 27,314.8
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MR EIE 22 4,872.7 3,972.5
Loan receivables N E K 9 144.5 134.9
Convertible bonds Al H i E A 23 21.5 243
Pledged bank deposits BIRARITER 24 5.3 257
Short-term bank deposits FEHBIRT TR 24 500.0 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHBRIRS 24 9,466.6 8.304.8
57,554.3 39,777.0
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables B9 R EMERNFIE 25 4,128.3 1,753.8
Amounts due to non-controlling FEASH T B A B FEFE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries A% B FRIE 26 228.2 3511
Taxation payable FESBIIE 1,064.0 4722
Bank borrowings RITER 27 6,299.6 1,000.0
Gold loans =2EEE 28 10,786.8 4,835.7
22,506.9 8,412.8
Net current assets REBEETFE 35,047.4 31,364.2
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 39,310.2 34,805.8
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEFAYE 33 225.0 251.3
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE 20 632.8 693.8
857.8 9451
Net assets EEFH 38,452.4 33,860.7
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2014 2013

NOTE HK$ million HK$ million
Mzt BEER BEET
Share capital A 29 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves B 27,173.3 22,9255
Equity attributable to shareholders of RAFRREGER
the Company 37,173.3 32,9255
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AE S 1,279.1 935.2
38,452.4 33,860.7
The consolidated financial statements on pages 127 to 203 were approved EE22R2014F6 A17 B AW RETIZEHNE 127
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 June 2014 and E203B ZEREEHE - WHILTREEE -
signed on its behalf by:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BMRAgEL BERELE ERIRER A
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E EE 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAREEDE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZE2014F3 A3 HILFE

Attributable
to
Statutory shareholders Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Translation Retained of the controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Company interests Total
EEBH ARRARR R
B R EE KAlRE iEe BERE REEF BElE FERER &t
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BBAT BEET BBET BEAT BRET BEAT BEET BEAT BBET
(note a) (note b)
(Hizta) (Histb)
At T April 2012 202F4 A1H 10,000.0 54987 2,499.5 4414 1137.6 9,4011 28,978.3 594.7 29,573.0
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 5505.3 5505.3 1731 56784
Other comprehensive income FEEMPERE
for the year N = N - 56.6 - 56.6 25 591
Total comprehensive income FE2AKZRSE
for the year - = - = 56.6 5,505.3 55619 175.6 57375
Capital contributions from REMBAR
non-controlling shareholders FRBRBRETE
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 196.9 196.9
Acquisition of additional interests  WEE—%
in a subsidiary HIBA R EIMER - - - - - - - (0.4) 0.4)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR 2%
without a loss of control [N F TRl - - - - - (88) (88) 438 35.0
Acquisition of subsidiaries &1y
(Note 30) (Kt:£30) - - - - - - - 4.4 44
Exchange difference released upon— &4 1 &)HH
deregistration of an associate e R E Y 28 - - - - (5.9 - (5.9 - (5.9
Transfers a8 - - - 710 - (71.0) - - -
Dividends B2 - - - - - (1,600.0) (1,600.0) (116.8) (1,716.8)
At 31 March 2013 2013537318 100000 54987 24995 5124 11883 132266 329255 9352 338607
Profit for the year EFHF - - - - - 7.272.0 7272.0 1772 74492
Other comprehensive income FEEMZERS
for the year - - - - 2475 283 2758 149 290.7
Total comprehensive income FEEAKEEE
for the year - - - - 2475 7,300.3 75478 1921 7,739.9
Capital contributions from HBARFERRBRETE
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 204.9 204.9
Acquisition of additional interests IE—RHBAR
in a subsidiary BIVER - - - - - - - an an
Deregistration of subsidiaries HHEHE AR - - - - - - - (25) 25)
Transfers i - - - 94.3 - (94.3) - - -
Dividends RE - - - - - (3,300.0) (3,300.0) (49.5) (3,3495)
At 31 March 2014 201443 A31E 100000 54987 24995 6067 14358 171326 371733 12791 384524
Notes: B
(a)  Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau (a) HHFEBEEORMREEBZZFTEB R DER
jewellery business and (ii) the difference between the nominal value of the BHEAZH TEMEARNRYBEEREEESEA
shares of various subsidiaries under common control, and cash consideration B RS B AR ES N 2 ReREZERE -
payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under common control HBERBBEARRZBRONEBHALZFBER AR
pursuant to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in the section FREXET BEAE20MF12 ASHZBRERIE
headed “History and Corporate Structure” of the prospectus of the Company S RARRE] —&R -
dated 5 December 2011 in connection with the initial listing of the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited .
(b)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment (b) HEBPBREAMINECENRBRBEEEER  AAF

enterprises in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriation to such
reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory
financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any,
and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZE2014F3 A31BIEFE

2014 2013
NOTE HK$ million HK$ million
Mzt BHEBT BEBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Profit before taxation R 75 AT Y ) 9,163.0 7,095.0
Adjustments for: TR IBEBEL R :
Interest income F B WA (133.7) (107.8)
Interest expenses FEMZ 222.8 329.5
Fair value change of gold loans =S EENATEED (467.9) (272.3)
Fair value change of derivative financial TESMTEMNRATFE
instruments & - 473
Depreciation E 649.8 494.7
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR R EFRIB Y 13.6 121
Share of results of a joint venture PME—KREELFEEE 3.2 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB K&
and equipment R Es1E 3.9 21
Provision for defined benefit obligations TERR KB R R R 10.2 62.0
Operating cash flows before movements in BIEESEHEA AL E
working capital BEeEmE 9,464.9 7,.662.6
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOgm (15,072.6) 2,543.6
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 & E e lRTE
other receivables () m (837.2) 1,381.7
Increase (decrease) in trade and Z 5 K HAth e FRIEIE N
other payables CRA) 2,300.1 (131.0)
Defined benefits paid B ERERKEF (8.2) (7.6)
Cash (used in) generated from operations (TR MERe (4,153.0) 11,449.3
Interest received BB 1.6 452
Income tax paid EATFIER
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH (253.1) (594.9)
Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland China AR AT ST SRR (929.1) (869.3)
Macau complementary tax SEPIETS TR (95.9) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING wesE s (FTA) g
ACTIVITIES REFE (5,419.5) 10,030.3
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEED
Interest received BUAE 122.1 62.6
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIEEPRITER 21.4 55.9
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEERFRITHER (0.6) (64.6)
Placement of short-term bank deposits FERBRTER (500.0) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WENMKRE (1,176.1) (826.6)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEME  WEMEE
plant and equipment Btk E (179.8) (257.2)
Payment for acquisition of land use rights L B -t (55 FR AT 3K (12.4) (90.3)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB R&HE
plant and equipment FT1S50R 20.9 19.2
Investment in a joint venture RER—REEDRE - (14.0)
Loan advanced by the Group AEBEBNER (29.5) (19.0)
Repayment of loan to the Group BEEFTAEEZENR 6.7 37.9
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WENBAREE RS
subsidiaries i FEE 30 = (26.5)
Return of investment in an associate —XKEE QR 2R E O - 10.0
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZFBIFTARETE (1,727.3) (1112.6)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE2014F3 A 318 IFE

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R EE
Interest paid BFIE (174.8) (329.5)
Bank borrowings raised EBERTER 9,315.3 6,161.9
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITER (4,018.4) (14,178.4)
Capital contribution from non-controlling B A BIFEFEARAR R
shareholders of subsidiaries AE 204.9 196.9
Acquisition of additional interests of U BE BT BB A Rl BESME =
subsidiaries (1.1) (0.4)
Proceeds from partial disposal of HENBRAR—&oMm
subsidiaries without a loss of control IR R SRR = 350
Dividend paid B E (3,349.5) (1,709.9)
Gold loans raised BESESHEE 16,885.8 8,360.5
Repayment of gold loans EEEeHEE (10,510.0) (9,066.2)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders % & K& A 7131
of subsidiaries [ EE 86.7 131.6
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders  B& FHEB AR
of subsidiaries FEPRRR AR R (218.3) (224.1)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING BMEEFHRE (FTHA)
ACTIVITIES KRS HEE 8,220.6 (10,622.6)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ~ R&RBE &S @110
CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) B4 1,073.8 (1,704.9)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FINRERBRELEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 8,304.8 9,987.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE L 88.0 21.9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRNRERREZEEY
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BSRTHEBRRAE
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 9,466.6 8,304.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZE2014F3 A31BIEFE

General

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 20
July 2011, Its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15
December 2011. Its immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited (“CTF Holding”), and in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, its ultimate holding company is Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
36. The address of registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
principal place of business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised IFRSs issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and IFRS
Interpretation Committee (the “IFRIC”) of the IASB for the first time in
the current year:

Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs
2009-201 cycle
Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 joint arrangements and disclosure of

interests in other entities: Transition

guidance
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
IFRS T Joint arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate financial statements

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Amendments to IAS 1

Except as described below, the application of the above new and
revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

— g
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(Holding) Limited ([CTF Holding]) » AR
RIEERABEZLIER AT A Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited * RIZ A R) 3972 588 4 /R L BF
BT o
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134

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements”, IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of
interests in other entities”, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate
financial statements” and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) “Investments in
associates and joint ventures”, together with the amendments to IFRS
10, IFRS 1M and IFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals
only with separate financial statements.

Impact of the application of IFRS 10

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 “"Consolidated and separate
financial statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements
and SIC 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. IFRS 10 changes
the definition of control such that an investor has control over an
investee when a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and ¢) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included in IFRS 10 to
explain when an investor has control over an investee. The application
of IFRS 10 has no material impact on the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

Impact of the application of IFRS 11

IFRS 1 replaces IAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”, and the guidance
contained in a related interpretation, SIC 13 “Jointly controlled entities
— Non-monetary contributions by venturers”, has been incorporated
in IAS 28 (as revised in 2011). IFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control should
be classified and accounted for. Under IFRS 11, there are only two
types of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures. The
classification of joint arrangements under IFRS 11 is determined based
on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements by
considering the structure, the legal form of the arrangements, the
contractual terms agreed by the parties to the arrangement, and,
when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Previously, IAS 31 had three types of joint
arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled operations
and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements
under IAS 31 was primarily determined based on the legal form of the
arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was established through a
separate entity was classified as a jointly controlled entity).
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 11 (Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations are different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including its share of any
assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the
sale of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator
accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and
expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in accordance
with the applicable standards. The application of IFRS 11 has no
material impact on the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements.

Impact of the application of IFRS 12

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of IFRS
12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. Other than the additional disclosures required by
IFRS 12, the application of IFRS 12 has no material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other
IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
puUrposes).

IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes
extensive disclosure requirements.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” (Continued)

IFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the comparative period. Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has no material
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 19 “Employee benefits” (as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the Group has applied IAS 19 "Employee benefits”
(as revised in 2011) and the related consequential amendments for the
first time.

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting for defined benefit
plans and termination benefits. The most significant change relates to
the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan
assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when they
occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under
the previous version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past
service costs. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately
through other comprehensive income in order for the net pension
asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets
used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net interest’
amount under IAS 19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-time application
of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) and the Group has applied the relevant
transitional provisions. The application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
has no material impact on the amounts recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and disclosures in prior years, and
hence the Group does not restate the comparative amounts.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to IAS 1, the Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. Furthermore, the amendments to IAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to IAS 1does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 16 and

IAS 38
Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IFRS 9

and IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 32

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRIC 21

Investment entities'

Accounting for acquisition of interests in
joint operations®

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation®

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Mandatory effective date of IFRS 9
and transition disclosures®

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets'

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting'

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2010-2012 cycle*

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2011-2013 cycle?

Financial instruments?®

Revenue from contracts with customers®

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 19 “Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions”

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify how an entity should account for
contributions made by employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans, based on whether those contributions are dependent on the
number of years of service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of years of
service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as a
reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, or to attribute them to the employees’ periods of service
using the projected unit credit method; whereas for contributions that
are dependent on the number of years of service, the entity is required
to attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the amendments
to IAS 19 will have a material effect on Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

The “Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle” include a
number of amendments to various IFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to IFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition” and ‘service condition” which were previously
included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to IFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair value at
each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 or
IAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other
than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in profit
and loss. The amendments to IFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to IFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the operating
segments aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 clarify that
the issue of IFRS 13 and consequential amendments to IAS 39 and
IFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts
without discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to IAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity is
a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting
entity should disclose as related party transactions the amounts
incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity for
the provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments included in the “Annual improvements to IFRSs
2010-2012 cycle” will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The “Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle” include a
number of amendments to various IFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply to
the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in
the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are
within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 or
IFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial
assets or financial liabilities within IAS 32.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to IAS 40 clarify that IAS 40 and IFRS 3 are not
mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must
determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of IAS 40; and

(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under IFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments included in the “Annual improvements to IFRSs
20M-2013 cycle” will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

(@) Allrecognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

(b)  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires
that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
impact on application of IFRS 9.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
“Investment entities”

The amendments to IFRS 10 define an investment entity and require a
reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment entity not
to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

. obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management
services;

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest

funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

. measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
“Investment entities” (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 to
introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the investment
entities amendments will have any effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the Company is not an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘'simultaneous realisation and
settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS 32 will have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have
any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, and in accordance with the IFRSs. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to shareholders of the
Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 “Income taxes” and IAS 19 “"Employee
benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of a joint venture used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its joint venture, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business and net of discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Service income including franchise income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group’s customer loyalty program, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is not recognised
as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is deferred
and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and
the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For land and buildings where the cost of land cannot be reliably
allocated between the land and buildings elements, the cost of land
and buildings are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms or 20 years, whichever is the shorter.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress
and land and buildings, less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33/3%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term,
or 20%, whichever

is the shorter

Motor vehicles 25%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land elements and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
financial statements and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Prepaid lease payments which are to be amortised
in the next twelve months or less are classified as current assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Prepaid lease payments (Continued)

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using specific identification basis for gem-set
jewellery and watches; and weighted average for other inventories.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or

financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL including convertible bonds are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the impairment loss is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimate future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
A financial liability other than a financial liability classified as held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or

financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL including gold loans are measured at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income or
expense items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
conseqguences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Such exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term. Contingent rentals and concessionaire fees
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to retirement benefits plans and government-managed
retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as
well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

. net interest expense or income; and
. remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss in “selling and distribution costs” and “administrative
expenses”. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, gold
loans and equity attributable to shareholders of the Company,
comprising share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
raising of bank borrowings and gold loans.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group
will reassess the estimation at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 March 2014, the carrying amount of inventories is HK$42,543.7
million (2013: HK$27,314.8 million). No allowance for inventories was
made for both years.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continved)

Useful lives, residual value and impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives or residual value are
expected to be shorter or lower than estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Changes in these estimations may have a material impact on the
results of the Group, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
year when such change occurs. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is HK$3,054.1 million (2013:
HK$2,155.1 million).

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
in Mainland China

The Group’s management determines the dividend distribution plan
of the subsidiaries in Mainland China. Based on the dividend
distribution plan, retained profits as at 31 March 2014 amounting to
HK$6,270.6 million (2013: HK$6,513.8 million) will be distributed by the
subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable future, while the remaining
retained profits amounting to HK$9,569.8 million (2013: HK$6,513.8
million) has been set aside for reinvestment by the subsidiaries and
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The distribution plan
is determined and made with reference to the Group’s approved
expansion plans in Mainland China. Future change in the dividend
distribution plan may have a material impact on the amount of
deferred taxation being recognised.
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6. Financial Instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in
note 3.
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Categories of financial instruments SRIBER
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEET
Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ER R EW IR
cash equivalents) (BIERS RIS ZEEY) 13,473.2 11,643.9
Financial assets at fair value through BATER AR
profit or loss: SREE -
— Convertible bonds — A RRES 21.5 243
13,494.7 11,668.2
Financial liabilities EA =N
Amortised cost B A 8,076.8 1,796.4
Gold loans at fair value through profit or loss WAFEFABENESEE 10,786.8 4,835.7
18,863.6 6,632.1
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREMEE B ERBUR

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, convertible bonds, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, bank borrowings and gold loans. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and commaodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Financial Instruments ccontinuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loan receivables, short-term bank deposits and gold loans.
The Group currently does not have any instruments to hedge against
the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly interest bearing pledged bank deposits, certain trade
receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings at variable interest
rates. The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow interest
rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Currency risk

Certain group entities have foreign currency sales, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. During the year ended 31 March 2014,
about 0.7% (2013: 0.7%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the group entities.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, about 1.8% (2013: 1.4%) of the
Group’s purchases, are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities making the purchase. The
carrying amount of bank balances denominated in RMB, which is not
functional currency of relevant group entities was HK$2,402.3 million
(2013: HK$82.9 million). In addition, certain group entities, whose
functional currency is HK$ have intra-group advances to their
subsidiaries, are denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States dollars
(“US$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”), which are arising from relevant group
entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
for the Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise. As at 31 March 2014, if the exchange rate of RMB had been
appreciated or depreciated against HK$ by 2%, the Group’s profit
after taxation for the year would increase or decrease by HK$106.1
million (2013: HK$95.6 million).
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Financial Instruments ccontinued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Commodiity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery includes gold products.
The gold market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could
adversely affect the Group’s financial performance. In order to reduce
the commodity price risk, the Group uses gold loans to reduce its
exposure to fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Gold
loans are settled at maturity which usually in 1to 12 months from date
of inception and any fair value change is immediately recognised in
profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2014, if the market price of gold had been higher or
lower by 10%, the potential effect on gold loans and the resulting
impact on profit after taxation for the year would decrease or increase
approximately by HK$1,012.5 million (2013: HK$436.8 million).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The Group, however, has concentration of credit risk in relation to loan
receivables from one borrower amounted to HK$140.0 million at 31
March 2014 (2013: HK$130.0 million) which accounted for 77% (2013:
82%) of the Group’s loan receivables. At 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2013, such loan receivables are secured over certain properties in
Hong Kong and the directors of the Company consider that the
market values of these properties are in excess of the carrying amount
of respective loan receivables at the end of the reporting period. The
Group has the right to collect the secured properties upon default by
the borrower. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has reviewed the recoverable amounts of the loan receivables
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk on loan receivables is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is minimal
as such amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.
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Financial Instruments ccontinuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short
and medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and
by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the
maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up to reflect the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

6. I AEw

tREMREERZERBEK®)

REE SRS
AEEERECAAEENEHLTHEDE
VEENRSECRREEERARADES
BERRE - ARBEBERESROIBENRSHE

BE 52

7N

Bh - EERBESERE

BALERRERERESRAE Y

TERA/TKEZERMEBHRTANIMA ZF
- ZRBRBBEAEETHRELINERAE
ZRFPAHRE URRESBEE 2 RWRR
ERE - ZRBEBNELASHSRE -

Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1year cash flows amount
RERER AERES
ETGFIE 3@AR AEE BB BREE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER BEER BEER
Financial liabilities tREME
At 31 March 2014 R201453 218
Trade and other payables S REMENTE - 1,549.0 - 1,549.0 1,549.0
Amounts due to non-controlling  FERIHE R RIFFERAR R 08
shareholders of subsidiaries - 228.2 - 228.2 228.2
Bank borrowings RITER 2.1% 5,416.3 908.4 6,324.7 6,299.6
Gold loans Be6E 2.4% 8,030.8 2,815.9 10,846.7 10,786.8
15,224.3 3,724.3 18,948.6 18,863.6
Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3 months  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1year cash flows amount
RERK RERRE
IMETIGFE ERAA EARIFE ME A% REE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT AEBT BEBT BEBT
Financial liabilities SRAR
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3 /318
Trade and other payables B 5 N E MR FRIE - 4453 - 4453 4453
Amounts due to non-controlling  FERIHE R RIFEERAR R 08
shareholders of subsidiaries - 3511 - 3511 3511
Bank borrowings RITER 11% 1,001.6 - 1,001.6 1,000.0
Gold loans E2EE 2.0% 2,236.1 2,642.0 4,878.1 4,835.7
4,034.1 2,642.0 6,676.1 6,632.1




Financial Instruments ccontinued) o.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Notes:

0) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(i The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted
market bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

. the fair value of gold loans is determined using discounted
cash flow valuation technique with reference to quoted
market bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets as
a key input; and

. the fair value of convertible bonds is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models

ST E @
tREMREERZERBE®)

REBETERE (&)
it -

M HESBRESHROZENXZHEHNCEE
ARG AN BERITRREEMEES

(i EHLRENELREGREAMSEEZESR
g

ERMIAEATE
() REEEEYATHEIELBEER
SREESATVE

CREENRERABZATEINUTS
FIAFETE -

. BEeEEZATEMNARRRESR
FHEREE - Hh2RESRBET
BREECESTSEAREBEREE
WA &

. AR ES 2 AFEDRERRE
EBREA RRERREREDN

based on discounted cash flow analysis. EE °
The following table provides an analysis of convertible bonds TRIBEYV S LA FEBREFTEZA
and gold loans that are measured subsequent to initial HMESMNESEE  RBAFEER
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1to 3 based on the FISIEEDABIZ3MH -
degree to which the fair value is observable.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER E2AR B3k et
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBT BEAT BEBT BEBT
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H
Convertible bonds Al 5 ES - - 21.5 21.5
Gold loans =2eEHE - 10,786.8 - 10,786.8
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3 A31R
Convertible bonds Al B RES - - 24.3 24.3
Gold loans =5EEE - 4,835.7 - 4,835.7
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Financial Instruments (continved) 6. I AEw

Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRIENFEE®)

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that () BRELEEDUNFEITEEHREER
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis cHMEBZAFEE)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of convertible AJ R (&5 E SR A FEEZ R
bonds

HK$ million
BEBT

At 1 April 2013 M2013F4 A18 24.3
Currency realignment = Viﬁ Bk (2.8)
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3 A31H 215

@i

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of convertible bonds, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1inputs are not available, the Group performs the
valuation using discounted cash flow model with reference to

comparable market data.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their

fair values.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold less returns and net of trade discounts.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“"CODM”) which comprises executive directors of the Company, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on locations of the operations. In addition,
revenue derived from each location of operations is further analysed
into those from retail and wholesale markets when reviewed by
CODM. This is also the basis upon which the Group is arranged and
organised. During the current year, the segment "Mainland China”, is
further separated into jewellery business and watch business for
better resource allocation and performance assessment. Hence, the
prior year segment information is restated accordingly. Therefore, the
Group’s operating and reportable segments under IFRS 8 are jewellery
business and watch business located in Mainland China, and
operations located in Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets. No
operating segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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7.

Revenue and Segment Information continuea)

(@) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment

For the year ended 31 March 2014

ESEBNDEER @)

@) AEEEXERREANTE2HRD
B

BZ2014F3831HLEEE

Mainland China Hong Kong,
FREIA Macau and
Jewellery Watch other Asian
business business markets Subtotal  Elimination Total
& - RA
REM
REXK B BN Lk Nt bt st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HE#ER HE#BT BHE#BT BEBT HE#RR HE#ER
Revenue BEE
External sales INRIEE
— Retail — T 30,508.6 1,593.5 35,076.8 67,178.9 - 67,178.9
— Wholesale* — s 10,007.7 38.4 182.1 10,228.2 - 10,228.2
40,516.3 1,631.9 35,258.9 77,407.1 - 77,407.1
Inter-segment sales* DEEHE 853.9 - 3,685.6 4,539.5 (4,539.5) -
41,370.2 1,631.9 38,944.5 81,946.6 (4,539.5) 77,407.1
Segment profit 7 bl 4,107.6 82.2 5,267.4 9,457.2 (205.1) 9,252.1
Interest income FIBBA 133.7
Finance costs BERKAK (222.8)
Profit before taxation BF AT A 9,163.0

*

both parties.
" Wholesale mainly represents sales to franchisees.

Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by

*

#

7 BRFE S B IR T W 2 fEAE S o

HEETEARAMBEOHE o
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7. Revenue and Segment Information continuec) 7.

(@) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment (Continuecd)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

166

PO

ESEBNDEER @)

@) AEEEXERREANTE2HRD

EBD M (4

HE2013FE3A3BIEEE

Mainland China Hong Kong,

HERH Macau and

Jewellery Watch  other Asian
business business markets Subtotal  Elimination Total

B - RM

REA
KEX B EED LR et HisH 5t
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEET BEET BEBT BEBT

Revenue BEE
External sales INRIHE

— Retail —TE 23117.9 1144.8 26,0417 50,304.4 - 50,304.4
— Wholesale* — BB 5,980.6 651 1,083.8 7,129.5 - 7129.5
29,0985 1,209.9 271255 57,4339 - 57,4339
Inter-segment sales* SEBEHE 594.8 - 16455 22403 (2,240.3) -
29,693.3 1,209.9 28,771.0 59,674.2 (2,240.3) 57,4339
Segment profit DEBEF 36018 66.7 36795 7.348.0 (31.3) 7.316.7
Interest income FIBMA 107.8
Finance costs BER A (329.5)
Profit before taxation TR AR A 7,095.0

both parties.

# Wholesale mainly represents sales to franchisees.

Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit generated from each
segment without allocation of interest income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

*

#

7 BRI IR T W 2 (ARSI o

HBEETEARAMBEOHE

A 250 #bA @ ET AR H R 3 AT AR
SESHBEMER - DA RMIBERSD

B8 N B B B B AN Al

BEDREL

BT o 1 AR E BB REEER N
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7.

Revenue and Segment Information ccontinuec) 7. BEENHIHLER @

(b) Other segment information (b) HibpHEHR
Amounts included in the segment profit or loss: BIEED SR EEr e HE
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014F3A831HILEE
Mainland China Hong Kong,
Bl A it Macau and
Jewellery Watch other Asian
business business markets
&8 - B’M
REA
BREEL EERET NS

HK$ million HKS$ million
BEER BEER

Total

et

HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT HEER

Operating lease payments in AMYMELESHERIE

respect of rented premises 189.2 29.5 1,324.6 1,543.3
Concessionaire fees HEHK 2,391.7 137.1 29.7 2,558.5
Staff costs 8 TR 2,458.8 115.0 1,809.7 4,383.5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE2013F3A8318ILFE

Mainland China Hong Kong,
AR Macau and
Jewellery Watch other Asian
business business markets Total
B - B
T E A,
KRB SEEREETS DINTTS #aEt

HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBTT BEAET

HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEET

Operating lease payments in AMMELLHAERIE

respect of rented premises 169.9 14.5 830.8 1,015.2
Concessionaire fees HiEDK 1,974.8 106.8 281 2,109.7
Staff costs BTRA 1,668.8 81.8 1,500.2 3,250.8
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Revenue and Segment Information ccontinuec) 7. BEENHILER @)

(c) Analysis of the Group’s property, plant and (c) BUEH 53‘ TEBlDMAKEEY
equipment and inventories by reportable %2 BMENMREREESH:
segment:

At 31 March 2014 A2014E3831H
Mainland China Hong Kong,
R Bl it Macau and
Jewellery Watch other Asian
business business markets Total
&5 - BM
RHEAM
HREEK SEERER NS st
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BHEBT
Property, plant and W - BE L&A
equipment 2,584.3 72.4 397.4 3,054.1
Inventories & 19,575.3 2,680.0 20,288.4 42,543.7
At 31 March 2013 201343 A31H
Mainland China Hong Kong,
R Macau and
Jewellery Watch  other Asian
business business markets Total
B - R
K E A
WREER B EEV ez 1RET
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBIT BEAT BEAT "AHEBT
Property, plant and W - BE L&A
equipment 1,826.4 29.4 299.3 21551
Inventories FE 10,5051 1,288.4 15,521.3 27,314.8
Segment assets and liabilities PEEERERE
Except for the above, no other assets and liabilities are included RARBR A EFTIliSN - F EEERKER

in the measures of the Group’s segment reporting that are
reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities are presented.

B AR EE D A2 iﬁ.ﬁilﬁﬁi\ﬁi\ﬁﬂ

EEREBE AUHTESR
BfE-

55 2R E E M



7. Revenue and Segment Information ccontinued) 7.

(d) An analysis of the Group’s revenue by products is

ESEBNDEER @)

(d) RERBSNAREERESN

as follows: mr
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BEET

Sales of HE

— Gem-set jewellery — RE SR A 16,332.2 13,164.8
— Gold products — EBEEMm 47,359.6 32,954.6
— Platinum/karat gold products — e KEESR 10,358.3 8,339.0
— Watches — @k 3,357.0 29755
77,4071 57,433.9

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group in both years.

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding financial instruments,
interest in a joint venture and deferred tax assets, by
geographical areas are as follows:

MEFEAR  BEBRNEFIEAEESE
FREERIO% AL -

BB DN AEE RS EE (T
BESBRTAE R-—RAECEZ#ESR
FBRERIREE) DT

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEAT

Mainland China B A i, 3,112.8 2,491.9
Hong Kong, Macau and B ORI REMIEINTIS

other Asian markets 399.5 299.3

3,512.3 2,791.2
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10.
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Other Income 8. HWA
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER B
Interest income from FEIA
— banks — RTT 115.2 58.0
— loan receivables — BUWERK 6.9 4.6
— trade receivables — B S RWFIE 1.6 452
Franchise income NIEEE=T PN 115.7 102.8
Government grants BT RA 41.5 17.9
Gain on scrap sales RERL$H S W 32.5 46.5
Others HAith 28.3 212
351.7 296.2
Other Gains and Losses 9. Hitlhzm=KESE
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAET
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  WELEEER
equipment (3.9) (@A)
Net foreign exchange gain Rl Gyt 136.4 35.8
Others i) (2.3) (6.3)
130.2 27.4
Finance Costs 10. BEERA
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER B
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ARAFREEENNEET S
within five years
— bank loans — RITERK 37.1 173.6
— gold loans —E5&EE 185.7 155.9
222.8 3295




11.

12.

Profit before Taxation

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BEEANEF SN GEA) ¢
after charging (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EEME (HaF12) 62.7 57.3
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions B TiRKEH 2 511.1 484.7
Staff costs BTRA 3,809.7 2,708.8
4,383.5 3,250.8
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TES R & SR 13.6 121
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN &
— audit related services — ZEEE RS 9.8 93
— non-audit services — JERZEURTS 0.9 1.1
Concessionaire fees DK 2,558.5 2,109.7
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FERAER AR 55,280.3 40,7221
Depreciation e 649.8 4947
Donations (included in other expenses) BEGTAHEMASZA) 38.0 1.2
Fair value gain on bullion forward contracts FEoRAGHONATERR
(included in cost of goods sold) (GEABEERAN) - 4]
Fair value gain on gold loans (included S EEMAFEKS
in cost of goods sold), including unrealised (GEABHERAR) » B1F
fair value loss of HK$105.0 million REHATFEFBEIOSORSE
(2013: gain of HK$230.4 million) 7T (20134 - Wz 230.4
BEET) 467.9 272.3
Operating lease rentals in respect of AAMELEHERE
rented premises 1,543.3 1,015.2
Directors’, Chief Executives and Employee’s 2 EBEFE HEeo0BRABNMES
Emoluments [Tl
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBIT
Directors’ fees EE50e 3.5 35
Other emoluments to directors EEMEHMENS
— salaries and other benefits — e hHEMER 24.1 229
— performance-based bonus — B4 33.1 28.9
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFFTEIME R 2.0 2.0
62.7 57.3
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12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employee’s 2. E% maTHRAEBLESR
Emoluments (continuec) B < )
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and the REBEBRARABDESERERTHRA B HB
chief executives of the Company are as follows: SEFBOAT
2014 2013
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
Director’s and other  Performance- scheme Director's and other  Performance- scheme
fee benefits  based bonus  contribution Total fee benefits  based bonus  contribution Total
#ER RAER RIRER
Ezne Rt BN SR 3t Ezig EREA TR 5t

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET BEER BEER EL i BERT BEER BEET BEAT
(note) (note)
(W)

Honorary chairman. FELE:
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung SEBUVEL

(retired as non-executive director ~ (R202%12 A18

on 1 December 2012) BEERTES) o o = = = 01 n 19 01 32
Executive directors:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

(Chairman) 0.2 42 59 0.2 10.5 02 33 52 02 89
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

(Managing director) 0.2 41 58 04 10.5 02 39 44 04 89
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian 0.2 10 14 0.1 27 02 10 11 01 24
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy #rExLE 0.2 20 28 0.2 5.2 02 20 21 02 45
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong TRt & %% 0.2 27 BE 0.3 6.5 02 26 28 03 59
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert REEER & 0.2 22 31 0.1 56 02 19 26 01 48
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRERLE 02 22 30 03 57 02 21 24 02 49
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter b v 0.2 20 28 0.2 52 02 18 21 02 43
Non-executive directors.
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRERE 0.2 16 22 01 4] 02 13 19 01 35
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HERRE 02 21 28 01 52 02 19 24 0l
Independent non-executive

directors:
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul SElE

(appointed on 19 September 2012) (2012 9 A19 RIEE() 03 - - - 03 02 - - - 02
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor 0.3 - - - 0.3 03 - - - 03
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon 0.3 - - - 0.3 03 - - - 03
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey 0.3 - - - 0.3 03 - - - 03
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond 0.3 - - - 0.3 03 - - - 03
Total it 35 241 331 20 62.7 35 29 289 20 573
Note: The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group’s Miat : BRI AARBEE R EBREAEENTFE

financial results and directors’ performance decided by the management BEREERBAMIBET -

of the Group.
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12.

Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employee’s 12.

Emoluments (continued)

The five highest paid individuals included four directors (2013: four) of
the Company, details of whose emoluments are included above. The
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual during the year
were as follows:

hEsEaMe ALTBRERARRAINAES (2013
FNZRER) FEFMFBERRN X FR
BT REME ATHERNT

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBT
Employee BB

— salaries and other benefits — e REMER 1.6 15
— performance-based bonus — EIEAL 6.1 4.0
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFIFT B4R 0.1 0.1
7.8 56

His emoluments were within the following bands: BEHFMIN T THEHE -
2014 2013
Number of Number of
employees employees
ESgR EEBHE
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £ 6,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 728,000,000/ 7T 1 -

During the year ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the chief
executives of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors, the chief executives and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors have waived any emoluments
during the year ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

HZE2014F3 4318 R2013FE3 A31R IEFE -
REBPEAARNREERESTRAESRE
ZEEMEAL(BEES  &aTHRABRE
8)X S - ARSI ESEMASE MALEE
B R SEEN Sk IE BRI E - B E2014F 3 A3
AX2013F3 AN B IEFEWETMEERE
EREEA7D
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13.

174

Taxation I8
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBT
The taxation charge comprises: RIERAXBIE
Current tax: BNEATRIE :
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FR B A (S SEFT IS AR
in Mainland China 972.1 749.5
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB 694.6 463.4
Macau complementary tax SBPIFT SR 116.7 85.3
1,783.4 1,298.2
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERET R (BRERE)
EIT in Mainland China FREIA I EE TS 44.8 141
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEB (0.3) 4.6
44.5 18.7
Deferred tax (credit) charge (nhote 20) EFERLIA (R ) 0Bk (A3 20) (153.2) 79.4
Withholding tax* EfMR 39.1 20.3
1,713.8 1,416.6
* Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence * ENHEZEEBRARARMEFEAmRERA

income and interest income from Mainland China.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”) of the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards, while Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Shenzhen CTF”) is under progressive tax rates
from 18% to 25% over 5 years from 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Foshan
Shunde Yuda Jewellery Manufacturing Company Limited (“Shunde
Yuda”) was entitled to exemption from PRC income tax for two years
commencing from the year ended 31 December 2008, its first profit-
making year, followed by a 50% reduction from the year ended 31
December 2010 for three years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, they are
entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the development of
the western part of Mainland China. The applicable tax rate is 15% for
both years.

R S UA TR

BEEFIEB D RMIEFE OB ERDUR M EZ
16.5% R E -

RiEPE ARLRBE ([ ) DEREHE( R
EMERAD REERME - hEABHBA
AN EBH2008F 1A 1HEAB25% @ A K&
HEST(FRYIDBRAB(NERYIAKRE]) A%
ZEMRTERIE - 52008F1ATHERSF
M 18% F & 25% ©

IR ¥R AR B A 9 AR RS AR A AR - BT EfE R
WEKBEMRERRAR(TEERE] BE
E2008F 2 ANALFE(HEEHEENFE)
BT AEREFRBEMER  WEHZE2010F
RAINHIEFEREREB=FEFFRE -

AR T o E st H B 2 A B E M
A RAOBIAES « MIAFEOEAREY
715% ©



13.

Taxation (continuea) 13. Fil8 )
Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum progressive BT SR B Ty IR ™ if‘ﬁ’ﬂé%ﬁgﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profit for both years. i SE R2ER T 2% TE
No provision for taxation has been made for the operation in Taiwan AHAMEEE T EERE M At Emzts
as there was no assessable profit for both years. EE S EE T TE RS
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FARBEZHAEGABEREMEERZER
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other MR RDRE A SR T -
comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBIT
Profit before taxation BR A% A& A 9,163.0 7,095.0
Tax at the applicable income tax rate — RERAEHEGTENTIR
(Mainland China: 25%: Hong Kong: 16.5%; (h Iﬁqﬂﬂ :25%
Macau: 12%) EHE 1 16.5% : BPFT 1 12%) 1,766.6 1,415.7
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ETE
for tax purposes 20.9 44.4
Tax effect of income not taxable BERRRANTR IS L
for tax purposes (129.5) (78.6)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEIENRIETE 30.3 1.0
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI R RN TRIERE B
recognised (0.2) (0.2)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and ETHEAKE R RFIE
incentives granted to certain subsidiaries RERERNHIETE
in Mainland China (18.4) (74.5)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KRIERA LR HEEZE
not recognised RIS E 6.1 20.0
Tax effect of previous deductible temporary BB T R E B
difference recognised EROBGEE = (607.1)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of R B A b P BB R B R 0 IR S A1 TR
subsidiaries in Mainland China 0w (39.5) 651.3
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 44.5 18.7
Withholding tax TEHE 39.1 20.3
Others EAh (6.1) 5.6
Taxation charge for the year FABIA 1,713.8 1,416.6
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13.

176

Taxation (continued)

At 31 March 2014, the Group has tax losses of HK$180.8 million (2013:
HK$33.7 million) not recognised as deferred tax assets. All of the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely, except
for HK$147.7 million (2013: HK$17.0 million) which will be expired as
follows:

13.

T8 )

R2014F3A3NH » NEBRERABBELIE
BEMNHRIEEIEA180.85H &8 L (20134 :
3ZTEHBBIT) c A ARERT BRI ERH
w1477 8BBT(203F 1 1705EH
70) #EH T 51 B i

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET ER-

Tax losses expiring in MIBEREBR A TED EM
— 2016 — 20164 585 6.1
— 2017 — 20174 4.7 4.7
— 2018 — 20184 6.2 6.2
— 2019 — 20194 131.3 -
147.7 17.0

Also, at 31 March 2014, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$107.1 million (2013: HK$70.5 million) of which
deferred taxation has not been recognised. Tax effect of such
deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2014 was HK$17.7
million (2013: HK$11.6 million). Certain deductible temporary
differences amounting to HK$607.1 million which were previously not
recognised in prior years, were recognised during the year ended 31
March 2013, as the directors of the Company now expect that it is
probable that they will be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% to 10% (2013:
10%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Based
on the dividend distribution plan of the management, retained profits
as at 31 March 2014 amounting to HK$6,270.6 million (2013:
HK$6,513.8 million) will be distributed as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to HK$9,569.8
million (2013: HK$6,513.8 million) has been set aside for reinvestment
and will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

SN - 201443 B 318 ANEE H KRB RE
RIELRENHREREEZER107 16885
JL(20134F : 70.5A&E L) » Lillid 201446 3
ABAMREREZ=E0RETERI77H
EBET(Q013F N6EHEET) BERNS
AFERRAZETAMREREEREE£607]
ABBTREE2013F3A31B It FEERD -
THRAAGIZEEE  ZE2BEEERE
REEE o

RIEPBIEMERE  PERBEKE QR
JBThE 20081 A 18 BT B EUZ Al &£ 5 R %
BN 5% E10% (20134 : 10%) 2 78
N - BEEEBMREDIREE - N20144
3A3AMRBAMNE H£6,270.6 BEBL(2013
F:65138FHEBIT) BIER R RIEARE
DR MER TMREEF A £9569.8A BB
(20134 : 6,513 8 E&EBIIL) BIRBIEBIRER
% TEEARBBRIIE -



14.

15.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the consolidated profits attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year and on the weighted average number of
10,000,000,000 (2013: 10,000,000,000) shares inissue during the
year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares during both years.

4. BREF|

FESREABFARERARAGRE
EEFRNGEAEREFN URFERD BT
A% 17 A0 #E S $910,000,000,000 A% (2013 £ :
10,000,000,000 %) 5+ o

B A 7 18] 6 S 4 7
s R R -

LB 25T

o stal
Dividends 15. BB
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBTT
Dividends recognised as distribution RAFEEREDIRZISE
during the year:
2014 Interim — HK17.0 cents 2014 H) — §A%17.0781L
(2013: 2013 Interim — HK6.0 cents) per share (2013 4F : 2013 G Hf
— 6.07#81l) 1,700.0 600.0
2013 Final — HK16.0 cents 2013 KE — B%16.0781L
(2013: 2012 Final — HK10.0 cents) per share (2013 4F : 2012 F K HH
—10.07&1L) 1,600.0 1,000.0
3,300.0 1,600.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK19.0 cents per share, totalling approximately HK$1,900.0 million in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK16.0 cents per
share, totalling approximately HK$1,600.0 million) has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

RIEBRE KRR ESEEREE 2014 4F
3A3HELEFEIRMN KRR E S0 -
A H#1,900.0 BEBIT(2013F « Bi%16.07%5
il » &4 H#1,6000EBET) » WAFKRER
JEfEIRER RS FHER S1EE o
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. R N
16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. W% - MEMKRIG
Furniture
Land and Plant and fixtures and Leasehold Motor  Construction
buildings machinery equipment  improvements vehicles in progress Total
B #E
T#HREF BERHE R&E  EENEEE RE ERIE @it
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
ABAT ABAT BEAT BEAT BEAT B ABAT
CosT B
At 1 April 2012 R202E4A1R 10385 114.5 8295 796.0 319 851 28955
Currency realignment ERA%R 40 06 23 46 01 16 132
Acquired on acquisition of RIkERBARIMEA
subsidiaries (note 30) (H13#30) - - 20 24 - - 44
Additions RE 97 641 3482 3158 10.0 2237 9715
Transfer B 17.9 - - - - (17.9) -
Disposals e - ns) (449) - 03 - (57.7)
At 31 March 2013 201353318 10701 167.7 11371 1118.8 407 2925 38269
Currency realignment ERAR 198 05 92 16.7 03 55 520
Additions NE 4932 67.8 3730 38 8.6 2301 1544.5
Transfer 2] 1288 - - - - (1288) -
Disposals e - (8.0) (63.2) 0.3) (&) - (752)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31A 1719 2280 145611 1507.0 459 3993 53482
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2012 R202E4A18 159.1 218 470.0 5439 132 - 12080
Currency realignment EEAE 09 01 12 32 01 - 55
Provided for the year FNEE 484 158 215.7 2076 72 - 4947
Eliminated on disposals HEM S - (34) (319) - () - (36.4)
At 31 March 2013 201353318 2084 343 655.0 754.7 19.4 - 16718
Currency realignment EEAE 37 01 50 139 02 - 229
Provided for the year FREE 56.1 211 286.4 2772 9.0 - 649.8
Eliminated on disposals HEHH - 30 (44.4) - (29 - (50.4)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31A 2682 524 902.0 10458 257 - 22941
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31A 14437 175.6 5541 4612 202 3993 3,054.1
At 31 March 2013 1201353318 8617 1334 4821 3641 213 2925 21551
The carrying values of the Group’s properties which are situated on MNRFHBAET AN EEEREES TN
land under medium-term leases is analysed as follows: N
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
In Hong Kong BB 64.9 52
In Mainland China AR A 1,776.6 1147.2
In South Africa Ik 1.5 1.8
1,843.0 1154.2
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17.

18.

Prepaid Lease Payments

17. TENHERIE

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Carrying amount REE
At 1 April n4 A1H 186.1 107.0
Currency realignment B 3.9 0.9
Additions nE 12.4 90.3
Charged to profit or loss during the year REANBEBENR (13.6) az2mn
At 31 March M3 A3H 188.8 186.1
Comprising land use rights held under BEMARE AR A E
medium-term leases situated in A K 1 b
Mainland China 188.8 186.1
Analysed for reporting purposes as: THEHERRERENDHNT
Current assets (included in trade and RYEE(BREEESH N
other receivables) Hib el kmEn) 14.2 14.0
Non-current assets ERHEE 174.6 172.1
188.8 186.1

Interest in a Joint Venture

18. R—RAELE 2R

|

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

Cost of unlisted investment FEETIRER AR 14.0 14.0
Share of losses e B 3.2) -
Share of translation reserve G E 0.1 -
10.9 14.0

Details of the joint venture are set out as below:

BELENFBHIMOT

Proportion of
ownership interest

Place of and voting power
incorporation held by the Group
and principal Issued and fully paid AEE GRS ERER Principal
Name of company place of operation ordinary shares RRERELH activity
Eaiiyave: k5 2RITR
NGRS FTEEEME BERRFEBER 2014 2013 FEE®
Fook Ming Watch Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 50% 50% Sales of watches in
(REEHRARAR) e 1,000,000 7T Mainland China

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

TAHR B At Y B SR 3

BRAEESECENFBERMMERIIMT -
TP BERBERRZEELERIEERY
BHREERRENTHEREMRAOEE
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18. Interest in a Joint VVenture continued) 18 R—XEeELEZER®
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these ZAEEBLEUEREFNEEGAVBERERAR

consolidated financial statements.

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT B
Current assets RENEE 28.1 28.0
Non-current assets JEREEE 8.0 -
Current liabilities mENEE (14.3) -
Revenue BERE 33.4 -
Loss for the year NEE BB (6.4) -
Other comprehensive income for the year RNEEHM2mUWES 0.2 -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEEEEAY B (6.2) -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the Tl EER B EERLERE SRR ERR
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the RAEBLEZERRMELSR
consolidated financial statements:
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET ER-
Net asset of a joint venture AEREEETE 21.8 28.0
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in = KNEBREBEDE 7 HEHRE
a joint venture HmADL 50% 50%
Carrying amounting of the Group’s interest in AEEREELE 2 ERREE
a joint venture 10.9 14.0
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19.

20.

Loan Receivables 19. BUWER
Loan receivables are classified as current or non-current assets based EWEZERE NG EIE BB S Ak E
on contractual terms or the timing of recovery as expected by the BEmMESEARBIIERBEE - R20145F
management. As at 31 March 2014, loan receivables under current 3A3A RPMEEETEREREEES
assets with carrying amount of HK$140.0 million (2013; HK$130.0 140.0E BB T (20134F 1 130.0BE B L) B
million) are past due for which the Group has not provided for BE - MEARZEERCUTEETWEER
impairment loss, since such loans are secured by certain properties in o REBWRGHEREEBEE -
Hong Kong.
For the loan receivables that are secured over certain properties in MUEEE TYWEEERNEIRER - KNAF]
Hong Kong, the directors of the Company consider that the market EERE ZEWEATEBEREEREK
values of these properties are in excess of the carrying amount of loan EXNEEE ABTEWREZZKEEE
receivables at the end of the reporting period. In determining the B AEETHERERERNEELGXRED -
recoverability of the loan receivables, the Group regularly monitors RAREERABEHEREHRE -
the changes in credit quality of the loan receivables. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no impairment is considered
necessary in respect of such loan.
All loan receivables are denominated in functional currency of the B RKEFIZEMEEERNNEEETIE -
relevant group entity.
Deferred Taxation 20. EERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised UWTAERAFERBAFTEASECEREE
by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior RERIESE(BE) AR EBHEZ
years:
Unrealised Withholding
gain on tax on
fair value undistributed
change of profits of
gold loans subsidiaries Unrealised
in Mainland in Mainland profit on
China China inventories Total
FERtES PE R
BELATE MEAT
BE 2 RO TR 2 FEZ
RER S BB REEHR st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBIT BEBT BEET BEET
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4 318 - - - -
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1Bk (5t A) 82
(note 13) (H17E13) 381 651.3 (610.0) 79.4
Currency realignment R 0.2 4.2 (3.4) 1.0
At 31 March 2013 M2013%3 A31H 38.3 655.5 (613.4) 80.4
Credit to profit or loss (note 13) &t AB2& (HfF13) (341 (39.5)* (79.6) (153.2)
Currency realignment R 0.6 12.0 0.1 2.5
At 31 March 2014 MR20145F3H31H 4.8 628.0 (703.1) (70.3)
- Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends - RIEFR B EAERE - B2008F1A1BRE -

declared to foreign investors in respect of profits earned by PRC

subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards.

JURE o B P 3 B0 PRS2 ) BRI A0 i I 1) 3 MR

AETIREE - BREUI0% 2 TR -
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20. Deferred Taxation (continued)

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain
subsidiaries of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2014, certain of these
subsidiaries are entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
payments. Therefore, the amount included reversal of excessive withholding tax
of HK$6.4 million (2013: nil).

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

20. ELEFIE @)

RRAEEETHBERABEE2014E3AZALFE
BSFEAMBITOE  ETHENBRREUE
BRI RSB HMRMNBREZTENH - Bt - £ERESB
BY BNz &R 6.4 BEBIT (20134 « ) -

VAR A% 5k B4 76 R 5 PR 3k P O E TR I8 4
DA

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET ER-
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE (703.1) (613.4)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 632.8 693.8
(70.3) 80.4
21. Inventories 2. &

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBIT

Raw materials for: HENTERNEME
Gem-set jewellery HRERREE 7,431.4 4,861.6
Gold products EEEM 2,321.2 22414
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 333.1 216.8
10,085.7 7,319.8

Finished goods: BIpK M ¢

Gem-set jewellery REEBRE A 11,625.6 10,806.8
Gold products EELEM 13,215.9 4,685.6
Platinum/karat gold products HEKEED 3,695.9 2,078.7
Watches Bk 3,859.1 2,399.8
32,396.5 19,970.9
Packing materials BEME 61.5 241
42,543.7 27,314.8
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22. Trade and Other Receivables 22. B N EMEIFIE

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBIT
Trade receivables E S el E 3,146.2 3,048.1
Prepayments to suppliers )4 R P TE A< 5B 457.6 194.2
Deposits birera 399.3 2613
Prepaid lease payments charged within one year —EAXEHNENBERE 14.2 14.0
Other tax recoverables HoAth AT B H I8 681.3 347.5
Others A 1741 107.4
4,872.7 39725
As at 31 March 2014, trade receivables of HK$38.1 million (2013: R2014F3A31H - EFRBFHIBISIEED
HK$42.1 million) are from entities in which a director of the Company, (20134 1 42 B EBHA L) KER AR —HH
who has beneficial interests in the Company, has significant influence. BERANRRGEZVESEEATZENINTE -
Trade receivables of HK$97.1 million and HK$82.2 million (2013: B EWNFIBO/IIEE R TLE22AEE T
HK$110.4 million and HK$113.9 million) are from entities in which (2013F :No4BEBETRNBZOBEEE L) A
certain directors of the Company have beneficial interests in both the SDRKEBRNERNARI RN ZELRSEENSE TE
Company and those entities, and non-controlling shareholders of Eys-—- - D NGB 22 i
subsidiaries respectively.
The Group’s sales to retail customers are mainly on cash basis. Sales AREBHEETENHEENES AT  MAE
to certain customers are on credit with credit period up to 6 months. FEEPHOBEEURIEER EEHE% A6
For sales through concessionaire stores, the Group usually allow 30 A -BEENHEENS  AEB—RAZSE
days credit period to these receivables. FEWFTE4S T 30 HRYEEH] -
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based LTRARERZQEZY  RREHRARNES
on the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which FEWFRIBEHIER R DT HSE R A 2 hziiE
approximated to the respective revenue recognition dates: REEEE
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBIT
0O to 30 days O0%30H 2,680.0 2,329.1
31to 90 days 31£90H 151.5 481.7
91 to 180 days 91£180H 257.9 134.9
Over 180 days 180H A 56.8 102.4
3,146.2 3,048.1
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group RETEZRWHEBEHITKREEZR - RNEE
monitors change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since EROREEEEEEREHEEE S EKRR
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors of HEEEENEH A AT EER A BHE
the Company considered that the trade receivables that are neither WHIBREARBEANNARE  EEEXRRIT -

past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2014

FAB2014 55 5

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 EZE2014F3 A3 HILFE

22.

23.

184

Trade and Other Receivables (continvec) 22. B 5 REAMEWFIE =)
As at 31 March 2014, included in the trade receivable balances are R2014F 3 A31H @ 5 AE S EWFIBENGT L
receivables of HK$179.9 million (2013: HK$126.2 million) carrying a R B17998 &B L (20134F 112628
variable interest ranging from 7.6% to 8.6% (2013: 9.6% to 10.0%) per BB FEFNER7.6%E8.6%(20134F :
annum. 9.6% £ 10.0%) T 5
Also, as at 31 March 2014, included in the trade receivable balances are AN - BR2014F 3 A31H » 5 AE S EKRFIE
trade receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$314.7 million HHANRERHC AN ERTEA347H
(2013: HK$243.7 million) which are past due at the reporting date for BB T E SEWTIE (20134 2437 A E#
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has ) HARNEEEEZNEHIREASEHARIE S
not been a significant change in the credit quality and amounts are AR AZERIF A WG - WA EE Y E
still considered recoverable based on historical experience. The Group SHEREBEEERE  ANEBW RN ZSEGRE
does not hold any collateral over these balances. BAEMEER -
Ageing of trade receivables, based on the invoice BERZAHCRHERBRENES
date, which are past due but not impaired FEUR =h T8 Y BRE 82
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEETT
61to 90 days 61£290H = 6.4
91 to 180 days 91£180H 257.9 134.9
Over 180 days 180H A E 56.8 102.4
314.7 2437
Convertible Bonds 23. Al LR ESH

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group invested in an
unlisted convertible bonds with principal amount of AUS$3,000,000,
bearing interest at 8.0% per annum and a maturity date of 31
December 2014 (the “Maturity Date”), issued by a private entity (the
“Issuer”) which is principally engaged in agriculture and wholesale of
pearls in Australia. The Group is entitled at any time after the date of
issue up to the Maturity Date to redeem the convertible notes in cash
or pearls or combination of both or convert the convertible notes into
ordinary shares of the Issuer. The convertible notes comprised debt
component and embedded derivatives being the conversion option
and the Issuer’s early redemption option. Such convertible bonds are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss and in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the fair value of the convertible notes is
substantially the same as the carrying amount.

HZE202F3A3BULEFE  AEFEKE B
ELEHA LES AL £ 530000008
JL FFES0% - FIHIH A2014F12 A31H
(TR/HA])  BEZERMNNEEEL BREE R
BORLEER(TBITADET - AEEMBER
BITHREINHETMEEARSREIHRE W
FREABOUBBRZE NSRRI EIR A%
TTARERA - JRBRZEBEEERD LR
ARPTET R IRBERETAZREED
o ZAHIBESFIETE AR AFEFABE
MARBEERE  TBREEENAFERR
EEABAER -



24. Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term Bank

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the bank deposits carry interest
at the prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to 4.3% (2013: 0.01% to
3.8%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the pledged bank deposits amounted to HK$5.3
million (2013: HK$25.7 million) mainly represent deposits pledged to a
bank to secure the payment of construction in progress.

As at 31 March 2014, the short-term bank deposit carried fixed interest
rate at 1.5% (2013: nil) per annum with original maturity at 12 months
(2013: nil) and hence being classified as current asset.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$5,836.1 million (2013: HK$4,923.3
million). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to
conduct business in foreign currency.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

24. EEWRITERRBPRITE

RORITHEBRERE S

HE204F3ANBUEFE  RITFEREER
MEFEMENFH0.01% 2 4.3% (2013 4F : 1
F0.01%E3.8%)5H8 °

M2014%3A310  BEMETHERSIEES
L (20134F : 257 BB L) T EHREETLRE
B R — R SR 1T R o

R2014F3 A31H » BHEHRTTFEZIZFFE1.5%
(20134 : \)WEFEMEFE - REEHE B2
EA (20134 : &) - MEBHARDEE -

MR2014F3A31H » AEBKRAREIERNIE
RIS ZEYWAS8361EH & T (20134 :
49233EEBTL) c ARETTAERERA
HEE  Am - RERPBE AT RINE
ERGOIINEE SERMEETERE A%
EEEBBEFFIRITETINEER  BARE
RIRABINE o

SPARTHEBERENAAES TIIREHEY
(A FFERAKEERNINEER) JIER IR

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEAT

RMB AR 2,402.3 82.9
Us$ x5 471.5 339.3
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25. Trade and Other Payables

25. BZ N EMENFRIE

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEER B

Trade payables E S ERFIE 1,233.9 249.4
Deposits received from customers EENSLEol e 1,490.3 7223
Other tax payables HibENTIE 166.5 129.9
Accruals JEFTE A 447.8 146.4
Accrued staff costs BB TAA 474.7 309.9
Interest payables TERTFIE 79.3 31.3
Others Hit 235.8 164.6
4,128.3 1,753.8

Deposits received from customers mainly represent prepayments BERPWEHIZETERTRAMWINERES
made by franchisees in Mainland China for jewellery products. The KEERYNZENZBE cHEAEEKIELE
amounts are unsecured and interest-free. Boo

AEE-REEHEFRSNEERANTF7

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from its

suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables HZE1BOHTE - LT AREHZEHBHNER
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting SHAIKME 5 FE S RIER BRI AT -
period:
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER AEET
O to 30 days O0&30H 1,117.2 196.6
31to 90 days 31E90H 18.2 16.7
91to 180 days 91£180H 68.5 2.7
Over 180 days 180H A £ 30.0 33.4
1,233.9 249.4

26. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Shareholders

of Subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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27.

28.

. PP
Bank Borrowings 27. IRITER
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBT
Bank loans, unsecured and repayable IRITEFR - EIKHH
within one year BE—FRERER 6,299.6 1,000.0
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranged from 0.7% to IRITERRFEFFEFTE  FRRAEFER
0.8% over HIBOR per annum or 90% to 100% of The Peoples’ Bank of TRZEFRENNT07%ZE0.8% s HE ARIR
China Standard Loan Interest Rate (2013: 0.8% over HIBOR per TEREEFEIONE100% (2013 F : F F|
annum). KREBIRITRIZER LI 0.8%) °
As at 31 March 2014, the range of interest rates on the bank R2014F3A31H - BEABRITEROEFEN
borrowings were 0.9% to 5.6% (2013: 1.0% to 1.2%) per annum. F0.9% E5.6% (20134 : 1.0% & 1.2%) °
All bank borrowings are denominated in functional currency of FARITEFLZEBSEERNNEEEKTIE -
relevant group entities.
= A RS
Gold Loans 28. mafEE
The amounts represent borrowings from banks and the amounts EIBTYIRIRITER  MENZKBEE S ER
payable are pegged with gold prices. A o

As at 31 March 2014, the gold loans carry fixed interest rates of 1.2% to
3.5% (2013:1.3% to 3.1%) per annum, with original maturity of 1to 12
months from date of inception.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in
gold prices on gold inventories. Gold loans were designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Included in gold loans are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the relevant group
entities:

R2014F3A3NH  ESEEERFFNEI2%E
3.5% (20134 : FFI F1.3% = 3.1%) & & £ F
ZiHE - RIHPBEARHARIZIMEA -

ERELEEENERNREESFEXRESE
REBHOTE - B2REEER/RAFERA
BRNERasE -

SAEREERTIIRAMEY (AIFEHER
BENEER)INENHIE

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEET

Us$ xETT 4,009.4 2,833.2
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29. Share Capital 29. g
2014 and 2013
2014FE K 2013F
HK$ million
BEAT
Authorised: JETE

50,000,000,000 ordinary share of HK$1 each 50,000,000,000 B REENE T2 & iBA% 50,000.0

Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 10,000,000,000 B EEE T2 L A% 10,000.0

30.

188

There were no change in the Company’s authorised, issued and fully
paid capital in both years.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2013, for the purpose of business
expansion, the Group acquired the controlling equity interests of the
following three entities, using the acquisition method:

MEFER  AARZEE  BRTRMER
AR -

30. WEEHE AR

REZE2013F3A3NBIEFE - BBETER
AEE AR AW A T = EERE A R

(@) 55% equity interests of Zhaoqing Tongfu Jewellery Company (a) LAMREV4BEEBTBEN R B -
Limited (“Zhaoging Tongfu”), a company incorporated in the REHEKRETEMNAREEMRER
PRC, for a consideration of HK$1.4 million, and is engaged in the EeTERAR(EERIE]) Z255%M%
sales of jewellery products; T
(b)  51% equity interests of Zhangjiagang Baoshui Fuxiang Jewellery (b) LARE2S5EEBTWERPREMA
Company Limited (“Fuxiang”), a company incorporated in the o RHEHEHRE EADFRFIBR
PRC, for a consideration of HK$25.5 million, and is engaged in MEEERELTERAA(RED 2
the sales of jewellery products; 51% f i
(©)  51% equity interests of Zhangjiagang Baoshui Fuxiangyu (©) BAR{E6.38 &S Uk iE i F B sk
Jewellery Company Limited (“Fuxiangyu”), a company YV REHEXREEHNRRRRBR
incorporated in the PRC, for a consideration of HK$16.3 million, RERIAFTH®RESTERAR(EIAFT])
and is engaged in the sales of jewellery products. 2 51% A% A& o
Details of consideration of each acquisition are as follows: FWENHREFBEET :
2013
Zhaoging
Tongfu Fuxiang Fuxiangyu
EERE gy BT
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BB BEBT
Consideration satisfied by cash RS SRRE 1.4 255 16.3




30. Acquisition of Subsidiaries continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the respective dates of

acquisition are as follows:

30. WEEKT B A A )
RElmARANE KBEERABNT

2013
Zhaoging

Tongfu Fuxiang Fuxiangyu
EERE gi=¥ed BHF
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEHT BEET BEET
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BEREE 0.5 2.3 1.6
Inventories #E 8.4 78.5 327
Trade and other receivables B 5 KA EWFIA 1.3 15.7 4.8
Bank balances and cash RITEHRLRE 0.6 6.3 9.8
Trade and other payables B S REMEMNFE (4.3) (28.5) (9.3)
Taxation HE (0.2) 0.2 (0.5)

Amounts due to non-controlling FEF IR R IR
interests (3.6) (24.5) (7.2)
2.7 50.0 319

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of the
receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and other
receivables) approximates to the gross contractual amounts, the best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows of the
receivables are expected to be collected.

AAREERR  CRBHNEKTE(ZTERRE

B 5 R EMEWKFIR) WATE

B4 A W REAR

WAE T

o TR AT UCER R W B R R MR IR A A

R mEBHREME -

2013
Zhaoging
Tongfu Fuxiang Fuxiangyu
EERR fi=ked BHF
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET BEBTT
Consideration transferred REER 1.4 255 16.3
Plus: Non-controlling interests (Note) Il : 3Rz (ffat) 1.3 24.5 15.6
Less: Fair values of identified A TR TR B E
net assets acquired FEATE Q.7 (50.0) (31.9)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions WBELRE - - -
Net cash outflow on acquisition and ~ WEEERBBENRARLTLFE
charged to profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalent balances FrER e REEEEN
acquired i 0.6 6.3 9.8
Less: Cash considerations paid B BEXREBRERE 1.4) (25.5) (16.3)
(0.8) (19.2) (6.5)

Note: The non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share

Fifet - SRR ER DAL 2 L (0 R A5 P UGB B 7 FE Y

of the fair value of net assets acquired. NEEHE -
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30. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued) 30. WEEMTB AR )
Profit and revenue attributable to the respective acquisitions during RER - SWERGEF REERNT -
the year are as follows:
2013
Zhaoging
Tongfu Fuxiang Fuxiangyu
EERR gi=¥ed BHF
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET ER-
Profit (loss) B (EE) 1.6 0.6 (0.2)
Revenue HEE 6.5 13.2 23

Had the above acquisitions completed on 1 April 2012, total group
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 would have been
HK$57,504.1 million and HK$5,696.3 million, respectively. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the above
acquisitions been completed on 1 April 2012, respectively, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

31. Operating Lease Commitments 31.

The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments which represent
lease payments of its rented premises, under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

it Eat BN 20124 4 A1A R/ - B E2013
FIANALFENEBRBEETREF 5 R
FER575041 BB BL&56963EEE T
BEEBRHEHRSE  AUARRMUA EWRIESE
MR2012F 4 A1H TR 748 & B 7] iR 15 0) E B
BEBMPCBEE  GEBEER I IERK
EEMTEA -

B THE A

FEBFEREBEA

SR R - Ao R B SRR AT 8
B 4G B T3 BB R R R R R B A
IR(REERDENES) A -

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEET

Within one year —FR 1,286.7 1,009.9
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF (BEEEMTE) 1,947.9 1133.8
Over five years RFELAE 524.7 3.2
3,759.3 2,146.9
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32.

Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Included in above are commitments to related parties:

31

/Z\\I»g .

EAEE

AEBERAEBA @
£ A STRTi A e B O AR

2014 2013

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEAT

Within one year —FR 116.8 170.3
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF(RIEEREME) 160.6 127.0
Over five years FFLAE 436.2 -
713.6 297.3

There are certain lease arrangements for rented premises, according
to which the Group are committed to pay either minimum guaranteed
amounts or monthly payments equivalent to a prescribed percentage
of monthly sales as rental, whichever the higher.

There are certain concessionaire arrangements for concessionaire
stores according to which the Group is committed to pay either
minimum guaranteed amounts or concessionaire fees that are based
on prescribed rates of corresponding sales depending on product
categories, whichever is higher.

Majority of leases with fixed rentals and concessionaire arrangement
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

RBETHREMENHER Y AEBHAGE
N&EEEREEXEAGAEENRTEDL
B8 AEE(URSERE)

AEBERER/RER TER/LH Bt K%
EAGHERFERBENRAERBHEER 2T
EXNREREFSAFMEOKARSERE)

KEBHBOREEEYDEREAET - B
—FEZFRESTE -

Capital Commitments 32, BANAHE
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBIT
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition FtUKEEYIZE - R RS HE D 154
of property, plant and equipment authorised BERFTHRE ARG
but not contracted for 2,277.3 210.0
Capital expenditure contracted for but not TUEEE - BEMKREERTY
provided in the consolidated financial BRPERE I wEF
statements in respect of the acquisition of B E AR 2
property, plant and equipment 536.3 101.7
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33. Retirement Benefits Obligations

192

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are
registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees who leave the
ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,000 per employee, which was revised
to HK$1,250 with effect from 1 June 2012.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau are members of pension schemes operated by local
government of Mainland China and the Macau government,
respectively. The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contribution under the schemes.

33.

RARAE T AR

EEMHAEE

REE T 2 8RB B B R IRE BUEHIEEM
B E BE A RET B ([ B R IRE SR DIRT &) &
R 2000412 AREE L B HIERTEE I
TERFIEA RS E([RESETE)) - ZF
AEEERASENEESFEE MBLX
FEAZEGINESIA - LRI IES A 84T
E2HEB RN IGRDIFEIMES IR RAE
BERBERA GO RERRES
Z - MATAR2000F 12 B1BRZ B INAKSE
ErFTEBRIZAZ MaE ST -

BiaEa M E b2 HRERIBORKEN
BXAHE AN SR B AT SR AR E ML KB T &
EHHFK - WMEENRZEHREEIRHBE
RAGHBIERIE B AREBRNHZKEIRER
WA FRFDR ©

MAESHENKENS  AEEARBRES
FTEIB AR TE R A VES% R - ZEHREE
ENEFE-—N - ZARRNESSEAEN
BE1,000/7T  B20129F6 A1HEDIE A
1,250 7T °

ARRHEAMERPIMEARNEERES
A B A S IR AT SR PR B AR R &
FHEIRCE - BRI RORPIE R BZE D BR
FRREEFSABRANET AN LREER
K BHFRE A RRREN B X EHE
W AERBRIENR - REBE A BRIREMNG
WM —EERRBEZFITEMELAAMK -



33. Retirement Benefits Obligations (continuec)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension benefits
to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries before 1995. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years
of services. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund such
obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between
25% and 40% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an
age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The most
recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out in March 2014 by Roma Appraisals
Limited ("“Roma”), an independent qualified professional valuer, using
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of business of
Roma is Unit 3806, 38/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions which have the most
significant effect on the results of the valuation are discount rate,
retirement rate, turnover rate, mortality rate and the rate of increase in
salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

33.

RIKEREE )

EHEEANE

Zli = T8~ A5 1995 4 A AN % S
TE’]E/\&{\E%%EW%@?‘J"F&“H A

HM&EMEE%%W%&&&HW%EEH REEIL

BREFEMNEEANABEE -

RIEZE  BRERFESREMEBFRER
BERREHNRBEN FHRESHE25% E40% =
BRARE - AEEWERHEMRKEBER -
?i&aﬁi%ﬁ%%lﬁdﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%@%%2014i
3IRAMRBLAERGEMRESEERTEERA
([BE D) RBBEFAEMNEREETT zﬁ%E’JI
%ﬁ%%im%?%%/%/‘%‘ﬁ/%éLZGiﬁ"/Fﬁﬁ}*
3813806 F - HHBEERERATENBRED
BRI R R ER  AEX AT XRFSH
FHiE o

FREAMEZBERRMT

2014 2013
Discount rate ARIR & 2.6% 1.4%
Expected rate of salary increase SEREEE S b | o 4.0% 3.5%
Turnover rate AR 0% 0%
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of the REBRAFERNZEMBEERKIBEAT ¢
defined benefit scheme are as follows:
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER ER
Current service cost REE RS ROR 3.7 1.8
Interest on obligation HEIEHT B 6.5 2.7
Actuarial loss BHEEE = 57.5
Components of defined benefits recognised in  RIEaERR EZEEFIEE D
profit or loss 10.2 62.0
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme RE b2 E RS FER R E R T
recognised in other comprehensive income: FTEIEHRTE -
Actuarial gain arising from changes in BTSRRI EE A 1Y
financial assumptions 1BE HSZ/\ (28.3) -
Total e (18.1) 62.0
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33. Retirement Benefits Obligations (continvea) 33, RIKIE A ESE )
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) EEBEANFE (2
The current services cost and interest on obligation for the year ended HE2014F 3 A3 IEFERRERIEKA KR
31 March 2014 are included in “selling and distribution costs” and EERFSFTAlHE R A | R [1THRFEX
“administrative expenses”. 18
The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the year ended HZ2014F3A3B LFEMNTEREREMNEE
31 March 2014 is included in other comprehensive income. et Est AEMEmEmRE -
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are FREANAEREZS WO T -
as follows:
2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
At 1 April R4 A1H 251.3 196.9
Service costs BRAGAK AR 3.7 1.8
Interest costs F B AN 6.5 2.7
Actuarial (gain) loss BE (Wm) BB (28.3) 57.5
Benefits paid B & F) (8.2) (7.6)
At 31 March R3IA3AH 225.0 251.3
34. Share Option Scheme 34, BEARIERTE

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November 2011, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of
the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and the
employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants
or advisers) who the directors of the Company consider, in its
absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group
(the "Participants”).

194

RIER20NENA17HBBENRER  AQF
R 8 ([BIRERTE]) - 5 TEmBIIR
HERA R B RENK S RSB RAEMLRL
AB BEBEEBRITAEE EBHEALEE
HARRBEERBRME N - RIFERETE
ARRESGRAESERNBERAEAEBE
P EH BERMES (BERTES - IE8TT
EERBUNTES)  WBARNESE - K
EBENEEULTAEMA LT (BIEZAASE
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34. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An offer of the grant of
an option shall be made to a Participant by a notice of grant requiring
the Participant to undertake to hold the option on the terms on which
it is to be granted (which may include a minimum period for which the
option must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be exercised in
whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is deemed to be accepted
by the Participant (the “Grantee”) when the Company receives from
the Grantee the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee.
An offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of which it is
offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot or an
integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the Grantee upon
acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall remain open for
acceptance for such time to be determined by the directors of the
Company, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the termination
of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with its terms or after the
Participant to whom the offer is made has ceased to be a Participant.
To the extent that the offer is not accepted within the time period and
in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have
been irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share
on the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, no such share options
were granted nor exercised by the Company.

34.

BERRRERT & )

EREA BN ERHAABI0OF - A201FENA17
ARG - BRHBRENZSHANRHBRINE
NESEEEL  BRSPEEFRHRRLIER
FHAEERE (MeRETFRERENSERER
B RIS TERBREAERNRE
BiZ)  WREREFEHERAR - AR aE%E
BEARAERBRENELBANSA - AJEE
BRENEHSHGEABES2EE ([FERAD
B ARABRKERBENNELY TSR
HRHDEEARIRENENERERD
WHERN A —FEEEMAEBHEH -
IR A NI B R AT RS -
EAZHRAAREZSETCHHEMAN—&EA
EREEAN - M A BB IR BT 2 HA PR i ok BB AR A AT
BIRBEMGRR LB EEHENHREET
BhR2EER  ATBAIHER - WELORE
RARZELMEAINERN B8 AE TR
BRMIEBEEEY -

TEEEAARAREETEEE L HERN
TEEE : (OREAAERQFRMD WS E :
(HEZERLBHIAERS ARG FHKH
B RdDHREAPERBRRMOEE -

BZE20U4FR20BFIAINALEFE - AR
BT B SR TR (TR S I ARHE
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35. Related Party Transactions

@

196

35. BBt XS

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had entered

Q)

BEaMBRRAEMEIRENRS
RSN REBEERERNRIZ TR

into the following related party transactions during the year: Bt R 5
Relationship Nature of transactions 2014 2013
[£2fES XEHUE HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Entities in which certain directors*  Advertising expenses 10.3 91
of the Company have beneficial ~ E&HX
interests
ARAHETESRESRENER Concessionaire fees in department
stores 124.6 138.5
AEAFEESK
Rental expenses 183.8 175.1
Hemx
Purchase of goods and coupons
and commission expenses 21.2 38.7
BEERMESURAERAS
Sales of goods and coupons 82.9 57
HEERmMIES
Entities in which a director* Concessionaire fees in department
of the Company has stores 40.8 314
significant influence BEAREEDK
AAR—RES AEATVENEER
Rental expenses 0.4 56
Hemx
Non-controlling shareholders of Concessionaire fees in department
subsidiaries stores 20.1 20.7
P B A R FEIE AR AR R BERAEEDK
Franchisee sales 501.9 223.8
INERSHE
Entities in which a close family Engineering services fee 6.5 12.0
member of certain directors* TIEREE
of the Company has control
AARETESHIBRRBKE Rental expenses 14.4 -
HmAEEHIENEE e
Purchase of land and buildings
(Note) 60.0 -

BELWRET ()

Note:

The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

Amount represented an addition of land and buildings of HK$60.0
million during the year ended 31 March 2014 arising from an
acquisition of subsidiary. This transaction is for the purpose of
acquiring properties as warehouses for general storage purpose in
the ordinary course of business, and had been accounted for as a
purchase of assets rather than business combination as the
acquired subsidiary is not a business.

BEMERARANZ R

Htet - BERMPEE204FE3A3NBIFE

WEEE A B MELEECO.OHER
TR L RIET - ZEXHENR
WEMEERER  URNBEEEBIE
—REHA - ARREE R HTE AL
FEEBAG -



35. Related Party Transactions ccontinued)

35.

(i) Remuneration paid for key management personnel includes the
directors and the chief executives of the Company as disclosed

in note 12.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief executives of
the Company is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

36. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

306.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out below:

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/

B T X 5 )

(i ZNFEIEEBAENMESBIEN L2
BENEAABEERRSTRASR -

ARFEERERITRAROHSRE

mMEFMEZE e REBEENALHRBART

BB mMEE -

ARRBIERHEB AT
THBREE BARAATEEMBA TS -

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital by the Company Principal activities
ERTRAR
ML BRA/ERER/ AEE MG
HEARARE RUMHER A REER BEEERLA FEER
2014 2013
Highrise Achiever Limited*(“Highrise”) British Virgin Islands Share 100% 100%  Investment holding
BREBRA([EX]) 20 June 2011 Us$1 BAER
EBHAREE R
20MF6 A208 EZ
Bentley Trading Limited (“Bentley”) Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of diamond
BHBSERAR(EN]) 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 EREE
B LERA
200841A410A 10,000/87T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 products
("CTF Jewellery”) 0 LREBAR KEEMEE
AREHELTARAA(ARNEKE]) 19613 A6H 350,000,0007C
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Sales of watches
("CTF Watch HK") 7 February 201 HK$1 EIRIHE
BAXBEER (B BRAA it gl
(TAXEEEEE]) 201 2A78H BT
CTF Diamond Trading Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of diamond
Limited (“CTF Diamond”) 19 September 2003 HK$100 ERRE
ARERESERAR ([ XBEA]) BE RN
20039 A19H 100%7T
Lun Jiao Industrial (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Provision of production
Limited (“Lun Jiao”) 15 October 1971 HK$200 management services
BATERRE (BB BBRAR(RH]) 0 LABA and investment
19714610 A15H 20077 holding
REAEEERS
RiREER
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36. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

36.

KATIFEFEWE RG] @)

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital by the Company Principal activities
ERTREAR
EMmL BRA/EMER/ AEEML
HEARERE RIUMHER A BEEX BEEERLA TEER
2014 2013
Techni Development Investment Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of
Limited (“Techni”) 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 gemstones, sales
EFERREBRAA(ERN]) A LRI of jewellery products
2005F 5826 H 5,000,000/ 7T and investment
holding
FRER KEEMHE
PARIEE R
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Watch Company (Macau) 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 products
Limited (“CTF Macau”) RF [Eg-uN REEMHE
BAREHREEER(RM) BRAF 20094 3A17H 5,000,000297c
(TAXERM))
Zlotowski’s Diamond Cutting Works The Republic of Shares 84% 84%  Diamond cutting and
(Proprietary) Limited (“Zlotowski”) South Africa ZAR10,020,000 polishing
(the “South Africa”)** AR BREIRITE
25 October 1951 10,020,000E 385
EEZTilE(I=E A
195110 A 25 H
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited (“Beijing CTF") 13 November 2006 US$5,000,000 products
TRAREKRERTARAR(ERAXE]D +E" BRiiE-EN KEEMHE
20061 A13H 5,000,000% 7T
Chongaing Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC+ Registered capital 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 EIRIHE
(“Chongaing CTF Watch”) HE+ AMER
ERARREFHEERRAR 2008F12 251 AR#10,000,0007T
([EERAAEER])
Chongging Flamingo Watch Company PRC+ Registered capital 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Limited (“Chongging Flamingo”) 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 ERHE
EREHRERARAR(EEEHR)) HE+ AfMER
2008%12A25H AR#1,000,0007T
Chongaing Kaifu Jewellery Company PRC+ Registered capital 51% 51%  Sales of jewellery
Limited (“Chongaing Kaifu”) 25 December 2008 RMB5,000,000 products
EETHNRKESTBRAR(EENE)  #E+ AMER KEEMHE
2008412 A25H AR#5,000,0007T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Chongging) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited (“CTF Chongqing”) 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 products
BAABGRE 2T (EE)BRAR HE" AMER KEEREE
(TEXBEE]) 2008F12 A 23H 30,000,000% 7T
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36. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

Proportion of
ownership interest held

36. AR EENB AT @

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital by the Company Principal activities
ERTRMR
EMAL BRA/EMELR/ AEEAE
HEARERE RUMHER A BEEX BEEERLA TEER
2014 2013

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Company Limited (“Shenzhen CTF") 2 April 2002 US$40,000,000 of jewellery products

BAREHRET (R BB AT R AMER KEEREEREE
(TRINAXRED 2002%4 A28 40,000,000% 7T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited (“CTF Suzhou”) 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 products

BAXBHRE 21T (BM)BRAR e AR KREEmEE
(TAXEEM ) 200651 A1H 30,000,000% 7T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited (“CTF Wuhan”) 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 products

AREHE2T(RE)BRAF R AR KEEREE
(TAXBRED 2008417298 30,000,000%7T

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Zhangjiagang PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Baoshui Company Limited 21 April 2010 US$5,000,000 products
(“CTF Zhangjiagang”) HE" AfER KEERHEE

AABREETRRERNRERDA 2010F4 218 5,000,000% T
(TAXERKE]

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Industrial Park (Wuhan) Company 16 August 2012 US$40,000,000 jewellery products
Limited (“CTF Culture Industrial Park”) — #E" AR KEERAEE

FAAEHRE M EXE (RE) AR 20128716 H 40,000,000% 7T
(TAREXEXE]

Foshan Shunde Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Limited (“CTF Shunde”) 4 December 2009 US$10,644,700 products

BLMIEERAAEREEHBRAR FE aMER KEEREE
(TAXRIEED) 2009F 12848 10,644,700% T

Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Manufacturing Company Limited 14 March 2007 US$10,639,400 jewellery products
("Shunde Yuda") HE" AfER KEEMLEE

BLTEEERERE G MREERAF 200743148 10,639,400% 7T
(MEE®mE]

Foshan Shunde Zhifu Jewellery PRC+ Registered capital 60% - Sales of jewellery
Company Limited (“Shunde Zhifu”) 23 July 2013 RMB90,000,000 products

BLUMEEEEERERTER AR R+ &R KEEMHE
(ME=ZFRED) 2013 7R 23R AR#90,000,0007T

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Diamond Company Limited 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 jewellery products
("Yushunfu”) R AMER KEERLE

BILRIEE S HERBR AR ([HIER]) 1988 1A9A 18,000,000% T
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36. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued) 30.

200

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/

KATIFEFEWE RG] @)

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital by the Company Principal activities
ERTREAR
EMmL BRA/EMER/ AEEML
HEARERE RIUMHER A BEEX BEEERLA TEER
2014 2013
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$5,000,000 products
(“Guangdong CTF") HE" AfEAR KEEMHEE
BRAXBHRESTERAR ([BRAAE] 2007412A10H 5,000,000% 7T
Guangzhou Fuxin Jewellery PRC+ Registered capital 70% 70%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 21 April 20M RMB3,000,000 products
(“Guangzhou Fuxin”) R+ HMER KEERHEE
BNTEMAERTARAR(EMERD)  201F4A218 ARH3,000,0007T
Kunming Yinfu Jewellery Company PRC+ Registered capital 70% 70%  Sales of jewellery
Limited (“Kunming Yinfu”) 20 January 2003 RMB5,000,000 products
BRASRREEHARLA ([RHRE]D HE+ AMER KEEREE
2003F1420H AR#5,000,0007C
Lida Noble Metal Technology PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Development (Shenzhen) 31 March 2006 HK$10,000,000 jewellery products
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lida") HE AfEAR KEEMLEE
FERSBTERMAZ (R BB AR 20063 A31H 10,000,000/ 7T
(MRYIFIED
Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook PRC+ Registered capital 60% 60%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 5 January 2000 RMB10,000,000 products
(“Shanghai Fulong”) A+ AR KEERBEE
PEREAREREERAR ([ LBEE]) 200051850 AR#10,000,0007T
Shenzhen CTF Watch Company PRC+ Registered capital 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Limited (“Shenzhen CTF Watch”) 27 June 2011 HK$300,000,000 ERHE
RIAXBEEERAR(DRYAARER]) HE+ AfMER
20156 A27H 300,000,000% 7T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery Company PRC+ Registered capital 70% 70%  Sales of jewellery
Limited (“Wuhan Hanfu") 26 November 2003 RMB50,000,000 products
REEBRELTERAR(HEER]) R+ AMER KEEMHE
2003F11A26H AR#50,000,0007T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade PRC+ Registered capital 50%" 50%*  Sales of jewellery
Xinfu Jewellery Company 3 December 2010 RMBI15,000,000 products
Limited (“Zhangjiagang Dade Xinfu”) e+ HER REEMHEE
RRERTEAENEHFESTERAA 2010F12A3H AR #15,000,0007T

(IRFBABHR])



36. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

36. AR EENB AT @

Proportion of

ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital by the Company Principal activities
TRER
EMEL BA/EMER/ REEMIL
HEARERE RIUMHER A BEEX BEEERLA TEER
2014 2013

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery

Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 US$15,000,000 products

(“Zhangjiagang Dehui”) g AfMER KEERHEE
RRERGBEBRESTAR 20129 9R 2481 15,000,000% 7T

([RXEEE])
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Qifu PRC+ Registered capital 51% 51%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Trading Company 11 June 2007 RMB45,000,000 products
Limited (“Zhangjiagang Qifu”) B+ HMER KEERHEE
REERTEERKEEHERLA 200756 ANA AR#45000,0007T

(TR EHRE])

Note:

Directly held by the Company.

In accordance with the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development
Act no 28 of 2002 (“the MPRDA”), the equity ownership held by the
Company is required to be reduced to 74% by 31 July 2014 or such other
later date as accepted by the South African Diamond and Precious
Metals Regulator. As of 31 March 2014, the Company is in the process of
transferring the balance of the equity ownership whereby it will be in full

compliance with the MPRDA.

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of

these entities, the Group has power to govern the operating and
financing policies of these entities since their respective date of

establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as

subsidiaries of the Company.

Being a cooperative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

wk

Bt

ARREERE -

*Eb;zoozﬂ%#@&ﬁiﬁaié;‘[%%ﬂ%é;i%zs%ﬁ

( [BMREHERMAZE] ) - ARRIA
201457 A318 A1 (HMFEEARE i%%ﬁa%
EROEMEERR) SEFANRERS
74% ° BZE2014F3A3H - AR RIRIARIE LS
MRIEEERETT ES2mETEYRA
HERFEE o

LR 2 AT R ik - R

%%%Eﬁki/ﬂﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂumﬁ%
E’J%L&F&ﬂﬁﬂ(% At E
AR

RPBERINAEEEDRE -
RONEBEDE -
FRIMESRARIRFEARENEERE

EE’JZK"TWE/AT WO EMMBE AT Z &
EFRARADEHFEBEBNILE
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37. Information About Statement of Financial

202

Position of the Company

37. KRB BARKBEE R

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEAT
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHBARZIEE = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B IR 23,313.8 19,051.5
Other assets HEfh&EE 2.6 3.0
23,316.4 19,054.5
Liabilities afE
Gold loans =REE 4,009.4 1219.4
Bank borrowings RITER 3,770.0 700.0
Other liabilities HihBfE 1.8 05
7,781.2 1,919.9
15,535.2 17134.6
Capital and reserves EAR R
Share capital &< 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves E 5,535.2 7134.6
15,535.2 17,134.6
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
B R AR R E RE &R st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
ER- ER-w BEET BEET
At 1 April 2012 MR2012% 4 A18 10,000.0 5,498.7 1,029.2 16,527.9
Profit and total comprehensive FR% A & 2K A 4258
income for the year - - 2,206.7 2,206.7
Dividends f% B - - (1,600.0) (1,600.0)
At 31 March 2013 M20134 3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 1,635.9 17,134.6
Profit and total comprehensive R R 2E KA EZE
income for the year - - 1,700.6 1,700.6
Dividends % & - - (3,300.0) (3,300.0)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F 3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 36.5 15,535.2




38. Event Subsequent to the End of the Reporting 38, SR&HEFRE H/HF
Period

On 26 May 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase R2014F 58260 AEBEHE-—FZBEH (AR
agreement with a vendor, which is an entity in which certain directors RAATESHBELRARRIREBEESZENER
of the Company have beneficial interests in both the Company and FIVEERE  UWEERESSCOBES T
the entity, to acquire a property in Hong Kong at a cash consideration BEBWE ZWEBIHETAEERERE
of HK$850.0 million. Such property has been partially leased to the TIHRBEBLERL - HERENBREEYB
Group for its jewellery workshop and operation centre in Hong Kong. WMERER ORHIEELA8S0BEBT  M&KE
Deposit amounting HK$85.0 million was paid and the transaction is RPEATH - FBBL2HARRBEA2014
not yet completed up to the date when the consolidated financial FS5A26HZRE -

statements are authorised for issue. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 May 2014 for details.
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Financial Summary

I E

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities LT AREEBERREABEED P REEULEE
of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial information for HEGEME - 2012 » 2013 & 2014 B B F [Z 81 75 & &
FY2012, FY2013 and FY2014 is extracted from the consolidated financial M F R E M BmE - 2010 R 2018 K 4F
statements in the annual reports while such for FY2010 and FY20T1 is EMmAEEEE AR G BEHA20NF12 ASHNBRE
extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 5 December 20T11. 2o

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3AINALFE
2010 201 2012 2013 2014
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
"BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEBT
Revenue e 22,9336 35,0425 56,5711 57,433.9 77,407.1
Gross profit ES 6,555.0 9,927.6 16,4479 16,2831 21,152.3
Profit for the year FEEF 2,206.8 3,672.5 6,570.9 5,678.4 7,449.2

As at 31 March
MA3A31H

2010 201 2012 2013 2014
HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEAET BEBT BEET

Total assets EEREE 17,010.3 29,048.7 47,414.3 43.218.6 61,817.1
Total liabilities aEEsE 8,674.9 17,375.8 17,841.3 9,357.9 23,364.7
Net assets BEFR 8,335.4 11,672.9 29,573.0 33,860.7 38,452.4
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Information for Investors

REEEM

FY2014 interim results
Announcement
26 November 2013

Payment of interim dividend
15 January 2014

FY2014 annual results
Announcement
17 June 2014

Payment of final dividend
on or about 8 September 2014

Annual general meeting
20 August 2014

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)

For ascertaining attendance and voting right at annual general meeting

18 to 20 August 2014

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend

27 to 28 August 2014

2014 B EEE RIS

A
201311 A 26 A

3% R HAR R
20141 /15R

204 BFERFHE

A
201446 H17H

KB R HARS B
201449 A 8 He(Ri&

RRBFRE
201448 A20 A

EENERNDBFEREFE
(BERMAEBEER)

PIEE HERRBFASINE LRE

201448 A18 AZ 20 A

TRE R B R B A A
201448 A27HZE28H

Company name
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2014
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Global Composite Index
Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng Mainland 100 Index
Hang Seng China 50 Index

FTSE Asian Retail Index

DREHE
AAEHEEBERAR

L
BB

BRAD 5

1929

EmEH
201412 A15

BFEHEEMN

200 X

A2014F3 31 HE HITRA
10,000,000,000 A%

A B
BRI A TEEX
BAGR AR

18 4 R B A3 100 35 81
B AR 50 $5 8

ER NS EEER
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Information for Investors

REEEM

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares,
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write to

our Hong Kong Branch Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 29801333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Shareholders can obtain our annual report by writing to our Hong Kong
Branch Registrar. Our annual/interim reports are also available at our

company website.

BB BTORIERE R R E S
SEREABRE - EUEE S BARMOTERD B
FBEAE

BEBESFETARAR
BB

ERANBRISIHR

AR 221E

TiE: (852) 2980 1333
fEH :  (852) 2810 8185

BRAEBE@ S ABER PN ERNBPELS
BRA BB M FR - BRPWEE T ERERATR
RATBUEBIE

For more information about the Group,

please visit our company website
www.chowtaifook.com

or contact our Investor Relations Department at
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2524-3166
Fax: (852) 2526-9178
e-mail:  ir@chowtaifook.com

BRAREEFS -

AR BRI R R Ak

www.chowtaifook.com

SRR PRI E & RSP PIE 45 ¢
BBERANEFR16-185

R A= 3312

ESEE (852) 2524-3166
BE: (852)2526-9178

BHE : ir@chowtaifook.com

Headquarters and principal place of business in

Hong Kong
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands

RMERBEBTEE R

BBERKNEFR16-185
FEAKNE3IZIE

HEMMRER

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Glossary

AR

ALROSA

Articles4hifll

Board&%&

China UnionPay " Bl $RE

Company/Chow Tai Fook
RRAE/EAE

Concessionaire StoreZ &

Directors® %

FYRIRERE

gemstonesE A

gem-set jewellery TR Sk & £

GrouptE /A& E

high-end luxury jewellery & & ZE &

karat gold K&

Listing Rules_Eri R8I

Mainland China B A,

mass luxury jewellery R ERE

POST &2,
R&DAEE

Rio Tinto

Retail Sales ValueZ&(&E

OJSC ALROSA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
A RHEEERMA (K TRHEET)

the board of Directors of the Company

AARESE

a bankcard organisation based in Mainland China

B — K ERITRABAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
AXEGREEERRAR (BRHRIE : 1929)

self-operated POS with concessionaire agreement
I HEEH RN EETER

directors of the Company

RARES

financial year, 1 April to 31 March of the following year

MHER - 4A1BET—F3A31H

colour stones, jadeite and pearls
FeBEA  FRRDK

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BEBOLEONEMHES

the Company and its subsidiaries

PAUNSIDSE S0 VNS]

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BHEEEI0EA LA LNKEER

jewellery products made from gold alloy

VAR SRR A B R &7

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
BAMERZMBRARES LHRA

the mainland of the People’s Republic of China
HREE A RHEFBIAM

jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per
piece
BHEEBNT2TFALE 08B HNKEER

points of sale

EmTEZR

research and development
7 K 8

Rio Tinto Diamonds N.V.
value measured at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any) of products sold to

customers in self-operated POS and franchised POS

REZTEHLNBTERE TEPMAEMARKER (BIEEER - 0F) tEMNEE
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Glossary

Bl

Same Storef@JE

Same Store Sales[alE$HE

Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
RUEHEER

SFOFEF KBRS &5

Stock ExchangeB 32 it

208

self-operated POS (including stand-alone stores and Concessionaire Stores) existing
as at the end of the relevant financial year and which have been opened for at least
24 consecutive months immediately prior to the end of that financial year
EEVHRFERAGTENELTER (BIEEE  56)  2ETERREEZMIBEF
ERAI—BELE R DEE24EA

for FY2013 and FY2014, the revenue from Same Store. Revenue from wholesale
channel (i.e. franchisee sales) and other direct sales (such as sales from promotional
events) are excluded

20 BER K 2014MBEEMS - BEZ L8 - TEELERE ARNEEHE
BEYRAMEEEE (NHEEHNHEE ) CEXEE

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular year and sales from
comparable POS in the previous year, measured at constant exchange rates
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the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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